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@s .. u ·AID 
~- __ t'"OM THE AMERICAN PEOPLE 

OCT 1 5 2013 
Sent via e-mail 

Re: FOIA Request No. F-00164-12 

The U.S. Agency for International Development (USAID) regrets the delay in responding 
to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request. Unfortunately, USAID is experiencing a 
substantial backlog of FOIA requests. Please know that USAID management is very committed 
to providing responses to FOIA requests and remedying the FOIA backlog. 

This is the final response to your FOIA request of March 4, 2012, in which you asked for 
each final report and closing memo for any closed Office of Inspector General (OIG) 
investigations on travel-related issues between January 1, 2006, and the present. 

A search ofUSAID's OIG produced 124 pages responsive to your request. After careful 
review, we have determined that 124 pages are partially releasable pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552 
(b)(6) and (b)(7)(C). More specifically, we withheld the names of Agency and contract staff, 
their specific titles, and signatures under FOIA Exemptions 6 and 7(C). We also withheld the 
case numbers pertaining to each record. OIG case numbers are not randomly generated and as 
such, if released, could possibly reveal information regarding the identity of the person being 
investigated and law enforcement personnel. The case numbers were also withheld based on 
FOIA Exemptions 6 and 7(C). 

FOIA Exemption 6 exempts from disclosure information about individuals in personnel 
or medical files and similar files the release of which would cause a clearly unwarranted invasion 
of personal privacy. This requires a balancing of the public ' s right to disclosure against the 
individual's right to privacy. The privacy interests of the individuals in the records you have 
requested outweigh any minimal public interest in disclosure of the information. Any private 
interest you may have in that information does not factor into the aforementioned balancing test. 

FOIA Exemption 7(C) protects records or information compiled for law enforcement 
purposes that could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal 
privacy. This exemption takes particular note of the strong interests of individuals, whether they 
are suspects, witnesses, or investigators, in not being unwarrantably associated with alleged 
criminal activity. That interest extends to persons who are not only the subjects of the 
investigation~ but to those who may have their privacy invaded by having their identities and 
U.S. Agency for lnt1:1mat1onal Development 
1300 Pennsylvania Avenue. ~ 
Washington, DC 20523 
www.usaid.gov 
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information about them revealed in connection with an investigation. Based upon the traditional 
recognition of strong privacy interest in law enforcement records, categorical withholding of 
information that identifies third parties in law enforcement records is ordinarily appropriate. As 
such, we have determined that the privacy interest in the identities of individuals in the records 
you have requested clearly outweigh any minimal public interest in disclosure of the information. 
Please note that any private interest you may have in that information does not factor into this 
determination. 

You have the right to appeal the above Exemptions. Your appeal must be received by 
US AID no later than 30 days from the date of this letter. In order for it to be considered an 
official appeal, your appeal must be addressed as follows and sent directly to the FOIA Appeals 
Officer: 

Director, Office of Management Services 
U.S. Agency for International Development 
Room 2.12-010, Ronald Reagan Building 
1300 Pennsylvania A venue, NW 
Washington, DC 20523 

If you wish to fax your appeal, the fax number is (202) 216-3369. Both the appeal letter and 
envelope must be plainly marked "FOIA Appeal." Please include your tracking number, F-
00164-12, in your letter. 

There is no charge for this FOIA request. As this concludes the processing of your 
request, we are closing your case. 

Sincerely, 

0. Wdffd- {fr< 
Alecia S. Sillah I U 
Team Lead, Government Information Specialist 
Bureau for Management 
Office of Management Services 
Information and Records Division 

Enclosure: Responsive Documents (124 pages) 
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U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
i<bX6).(b)(7XC) J (b)(S),(b)(7XC) 

Case Numberi 
Status: Complete 
Period of Investigation: 05/02/06 to 7 /25/06 OIG/I Office: RIG/Cairo 

Synopsis: (b)(s).(b)(7XCJ i<bX6>.<bx1xcl 
An anonymous source reported tha~ I USAID/Iraq I had 

falsified time and attendance docwnents and a travel voucher as a result of leave she took in 
conjunction with an official TDY trip to Washington, DC, coy_e_rin2 the period February 11, 2006 

• • i<bX6)(b}(7fl 
through March I, 2006. Add1honally, the source reported th <c> _pressured USAID employees 
to amend her travel authorization (TA) for the same official trip to Washington, allowing her to fly 
business class in violation of a USAID/Iraq Mission Order. 

Based upon these aJlegations, the Office of Inspector General (OIG) opened an 
investigation. During the course of the investigation, the OIG found evidence which substantiated 
the allegations and resulted in the following major investigative findings: 

(b)(6),(b)(7) 
I. <CJ failed to ro erl and timel infi nn timeke er of her decision to take annual 

leave during her official TOY trip, as required. As a result of her negligence, she caused 
two inaccurate Time and Attendance reports to be submitted and processed. 

S ecificall , the investigation determined that: 
(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) , • • 

• throughout the pre-tnp planrung, tncd to keep her agenda free from scheduled 
meetm and other work on February 21, 2006 and February 22. 2006. 

(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) d'd 11 h . k th E (6)(b)(7)(C) J th M' . ' 
• 1 not te er ttmc ceper, e e 1ss1on s 

Executive Officer (EXO) or anyone else in the Iraq Mission that she had plans to take 
(or mi t take) annual leave during her TDY. 

• :~~6).(b)(?J said she did not "definitely'' decide to take leave until February 15, 2006 when 
she bought airline tickets to Miami. 

• She began her leave late Friday afternoon, February 17, 2006, and concluded it the 
evening of February 22, 2006. 

REPORT MADE BV: 
SJgnalure: l

(bX6).(b)(7XC) 
Na~: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~-----; 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 
Slpaitun: 

Dale Signed: 
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(bX6)(bX7) 
<CJ Report of Investigation 

05/02106 to 7 /25/06 
Page2of13 

• l~~6><bX7> completed the rest of her TDY and returned to post on March 1, 2006. However, 
s e never advised her timekeeper or anyone else in Iraq about the annual leave that she 
took until the OIG confronted her regarding the issue on May 17, 2006. 

Wh . db h OIG (bX&)(bX7
> dmi ed h gl. . h. H sh en questtone y t e .cci a tt er ne 1gence mt ts matter. owever, . c 

stated that it was an oversight mostly due to the hc.-clic schedule she had immediately upon her 
return to post as a result of the VIP visits of the USAID Deputy Administrator, who arrived at post 
the same day she did, and a congressional delegation lead by Senator John Kerry that arrived in 
Iraq right after the Deputy Administrator left. 

l(bX6)(bX7XC) I 
II. failed to exercise the due diligence, expected and required of all USAID employees. 

in the review and submission of her travel voucher, which did not disclose the annual leave 
she took during her official TDY trip to Washington, DC. As a result of her negligence. 
she: 0) claimed lodging and per diem for the days she was on vacation: (2) signed the 
voucher certifying that it was true and accurate: and, {3) directl_y caused an inaccurate and 
inflated claim to be submitted to. and paid by, USAID. 

Specifically, the investi ation determined that: 
• On March 19, 2006 :~~6> <bX

7
> submitted a travel voucher seeking reimbursement from the 

USAID for the expenses s e incurred as a result of her official TDY to Washington. 
• The travel voucher claimed full lodging andJ>er diem reimbursement for the days that 

:~~5><bX7> had been on annual leave and bore (bX
6
> <bx

7xci signature certifying that the amounts 
claimed on the voucher were true and accurate. 

(bX6) {bX7) • th 
• <CJ dtd not actually_llr are e travel voucher. It was prepared by her secretary (and . ho (bX6) (b) • 

timekeeper), w m (7 lc> adrmtted she never told about the annual leave she took. 
• ~~~s)(bX7> stated that her signing of the inaccurate voucher was mostly due to the very 

hectic schedule she had immediately upon her return to post as a result of the two back­
to-back VIP visits from the USAID Deputy Administrator; and Senator John Kerry. 

• l~~6> (bX
7

> upon being confronted by the OIG in May 2006, admitted that she was negligent 
in her failure to exercise due diligence in her review of the voucher to ensure its 
accuracy before signing and submitting it to claim reimbursement. 

• <~~6>< x1
> thereafter, provided USAlD/lraq with a revised statement of her TDY claiming 

re1m6Ursement for only JO days-instead of 16 days, resulting in a determination that 
heJn ated amount ofi1~r) (bX

7
l claim was $1 ,065, and that it should be refunded in full . 

(bX6)(bX7l 

• <C> made full restitution to USAlD on June 1, 2006 in the amount of$1,065. 

III. ll~~5><b>(7> ! knowingly violated both USAID Agency-wide travel policy and her own 
USAID/lraq travel policy when she traveled via a round-trip business class ticket at USG 
expense. As a result of her willful pursuit and use of business class travel. she caused the 
USG to pay $2121 S more than the "least cost option" price of her original ticket. 
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!bX6l (bX7l 
cc> eport oflnvestigation 

Specifically, the investigation detennined that: 

05/02/06 to 7125/06 
Page 3of 13 

• On November 2, 2005, the USAID Administrator issued an Executive Message 
imposing restrictions on official travel and mandated that: "Least cost options, such as 
a rest stop in lieu of business class travel must be selected for any required travel. " 

• On February 2, 2006, in compliance with the Agency's new travel ~idance mandating 
travel via "]east cost options,'' the USAID/lraq Mission issue<(:xs>(bX7XC) a Travel 
Authorization (TA) with a cost at $1,550 for an wuestricted economy fare ticket. 

• On February 6, 2006f xs)(bX
7
xci ' A was amended to increase the funding level for her 

airline ticket from the "least cost option" unrestricted airfare price of S 1,550 to a full 
fare economy ticket price of$2,680(aSl,130 increase over the "least cost o tion" . 

• On Feb)t: 9 200_6 USAIDllr:aa_issued a Mission Order (No. <oxsHbx7
xc) 

. (bX6)(bX7l {bX6)(b)(7XC) ,. --. -----' 
signed b cq as It stated: Jn accordance with the attached 
Executive Message, USAJD/lraq employees will fly full fare economy fares to all 
destinations. Rest stops will be permitted for all travel longer than 14 hours. An 
emp/ovee may elect to upgrade to business class bv using his/her frequent flyer miles or 
QY pavin~ the difference. " (emphasis added) 

• On February 9, 2006 (b)(s)(bX
7XC) egan official TOY travel to Washington with the 

Wlderstanding that her round-trip full-fare economy ticket would be upgraded to 
business class at no extra cost to the government However, a sandstorm closed down 
the Baghdad airport for two days. 

• On February 11, 2006, when she arrived in Amman, Jordan, the travel agent told her 
that the delay had caused her to lose the "no cost'' upgrade to business class. 

(bX6) (bX7XC) h . ed th l . h d . b . 1 • k • t en, instruct · e trave agent to issue er a roun -tnp usmess c ass tic et. 
• After receLvim? a sub_seauent verbal authorization to do so from r s)(b)(

7
XC) 

l(b)(6).(b)C7XC) . . .__ - - ----
USA1D1._ the travel agent comphcd w1th her request. 

• The business class ticket cost $1,085 more than the $2,680 price of the full-fare 
economy ticket then a roved on her TA. Accordingly, on Februai::y 12, 2006, based 
solely on thd<bXSl<bX7xq request and a verbal okay fro ri~~s)(b)( 7> USAID's travel 
agent in Amman issued the ticket. 

• On March 7, 2006, six days after the completion of her TOY trip, an amendment to 
(bX6) (bX7XC) TA . d th f th d . b . 1 . k b was issue to cover e cost o e roWl -tnp usmess c ass ttc et y 

increasing the carrier cost to $3,765. This new price was $1,085 over the cost of the 
full-fare economy ticket, and $2,215 above the "least cost option" price of her original 
unrestricted coach class ticket. 

• The TA amendment did not state a valid justification for a business class upgrade to fly 
. (one way) to the U.S., nor did it offer any rationale or specific justification for a round­
trip business class ticket, as mandated by USAID regulations. 

· • iris)(bX
1

> advised the OIG that she felt her TDY trip qualified for a business class ticket 
Wlder existing ADS regulations because she could not take a rest stop and still make 
her Monday meetings, due to the delay caused by the sandstorm. She asserted this 
·ustification in spite of the clear intent and language of the Executive Message-and 

(bxs bX xc> Mission Order-which superseded the ADS regulations. 
(b)(6).{bX7l h fti . J l . . "fy h h d 

• 1q as yet to o er any rahona e or exp anabon to JUSh w y s e requested, an 
was issued, a business class ticket at USG expense for the return-to-post leg of her trip. 
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(b)(6).(b)(7) 
<Cl Report of Investigation 

05102106 to 7 /25/06 
Page4of13 

d 1. 1 d M' . i· (b)cs>cbx ' . led b . • Un er app 1cab e USAID an Iraq tss1on po icy cc> was not entit to a usmess 
class upgrade at government expen'se, and should have personally paid for the upgrades 
_hove "least cost options'' as mandated by Agency and Mission policy. . (b)(6).(b)(7) . . . 

• cc) has not reimbursed USAID for the extra cost of the round-tnp business class 
ticket. 

d 
. . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) d . 1 ed 

Based on the evidence collected, including her own a missions con uct vto at : 
• J FAM 43 77-22 - Acts of negligence or carelessness in performance of official 

duty resulting in waste of public funds or inefficiency, with respect to her 
negligent failure to properly and timely inform her timekeeper of her decision to 
take annual leave, which directly resulted in the submission of two inaccurate time 
and attendance reports, as well as the submission and payment of one inaccurate 
and inflated travel voucher. . 

• 5 CFR §2635. 702 - Use of Public Office for Private Gain, with respect to her 
knowing and willful violation of both Agency and Mission policy regarding business 
class travel by instructing subordinates and the USAID-contracted travel agent to issue 
her a round-trip business class ticket without a valid justification or rationale for the 
first leg of the trip to Washington, and no rationale or explanation for the business 
class upgrade for the return trip. 

Details of Investigation: 

ed h .fCb)(6).cbx1>cc> J USAID/I 1<bxs>.cb>c1xc) I had 
An anonymous source report t a~ . raq ._. ------· 

falsified time and attendance documents and a travel voucher as a result of leave she took in 
conjunction with an official TDY trip to Washington, DC covering the period February 11 though 
March 1, 2006. Additionally, the source reported thatl~r).<b>C7> pressured USAID employees to 
amend her travel authorization (f A) for the same business trip to Washington, aJlowing her to fly 
business class in violation of a USA ID/Iraq Mission Order. Based on these allegations, the OIG 
initiated an investigation. 

I. Time and Attendance Issue 

The OIG obtained copies o (b)(s).(b)(l)(C) bi-weekly Time and Attendance Reports for pay 
periods three (3) and four (4) in calendar ear 2006. OIG review of these fonns disclosed that they 
had been re ared and sig11ed 011 (b)(s) (bXl>cc> behalf in the employee signature line, and signed by 

(b)(S)(b)(?)(C) USAID/lr (b)(G),(b)(l)(C) th . 1· Th rt e supemsor me. e repo s were 
. ed F b 12 d 28 . l N l . 1· ed ~ (b)(G)(b)(l> · h · d sign on e ruary an respective y. o eave is 1st . io <Cl or e1t er pay peno . . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) , . 

(Attachment 1, Tame & Attendance Report for for pay penod 3 of2006, 
Attachment 2, Time & Attendance Report fo (b)($).(b)(lXC> for pay period 4 of 2006) 

The OIG obtained a copy o (b)(s).(b)(l)(C) agenda and schedule of meetings for the period 
February 13-28, 2006. OIG review r.of the document revealed that it was dated "as or• February 1(b)(6),(b)(7XC) I . . . 
14, 2006 and that USAID emoloy_ee :was hsted as the point of contact m . i(t>)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
Washington. (Attachment 3,: DY Schedule for February 13 to 28, 2006) 
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(bX6)(bX7l 
<CJ Report of Investigation 

05/02/06 to 7 /25/06 
Page 5of13 

On May 2, 2006, the OIG telq>honically interviewed'<bXS>(bX7XCJ '(bx6)cbx7xc> 
(bX5>!bX7XCJ USAID W h. DC (b~S)(b) I . ed h h "ded adm .. - - .---. ____ _. , as mgton, c1xCJ exp am t at s e proVI 1mstratJve assistance to 
%~6J(b)(7) while she is in the US~~;2cbf confirmed that she maintain (b)(S)(bx7xc) schedule for her 

. (b)(6) (b) (b)(6) (b)(7) . 
February tnp to the USA c1xcl stated that<CJ was on annual leave from the afternoon of Fnday, 
February 1 i12006 through and including Wednesday, February 22, 2006 ~~~~l/bl said that she is 
certain ~1)~r>.cbi<J teft Washingto ...oc._ d checked out of her hotel, as she had left her bags at the (b)(6). . . (b)(6).(b)(7) . 
office an (bJC7> obtamed a taxi fo eel to go to the airport. {Attachment 4, Memorandum of 
Interview (bX6>.ID><7XCJ dated 5/2/2006) 

OIG Agents interviewed fonner USAlD/Iraq (b)(S)(bX7XCJ 
lbX6~l 1b=x1=xc~J ~ ed th d . th . l<bxsi (bX7l . th U._S_ h _____ - th (bX6l <bx1xcf stat at unng e hme<CJ was m e . ., e was serr mg as e ______ __, 
(b)(S)(bX]XCJ H fi ed t th OJG t th t 't hi . ture (b)(S)(b)(])(C) . d e con nn o e agen s a 1 was s s1gria o 1me an 
Atten iii'Ce Reports as supervisor/reviewer for a ~ods tluee Oland four (4) of2006, dated 
February 13 and March 1, 2006 respectively. Cbxsicbx7xCJ tated tha(~~~6><bX71 ,never mentioned any 
plans to take annual leave dun~·n her Febru trip to Washington. (Attachment S, (bX6).(b)(7XCl 
Memorandum of Interview dated 5/14/06) 

OlG A e ts_int ·ewed the current USAID/Iraqi<bXS)(bl<7xcl I 
g ~(b)(6)(bX7l l(bX6J (b)(7XC) . 

The agents showedcc> a copy o Travel Request Form for her February 2006 TDY to 
Washington. ~~~s) <DX71 confirmed his signature on the Travel Request Fonn. The Agents then asked 
him about the section called "Itinerary'' and the instructionJ_oJ ist any periods of annual or special RbX6) (bX7) . (b)(6) (b) . . 
lcaveicq said that he was not aware of any leave plansc1xcl had either before or after her tnp. 

l~rl<bX1> added that if someone plans to take leave in conjunction with a TOY, they are required by 
Mission poliCYJojjsLthe leave plans on the Travel Request Fonn. (Attachment 6, Memorandum 

Jfi>)(6).(bX7XC) J 
of Interviewl dated 05/15/2006) 

On Ma 15, 2006, the OIG obtained the email account of former USAID/lraq 
<bX6> <bx7xcl ]during the time frame in question. 

During the_OIG's review of the documents, several emails and Excel spreadsheets were fowid . . [b)(6) (bX7XC) h . . . ](bX6)(b)(7)(C) 
outhrung DY sc edule m February 2006. In each rendition ot schedule, there 
were no meetings scheduled on February 21 and 22. On an early version of the schedule, there 
was a notation of annual leave for those days. (Attachment 7, Records Review dated S/15-
23/2006.) 

The OIG telephonically interviewedf<bKS><bx7icc> lronner USAID/Ira (b)(GJ.(b)(1>cc> 
~l1b=>c5~>.<b~x1=xc~) _...;;._..;;.._;;.,.;;....;;.,]confinned that she regularly prepar .'bxslcbx7xCJ itime and Atte~n-dan_c_e_r--rts--an-d__. 

d.d r. th .od th (b)(6)(b)(7) . tr 1 tatu . F b 2006 (bX6)(bX7XCl 'd th (bX6)(bX7XC) 1 so 1or e pen a cc> as m ave s . s m e ruary . sai a._ __ __. 
never mentioned anything to her about talcing leave during her TDY trip to Washington, nor did 

~~~611bX7l advise her that she had taken an leave when she returned to Baghdad. (Attachment 8, 
Memorandum of Interview <bxs) <bx7xcl <lated S/17/2006) 

On May 23, 2006 USAID/Ira (b s)cbx7xq was interviewed. 
(bXS) (bX])(C) Said that She assisted in the preparation 0 (b)(S) (blC7XC)Jschedu)e, r s) (bX7XCl eported that~(bX=5>~.Cb=X7~XC-l 

had told her not to schedule anything during the period February 17 to 23 aS11b)(s).(bl<?XC) wanted to 
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:m6><b)(?) Report of Investigation 
05102106 to 7/25/06 

Page6of13 

. (bX6).(b)(7XC) (b)(6).(b) . 
take some personal time assumed that meant annual )eave, but Fxci never actuall said . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
that she would be takmg annual leave. (Attachment 9, Memorandum of Interview, 

(b)(G).(b)(?)(C) dated S/23/2006) . ._ ___ _. 

OIG Agents interview '~cs)(b)(?> During the interview i~\'s).(b)(?> admitted that she took 
annual leave starting Friday, February 17 through Wednesday, Febru · 22. (~>(s).(b)(?> said that she 

,,,.AJ~?Qt she had, but did not know for sure if she told her timekeeper,:~~s).(b)(?) about her leave. 
l~r><b>(?> said she did tel bJ(S).(b)(?)(C) that she was raking leave during her TOY. (Attachment 10, 

Memorandum of Interview (b)(SJ.<bX?>(C> dated S/17 /2006) 

On June 21, 2ooolm6>.<bJ(?> was interviewed by the OIG for a second time and provided an 
explanation as to why she spec1 cally did not list annual leave on her TDY Travel Request Form 
or advise her timekeeper at the beginning of her TOY trip to Washington of her intent to take 
leave. l~~6>.<bX?> explained that she' did not know for sure that she would be taking annual leave in 
conjunction with her TDY at the beginning of her trip-the time when the Travel Request Form 

d (bX6)CbX7l l . ed th · r h al · M' · · was prepare . cc> exp am at reservations 1or er erson tnp to tarm, commencing on 
February 17, were not finalized until February 15, 2006.1~si<bX7> also provided an explanation as to 
why see failed to promptly notify her timek~er and voucher preparer of the annual leave at the 
conclusion of her Washington TDY.l~r).(b)(?> explained that when she returned from Miami she had 
a series of non-stop meetings in W ashin on. These meetin _ were immediately followed by her 
trip back to Iraq with US AID (b)(G> (bX?><C> bXS).(b)(?XC) stated that she had to hit 
the ground running in Iraq and spent 100% of her focus on th (b)(S)(bX?J<C> visit and not on 
administrative issues like her time reports and travel voucher. Soon after the <bX5Hb><7i<c> visit <b><5>.<bl(7xc> 
became fully engaged in a Con~;asi_onal Dele~ation visit headed by Senator Kerry. (Attachment . (bX6) {bX7)(C) l 
11, Memorandum of Interview,,, dated 6/21/2006) 

(b)(6).(b)(7XCl . ' 
On May 23, 200 nstructed both the USAID/lraq Controller and Supervisory 

EXO to amend both her travel voucher and her Time and Attendance Report to charge one (1) 
hour of annual leave on Friday, February 17, 2006 and eight (8) hours each on Tuesda Febru 
21, 2006 and Wednesday, February 22, 2006. (Attachment 12, Memorandum from <b><s>.<bX?xc> 1.----Amendment of Travel voucher dated 5/23/2006) 

II. Travel Voucher Issue 

"The OIG obtained a copy o/<bXs)(bX7>cc>ltravel voucher for the period February 9 through 
March I> 2006. A review of the voucher by the OIG revealed that along with claims for lodging 
and M&IE en· route to and from W ashigfilo i~»csi.cbX?> claimed 16 days of lodging and M&IE for her 
TDY in Washington. (Attachment 13r x6

><b 1Travel voucher, dated 3/19/2006) 

0 M 2 2006 th OIG 
. . (b)(6).(b)C7XC) ed h h . . 

=~~ n ay , , e mtemew report t at s e ts cert.""'a~m~~ 
tha i~~6> (bX?> left town andshecked out of her hotel in Washington on Friday, February 17 as (b)(6).(bX?XC) 

1 ft 
i;;- f{bX6l (bX7) (b)(6).(b) . . . . . 

ha e uer bags at herE?..._ office and she (7)(C) ater took the bags ma tax.1 to Capitol Htll m 
order to deliver them tdi~t · ·o that she wou not miss an afternoon flight. i~~~/b> also recalls that 

~~><sHbXl> checked out of one hotel on Friday and checked into a different hotel on Wednesday night. 
(See Attachment 4) 
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answered follow-up questions posed by the OIG via email. :~ii;~c) said that 
she assist ~~r).(bX7l in making reservations to fly to Miami for the period February 17 through 23. 

(bX6)(b) .ded ., h . th . l'. (b)(6),(b)(7XC) . M" . b . fi 1· ed <7XC) also prov1 an ema1 s owmg e reservations 10 trip to iarm emg na iz on 
February 15, 2006. (Attachment 14, Email fro CbXs)(bXllCC> dated 5/22/2006) 

~-~ The OIG telephonically interview '<b)(s).(b)(l)(C) lex lained that she_nn;mared 
(b)(S)(b)(l)(C) l h fi h TOY th t 1 ded M h 1 2006 (bXS)(bX?) .d th tW(G).(b)(l) d'd t 
~-~trave vouc er or er a cone u arc , . <Cl t a ~ 1 no 

tell her about any leave taken in conjunction with her TOY in Washin on. According t i(b)(s).(b)(l)(CJ 
i~><s>(b)(l) is a very thorough person and reads everything that she signs 1~~s)(bXll added tha ~~><s><bX?J had 
the voucher for one or two days before she signed and returned it. (See Attachment 8) 

(bX6l(bX7l 
Per her interview by the OIG on June 21, 2006,<C> verified her signature on the travel 

voucher claiming reimbursement for expenses incurred on her TDY trip in February/March 2006. 
(b)(S).<b><1> 1 · d th h all . th fi f th h h d"d . h f <C> exp a.me at s e gener y reviews e 1rst page o e vouc er, as s e i m t e case o 

the February/March 2006 travel voucher, and then signs it ~~~s><bXll added that she does not 
normally review the subs uent pages of the travel voucher. Upon reviewing her February/March 
2006 travel voucherff~>c6l (bX?> admitted that she was not entitled to 16 days of lodging and per diem, 
but rather nine (9) or 10 days. She stated that she does not know what happened and added that 
she never noticed the discrepancy. She characterized the error as an honest mistake. She admitted 
she was in Miami at a family event from late February 17 to February 22. (See Attachment 10) 

On J 21 200 (b)(s).<bl<7> "ded dd. . 1 1 "fi . d d ·1 d. h · une , <C> provt a itiona c an cation an eta1 s surroun mg er 
failure to notify her voucher preparer of the annual leave taken in conjunction with the Washington . . (b)(6) (b)(7)( 
TOY, as well as her s1grung of the travel voucher tC) istated that when she returned to Iraq 
fr h Toy h 

. d .th(bX6)(bX7)(C) (bX6).(b)(7) l . ed th t om er , s e amve wt <Cl exp am· a as soon 
h . ed b k. Ir 100°1 fh l'. th~b)(G)(b)(l)(C) . . d d . . . ass e amv ac m aq 10 o er 1ocus was on j ISlt an not on a mm1strat1ve 

issues like the preparation of her travel voucher. Thus, she failed to notify her voucher preparer of 
her WIDJ leave she-100.kiILconjwiction with her TOY. <~x6> .<bX7l agreed with observations made by iibJi6>CbX7l(C) l(b)(6)(bX7)(C) ~ . . , . . 
L__ tha ormally carefully reads things she signs, but m this part1cular 
situation sJie stated that she was negligent. (See Attachment 11) 

On May 23, 2006!<bXs)cbx7xc> !instructed both the USAID/lraq Controller and Supervisory 
EXO to amend her travel voucher to reduce the number of days of Lodging and M&IE for the 
period February 17 through 21. (See Attach~ent 12) 

On Ma 31, 2006 USAID/Iraq Supervisory Exq<bxs>cbX?)<c> Jand Controlld(b><6l<bX7l<C> ] 
CbXs>.<bX?xc> notified :~~6).<b><7>lof the recalculated travel expense for her travel voucher. The recalculated 
· amount requir [~><5><bX7> to refund the government $1,064.50. (Attachment 15, Memorandum (bX6),(b)(7) 

from EXO & Controller t ,'Cl 1dated 5/31/2006) 

(bX6l (bX7l 
On June 1, 2006 cc> paid $1,065 to reimburse US AID/Ira for the overchar ed 

amount. (Attachments 16and17, General Receipt Numbers'-cb_xs_>.<b_><7_xc_l _____ _, 
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On November 2, 2005, the USAID Administrator issued an Executive Message via a 
USAID/General Notice with a subject line of ''Travel Guidance." (Attachment 18, USAID 
General Notice dated 11/2/2005) 

The new guidance imposed restrictions on official travel in order to conserve Agency 
operational expense (OE) funds, and specifically stated that: 

• "Least cost options, such as a rest stop in lieu of busi1:1ess class travel must be selected 
for any required travel. " (emphasis added) 

• "This guidance is effective immediately and is applicable until further notice. " 

(bX6) (bX7) • l(b)(6),(b)(7XC) I . . 
On February 2, 2006,<c> i as issued TA #This TA authonzed her to 

travel on TDY to Washington, DC from Baghdad covering the period February 9 through March 2, 
2006. OIG review of the TA revealed that it authorized "full-fare economy class" as the mode of 
tra~el._andJhat it listed the estimated carrier cost (air fare) at $1550. (Attachment 19, TA #.<bxsi<ox

7
xci 

r s).(bX
7
XCl ldated 2/2/2006) . 

On February 6, 2006 TA ~(bX6)(b)( 7XC) ]was amended "to cover the cost of a full-fare 
economy class ticket" and, as a result, added $1,130 to the TA bringing the total amount of the 
carrier cost to $2,680. An attached email referenced in the amendment could not be located. 
Additionally, there was an amendment 2 to the TA which is an exact duplicate of amendment l. 
(Attachment 20, Amendment #1 and #2 to TA (b)(S)(bX

1
i<c> dated 2/6/2006) 

On February 9, 2006, USAID/lraq issued Mission OrdeJ <bxsi<bX
7
xc> !entitled 

"Business Class" which referenced and attached the USA ID General Notice of November 2, 2005. 
(Attachment 21, USAJD/lraq Mission Order dated 2/9/2006) 

OIG review of the USAID/lraq Mission Order disclosed that it was signed byl~m<b> and 
that it did not reference or include the General Notice's agency-wide requirement that "least cost 
options" must be used. Instead, it contained the following statements; 

• USAID/lraq employees will fly fu11 fare economy fares to all destinations. 
• Rest stop will be permitted for all travel longer than 14 hours. 
• An employee may elect to upgrade to business class by using his/her frequent flyer 

miles or by paying the difference. 

The OIG found no evidence that the USAID/lraq Mission o ~><b> ] had sought or received 
any waivers from USAID/Washington exempting the Iraq Mission from the USAID-wide travel 
policy announced in the Executive Message (General Notice) of November 2, 2005. 

On February 11, 2006 USAID-contracted travel a enf1(s),(bl<1)~(C) 1notified 
USAID/I l<bX6l(bX7XC) th (bX6),(b)(7)~h d- .- t" ra a <ci a miss er connec m 
Amman due to an airport closure in Baghdad the day before. ~~><G><bX7l also notified l~m(b> 
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(b)(6)(b)(7) (b)(6).(b)(7) 
had booked<C) on a business class seat to Washin on DC. On February 12, 2006<Cl 

~-~ 

instructed USAID/Iraq travel ecialis (b)(S).(b)(7XC) o amend "the Director's TA to 
authorize business class." (bXS><bX7><c> ematl-dia not contam a justification for his instruction to amend 

(b)(s).(bX7xc> 1 A. (Attachment 22, Email exchange betwee~<bXS)(b)( 7XC) ldated 

2/11/2006 and 2/1212006) 

On February 12, 2006 USAID/lraq<bXS)(b)(7)<c> c-0ntacted<bK5><bX7l<C> 

via email to ascertain whether economy seats were available on the flight that1l~~~»<b> took to 
Washington, DC. (Attachment 23, Email Exchange, (b)(S){bX7l<C> dated 2/12/2006) 

~(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) I 
OIG review of th email exchange revealed that: 

(b)(S),(b)( 7
) ed h h ·1 bl b l . ed th th gh • <cl stat t at t ere were econom seats avai a e, ut exp am at even ou 

economy seats were availabl lms)(bJ(7> was very upset and told him to book her a 
business class seat and that she would pay the difference. 

• (b)(s).(bl<7>!C> then asked wheth l~»(s).(b)(7) actually paid the difference in the ticket price. 
• i~~s).(b)(7) esponded that i~~~;(b) did not pay the difference in cost between economy and 

business class. 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) [(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) I 
On March 7, 2006, an amendme t t TA(# was issued by the 

. . fi h ' ed (bXSl <bX7KC> d . b . l . k (A h t 24 Mtsston to pay or t e mcreas oost o roun -trip usmess c ass tic et. ttac men , 
Amendment# 3 to T (b)(S)(bX7xc) dated 317/2006) 

OIG review ofthis amendment disclosed that it does not contain any language or 
rationale justifying the Mission's approval of an upgrade to business class travel, as required by 
the applicable USAID regulation--Agency Policy on Premium Class Air Travel, paragraph D, 
which specifically addresses the "14-Hour Rule," and begins with the statement that: "There is!!!!. 
entitlement to business class accommodation for overseas trips in excess of 14 hours." Paragraph 
D ends with the statement that: "If business class travel is approved, the rationale must be 
documented on the travel authorization (I'A)." (emphasis added) 

In spite of the mandated requirement by USAID_thata justification or rationale be 
d d . all TAs . b . 1 Jj(b)(S).(b)(7>(C)rr d . th I ocumente m approvmg usmess c ass trave , A amen ment contains e on y 
following substantive statements: 

• "Additional funds are required to cover the cost of a roundtrip Business Class ticket ... " 
• "Authorization approved by the Supervisory Executive Officer." 
• "Additional funds are required to bring the carrier cost amount to $3,765." 
• "All other provisions in the original TA remain in full effect and unchanged." 

None of which meet the mandatory requirement established by USA ID. 

When questioned by the OIG about the absence from her TA amendment of the required 
. 'fi. . . al f' ' b . I I (bxs> (b)(7f1 ed h 3ustz cation or ration e or approvmg usmess c ass trave ,<c> stat t at: 
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• She tol (the and approving official for busmess class travel) that 
(b)(6) (bX7)(C) !(b)(6) (bX7)(C) I . . . 

she wo write a memorandum providing the required justification. However, she stated 
that she never did it. 

• She recalled tha ~gr>.<b)(?> told her that it would be done, but she never followed up with him. 
• She is annoyed by this administrative issue and that if the upgrade to business class had 

been disallowed she would have aid the difference. But, the authorizing officjaJ at post 
for business class travel is th (b)(s) (b)(?J(CJ and he agreed with her assessment that a 
round-trip business class upgrade was appropriate under the circwnstances given her need 
to get to Washington without being able to take a rest stop. (See Attachment 10) 

(b)(6),(b)(7) 
Moreover (CJ did not offer the OIG an explanation or rationale as to why she 

instructed the travel agent to issue her a "round-trip" business class ticket at USG expense, as 
opposed to a one-way business class upgrade (to Washington) with a coach class return ticket, 
given that her stated position was that she could not take a rest stop en route to Washington and 
still make her scheduled meetings Monday morning. 

On May 15, 2006 USAlD/lra (b)(s).(b)(?Xc> was interviewed. 
l~~s>.<b)(?> ex lained that back in February 2006 when he was still the EXO, he drafted the Mission 
Order (b)(S)(b)(?)(C) dated February 9, 2006, to bring USAID/Iraq in tine with the USAID 
General Notice of November 2005 concerning the required use "least cost alternatives" for air 
travel lg~s)(b)(?) said that Mission management decided to incorporate the use of full fare economy 
due to e regularity of disru lions of em lo ee travel from Baghdad. ~~~s)(b)(?J then explained that 
the first amendment to<bXSHbX?)(CJ A ( (b)(s).(bJ(?J(C) was t.o increase the funding to be consistent 
with the original TA language authorizing full fare economy ~~;<s> (b)(?J further con finned that he was 
contacted by USAID/Ira contracted travel agen <bJ(s).(b)(?J(CJ requestin authority to iss]l .igr>.(b)(?) 

. . (b)(6)(b)( ) fi ed th h . ed(b)(6).(b)(7) . l(bj(6).(b) a business class ticket. (C> con nn at e verbally authonz (C) to issu (7)(C) a 
business class ticket to as mgton and instructed USAID/lraq <bXS).(b)( 7x·c~)~------' 

<bXS)(b)(?><C> ~tD amend::.:7xc> A to include use of business class.1g~s>.<b>(7> _)leclared that he had 
warn , ~~~~i<b> in the past about being careful with her travel. (See Attachment 6) 

(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) . . . . , . 
On June 21, 2006 was re·mterviewed b the OIG to clanfy hts position. 

(Attachment lS, Memorandum of lnterviewt xs> <bX7xc> 6/21/2006) 

He advised that: . . . f(b)(6).(b)(7)(C), 
• His first personal involvement w1ttt DY occurred when he found out that she 

and several other USAID travelers were stranded at the Baghdad airport due to a 
sandstorm. . , (bX6)(bX7)(C) . {bX6).(b)(7)(C) 

• _e_w_as firs.t.alerted about the storm's rarmfications o travel by c1th (b)(6)(b)(7)(C> orl(b)(6J.(b)(7)(C) I . 
• At some point, the travel people and/orl<bxs><bX?xc> jasked him i.f <bXS).(bX?><CJ 

could fly business class at government expense because the storm delay had been so 
long that she could not perform a rest stop and make her first scheduled meetings in 
Washington. 
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d"d eak (bXS).(bX]) b d" h TA h . b . l h h • He 1 not sp t <Cl a out amen mg er to aut onze . usmess c ass w en s e 
was in Baghdad at the airpo~ and had no discussion with her at all while she was in 
Jordan. 

d l ed th (bJ(s).(b) d'd k h b . I "ck . • He ec ar a (7)(CJ 1 not as to get er usmess c ass h et at government 
expense. 

ad h. d . . d c (b)(SJ.(b) b ed hi d" . . h • He m e 1s ec1S1on to BP-prove an upgra e 10 c1>(CJ as on s 1scuss1ons wit 
i<bJ(S).(b)(rxc) Ian (b)(SJ.(b)(?>(CJ which focused on the fact that she needed to get to 
Washington an cou not perform a rest~stop and still make her meetings. 

• Hem d_e__tbe_decision to authorize business class fo11i~i:5J.(b)(?J I efore he received an email (b)(6),(b)(7) . -~ . 
fro <Cl at Umon Travel. . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 

(Attachment 25, Memorandum of Interview, 6/21/2006) 

l
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) j 

The OIG interviewed USAID/lrag contracted travel agent,_ _ ___ _,1(Attacbment µb)(6) (b)(7)(C) I . -
26, Memorandum of lnterviewl 1dated 5/2112006) 

(b)(6) (bX7XCJ d . d th a vise at: 
,_ __ 

t i~\<5><1>l<7> instructed him to upgrade her to a business class ticket. 
• l~(s).(bJ(?J always flew business class prior to this trip, so he did not see this as unusual­

except that this time she was very upset. 
• Sin~l~~s)(bX7> TA for this trip onJy authorized full fare economy, he contact (bJ<SJ.<t> >c7xq 

i~~s)(bXfJ to ensure that the government would reimburse him for a business c]ass ticket. 
•l~~sJ.(b)(?J gave him a verbal authorization to issue the business class ticket. 

' . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) . . . 
• The $1,550 fare hsted 1 ngmal TA was probably the lowest unrestncted 

economy fare. · 
(bXS),(b)(?) had t} fl b . } . . W hi b }( "d •e_ recen y ew usmess c ass on a pnor trip to as ngton, ut persona y pat 

e difference between full-fare economy and business class, as do many of the USAID 
travelers. 

Per her interview on May 17, 2006,i~~s)<bX7> advised the OIG that her original TOY 
itinerary included a "no cost'' upgrade to business class because she was on a full fare economy 
ticket. However, a delay at the Baghdad airport caused her to miss her original f1i t to Amman, 

d l h 
' . l 1 . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

an as a resu t, t . e "no COJ!bo.era_ to busmess c ass was no onger avallable . ...._ __ ___.. 
acknowledged instructin1t (sJ.<b)(r)(CJ to upgrade her to business class~~~~s)(l>X?) Jrelt, under the 
circumstances, her upgrade to business class was justified under existing ADS rules, despite the 
November 2005 directive from Washington, and because she could not take a rest stop and make 
h fi . . w hi Sh ed h (b)(S)(bX?) ed "th h f h I . er rst meetmgs m as ngton. e stat t a cci agre Wl er assessment o t e ru es. 
(See Attachment 11) 

Finally, OIG inquiry with the USAID/Iraq Mission confinned that as of July 24, 2006 (bX6),(bX7) 
<ci had not taken any steps to reimburse the USAID/lraq Mission for the extra cost of her 
round~trip business class ticket-as mandated by her own Mission Order (NoLf<b_l<6_><b_x

7
_>(c_i ____ _, 

which she issued on February 9, 2006, and which specifically requires employees who elect to 
upgrade to business class do so by using their frequent flyer miles or by personally paying the 
difference in price. (See Attachment 21) 
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• This matter will be referred to USAID/M/HR for administrative disciplinary consideration. 

Attachments: 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
l. Time & Attendance Report fo for pay period 3 of 2006 

. d ~ (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) • 
2. Jme_&,Atlen ance Report 10fJ for pay penod 4 of 2006 
3. (bX5><b><1><C> TDY Schedule..Ior£®rwu:Y_J_3 to 28, 2006 
4. Memorandum of Interviewi<bX6)(b)(l)<c> dated 5/2/2006 

· 5. Memorandum oflntervie~J:s>.<bXlxc-) - dated 5/14/06 
6. Memorandwn oflnterview<bJ(SJCbX'llct> dated 05/15/2006 
7. Records Review, dated 5/1 5-23/2006 
8. Memorandum of Interview, (b)(S)(b)(l)(CJ dated S/17/2006 
9. Memorandum of Interview (b)(6J.cbl(?JcCJ dated 5/23/2006 
10. Memorandum oflnterview (b)(6).(b)(l)(c) dated 5/17 /2006 
11. Memorandum oflnter:view (bX6).(b)(l)(CJ ated 6/2112006 

(b)(6).(b)(7) 1---------' 

12. Memorandum fro cCJ Amendment of Travel Voucher, dated 5/23/2006 
13.i<b)(S)(bXlxci ~ravel Voucher dated 3/19/2006 
14. Email fro (b)(S)(b)(l)(CJ dated 5/22/06 

·~~-

15. Memorandum from EXO (b)(SJ.(b)(lXCJ toi~~6)(b)(7) dated 5/31/ 006 
16. General Receipt<bXSJ<b)(l)(CJ in the amount of$1,061 fro (bXSJ.fb~dated 6/11/2006 
17. General Recei 1 in the amount of$4 from;<bXs)(b)(lXCJ ~ 6/11/2006 
18. USAID General Notice. dated l lL02/2005 

• • ~b)(6).(b)(7XC) ] 
19. Travel Authon7..atlon #l dated 2/2/2006 
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USAID/Iraq Mission Order._d_ated.= 2'"""/9,_,.../2=006"""------------
Email exchange betwee~b)(GJ<bXlxci I dated 2111/2006 
and 2/12/2006 
E 

.
1 

h b tw . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) mai exc ange e een 
Amendment # 3 to T fibX5

>.<bXlxCJ dated 3/7 /2006 ~-------' 
dated 2/12/2006 

Memorandum of Interview <bxs> (b)(lXC> date 6/2 l /2006 
""'=~--= Memorandum of Interview <b><G>.<b><

7
xc> dated 5/2112006 

Memorandum of Interview tbxs> <bXl><CJ dated 7 /25/06 



 



' ' U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTJGATION 

C 1
" I Jlt<b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

ase it e: 1 .____ ____ ____, 

Status: Closed 
Period oflnvestigation: 01/13/08 to 01114/08 

l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Case Number: . 
l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Office: RJG/Cairo 

l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) l 
~;;.-,P,=,,re=d~i=c=at=i=o=n.:...: ..:.T=h=-e _,,_R=ecc..:::.:..:===--~=~:=-=:L.;received information fro111 .... l ______ _, 
... 'b_><

5
_>.<_bx_

1
><_C) ____ "=7."===~-----'-U"-S""'A'---""lD-'...-/C"-a_i_ro_,__regardin ossible travel 

h f d b 
(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

vouc er rau y 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . '-. --.-_,.'(bj(S)(b){7)(C) (b)(S) (b) • 

.. USAID/Cauo. reported that employees from the(7)cci informed 
her tha (b)(S)(bX

7 
C) did not attend an Economic Growth Workshop that he was scheduled to 

d (b)(S).(b><
1

><C) b · d · I h l . . h I d d. fi atten . su mttte a trave vouc er c a1mmg ote expenses an per 1em or 
attendance at a workshop that he did not attend. 

mmsis: The results of the investigation were that the allegations were substantiated. 
(b)(S}.<b><1><C) b · d 1 .1... .1. • • h I d d. h'l d. su ffiltte a trave vouc.J.,ler...c.l.aurung ote expenses an per 1em w i e atten mg 
~~-...-J l(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 1 . • • 

e wor shop. At the request of _ . . . urther certified that he mcurred lodgrng 
costs while attending the works 1op. (b)(SJ.(b)(

7
)(C) su sequ 'tted that he did not 

(b)(6) .(b)(7)(C) 

attend the workshop due to illness o ami y members. also admits t alhe 
d · h fi · d h·1 · w hi d a· 1 · 1 ct · (b)(S).(b)(l)(C) staye wit nen s w i e m as ni:,>ton an ic not mcur o gmg expenses . .__ __ _, 

claims he made a mistake and forgot that he had not stayed in a hotel during the trip in 
quesf aims he confused the trip in October with another trip he made in July 

(b)(6) (bX7)(C) , (b)(S) (b)(7) • 

2007. claims that he approache cc>__.1and advised her that he erroneously 
claimed lodging costs and was waiting for lier to contact him. He further admitted, 
however, that he did not submit an amended travel v;:mcher nor did he attempt to contact 

[ibl16J.Cb)(7)(Cn • • L _Jto follow up on the situation. 

D . I f h . . . . l d . d h f <b)(S)(b)(
1

)(C) I · d unng t le course o t e mvesttgation lt was a so etermme t at ttme an 
attendr ) reports did not accurately reflect his work status while in the United 
' (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) • • • 

States., submltted an SF-71 for 40 hours of leave although he was onmna,lu ..1__ 

--~-'. • (b){6) (bX7)(C) 

supposed to be m rest and recupe{:_atwn .. LR.& ) status for at least 80 hours. 
l(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) I (b)(6) (b)(7XCJ • • 
r an supervisor, ~ar.e that he was m the 

, , , (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) ---, • 

Umted States but rehed on the timelZeeper to account fo ours. In his 
• • • Kb)(6).(b)(7)(C) -1 . . 
mterv1ew with OIG agentst _Jwas unsure why his T &A did not accurately reflect 
his annual leave and claims be subillitted an SF-71 for the entire period he intended to be 
on leave. He does not have a copy of the SF-71 to substantiate his claim nor does the 
timekeeper. 

REPORT MADE BY: Na mt: 

• [(b)(7)(C) 
Name: _ jspecial Agent in Charge 
Signatu ... rc_.: ___ _, 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 

Notice: 

Date Signed: 

01/14/2008 

Dale Signed: 

This document is the properly of lhe Office of Inspector Gtneral and cannot bt nproduced or copied without written 
pcm1ission. Disclosure to unauthorized persons is prohibited. Public availability is determined under Title S U.S.C.§552. 
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RO..._ __ _ 

01 /13/08-01/14108 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
said he failed to attend a scheduled workshop or consultations due to the illness 

-~~--=-' 

of his chi1dren__buLdid not contact anyone to advise them of his situation. He was i<?X6)(b) 
contacted by1xci via e-mail and responded more than a week later. After returning to 
Cairo he did not file an amended SF-71 for sick leave or family leave act for the time he 
was taking care of his children. His reason for not fil ing the SF-71 was because he "did 
not think to do it." 

This matter will be referred to USAID Human Resources for administrative action 
No further investigative activity is required and this case is closed. 

Details of Investigation: 

(bX6J (bX7J (bX6) (b)(7XCJ 
01/10/08: The RA was contacted b <C> 6 x1~arding voucher. An information 

-~CbX ) Cl>X ) . L(bX6i (t>)(7)(C) 
report was prepared an~(Lcase_opened [<c> provided a copy o travel (b)(6) (b)(7) L--.. 

voucher dated un 8/07 ,<CJ said that subsequent to her request for more specificity 
~b)(6) (b)(7)(C) , , 

on the voucherL approached her and_sa1d that he " aY-.h 1e made a mistake on 
l · h "h · d' 1 d · R~><G><t>><1> ·a h (b)(6) Id h h h d·a 11s vouc er y me u mg o gmg costs.e_ sat t a to er t at e 1 not 
incur lodging costs, but stayed with friends. He said that the o1eLc >sts wen:! · ncurr.e '- (b)(6) (b)(7) (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
a different trip for which he had not yet submitted a voucher <cl informe ___ __, 

that he would need to detennine the dates in which he incurred lodging costs and 
resubmit his voucher(s) as well as reimburse USAID for any claimed costs that he was 

'd ti h h d.d . r. . T d (b)(G)(b)(7XC) h b . d pai or t at e 1 not m 1act mcur. o ate as not su m1tte any new or 
revised vouchers or attempted to reimburse USAlD. (Attachment #1, Information 
Report) 

01/13/08: The RA and Special Ag <t>><?><c> interviewed(bXG><b><7>cc> 
(b)(6).(bX7)(C) - - . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) . , . [Cb)(6) (b) 

USAID/Cmro said she ts the t1mekeepe_r fo~c 7><C> office and 
h h . k • h . d h d ti (b)(6) (bX l)(t;J • d 

t at t e time eep u SYstet as rername unc ange or many years. rev1ewe . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . 
the t1mesheets fo (b~x7xc> enods #20-22 with the agents. reviewed the 
timesheets and agreed tha is only shown as taking 40 hours of leave during 
payer period #22. She recalled that he had been in the United State o attend.a b)(6) (bX7xCJ 
workshop. She agreecLthaLthe time sheets did not accurately reflec c1u~~-CbX6> (bX7)(C) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
time and attendance. said that she never received any information a ou .,_ ___ _ 
being on R&R_t avel and did not receive any SF-71s for any other leave during that . f(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) , (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) . , , 
period said tha hasieoeatedlv been untimely with his SF-71 . "'---:"'" (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) - j 
subm1ss1ons. (Attacltment #2, MO/ o _j 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
01/13/08: The_RAjnte iewe xaminer, (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
USAIDlCair.o. provided the RA with copies of T AfoLthe entire 

L b)(7)(C) . (b)(6)(b)(7XC) 
year. spcc1fically reviewed pay period #20~22 and stated tha took a , (b)(6)(~X7XC) 

total of 4 hours of sick leave and 40 hours of annual leave. also noted that there 



R 0 I (bX6) (OX7XC) 

01/13/08- 01114/08 

have been no amendments made to the T &A after the initial submission. (A tt11cl1me11t 
#), JlfO/ O <OX6l(OX7l(Cl 

01L1AL08: The RA and Assistant Special Agent in Chargd<oXG)<ox7xc, :J interviewed 
<oXG)<ox

7
xci He confirmed that he departed Egypt on October 101h or I J1h, 2007 to attend an 

-~c_o_n-om_.1c Growth Workshop in Washington, D.C. in coajunction with his scheduJed 
R&R travel. He said his family departed post with himf~~hey stayed aLaJiiend's 
h . R v· . . C; b . . h' h (b < x > I_ (b)(6) (bX7> d ouse rn eston, 1rg1ma. ALter su mtttmg 1s vouc e L ,contacte <CJ an 
reported that he mistakenlY.J?ut down~oteL xpenses on his voucher when he had stayed . (bX6) (bX7XC) . (OX6)(bX7) , . 
at a fnend's house said tha cci was suooosed to get back to him and advise (bX6HbX7J 
what he should do. o date,"he has not heard from<ci and has not attempted to 

h e XG)(bX7XC) , · d fi d f · d ·d h fi · · contact er ..,j c atme 1ve ays o lodging expenses an sa.i econ used this tnp 
with a previous trip to Wailiinfilon D.C. in July 2007 in which he did claim lodging (b)(6).(b)(7XC) ~ 

expenses and per diem claims he submitted an SF-71 for annual leave during 
the time he was to be on R&R status. He did not submit an SF-71 for sick leave or 
fantily leave act after returning to Cairo for the time he ~~Wf~fiu In 
said he did not think to do it. (Attac/ime11t #5, M~OI oft 

efe_ndantsLSusoects: !OX6) (bXiXCl 

Undeveloped Leads: 
None 

L----~~ 

USA ID/Cairo 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 
There are no items in evidence 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

his ill children. He 

This matter will be referred to USAID Human Resources for appropriate administrative 
action. 



Attachments: 

(bX7)(CJ 

1. 01/13/08, Information Re ort by (Serial #5) 
2. 01/13/08, MOI o i~\(6).(b)(?J by S (bX?Xc> Serial #2) 

3. 01/13/08, MOI o by A l(Serial #1) 
4. 01/14/08, MOI o l~~~/b1 b S (b)(?XC) CS'erial #3) 
5. 01/14/08, MOI o <bX

6
J(b)(?)(c> by SA (b)(?XC) (Serial #4) 

:'.a.I!. 
(bX6).(b)(7)(CJ 

RO (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

0 l /13/08 - 01114/08 



 



U.S. AG.ENCY FOR INTl.llNATION.AL DKVEWPMMT 
OFnCE OF INsncroR GENU.AL 

INVEmGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVF.Sl'IGATION 

l<bX6) (bX7XCr=) 

Cloted 
Amended 05/17110 

Thia is 1111 mDCDC!mai• to the Report of lnvll$tiplion (ROI) tot 1be period 0 l/l l/Ol 10 
Otn 4/08. See rcfamced ROI for "Synopli,.• 

Si.nu the 1111 ROI, 1his ce1e wu pr1*tMd (b)(S).(bl!7XCl A'8illlal Unil.ed Sbdial 
Allmley (AUSA)1 ~JL~'s Office (USAO) ia W~ D.C., IU aimimJ 
~ AUS'1jbX~l(b) 1nm.-ilbetxaoftlilc*Cllld~llrimiMI 
JrOIDCl!imuinr:& ~ ldim t.i abady bcm 11ka1 _;...J(bX6) (bX7XCJl 

a-<bX6) (bX7XC) lJSAIDICCro, 8lld ftllllulioa-~:~~~ll (b) ~ 
USAIDID' _.orll,325.00. 

'usAID/Cairo. 

lJ1MlcYdoped Lftde: 
None. 

~ oflvWe-, Ceatnbu!I orP--.l.Pnpcr1y: 
Thrn 1rt .DO Items iA evidcm%. 

- (bX6) (b)(7)(C) !llodll~ 
........., (bX6) (bX7XC) 

na_.,..,_,,,.,oe..ca.,._. _ _._ .. ...,_ .. .,.... __ 
...--.. --11..-.-....... 11--"*'ll.l.ClllL 

NR 

NR 

NR 



J~DllAd••lehtin Acdom: 
l ~~S)(b) lueiml 145-<lay suspcnsioo effective May 7, 2009 from the USAID 

~f Hllllllll RcM>'ftb'irs> (bl 
2. R.esliwtion wu made b (J C) US AID in~ &moUDt ofS I ,325.00. 

Attada•aCI: (bX6J (b) 
I . 05/17/10 email &om AUS~ oclWng pro9CCution. 

' 
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U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFF1CE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
Status: 
Period of Investigation: 

Synopsis: 

l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Completed 
06/09/11 to 9/07/11 

C N b 
[l(b)(6) (b)(7)(CJ 

ase um er:1 -------
OIG/I Office: Baghdad, Iraq 

The U.S. Department of State, Regional Security Office (RSO) in the U.S. Embassy in Baghdad 
joined the investig · <bR~) oreign Service National (FSN) translator assigned to the RSO's 
office telephoned th <Cl Pharmacy at the telephone number listed on the invoice submitted by 

(b)(G)(b)(l) b th rdi . . . kin ber Th l th h keel 
<Cl ut ere was a r~ 1ng stating 1t is a non-wor::i: . e trans ator en c ec 

some pnces claimed b (c) with another harmac harmacy, in the International 
• l(b)( ) (b)( )l . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

Zone, and found th~i~i~~<,l es c aimed b 1l~~~tl ;on the vouc er were higher. A comparison of 
charges claimed bj(c) against prices obtained from pharmacies in Baghdad revealed that 

(b)(6).(b)(7) ~ • 
(C) overcharged uSAID/Iraq approxnnately $2,385. 

B eel "d b . ed d . thi . . . th RSO d "ded k (b)(G).<bx
7xq as on eYI ence o tam unng s mvestigation, e ect to revo ...._ __ _, 

security clearance and have him escorted from the U.S. Embassy. According to a U.S. 
Department of Justice' s policy at the U.S. Embassy in Baghdad, law enforcement officers cannot 
interview FSN Iraqis unless the Iraqi govemm~UtJ tified through a diplomatic note. Because 
of this policy, the RSO decided not to interview.i~~~r) because it would delay his interview and 
could risk his lifi(b~G)(b)(l)(C) outside the embassy knew that he works for the U.S. government. On 
August 11, 2011 security clearance was revoked and he was escorted from the embassy. 

--=...,..........._..._.,...--=--------1(bX7)(C) 
REPORT MADE BY: Nllllt 

Slp.t]'°'"" 
Name: 

SlgDa 

Date Slped: 11/17111 

Al'PJlOVING OFFICIAL: 



=~"""""--~aae (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

Period: 06/09/11 to 9107111 

f (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) I (b)(6)(b) • • 
On September 6, 201 l; reported thatt1xq subrrutted a voucher m M~ 2011 for 

. $ . . . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (b) 
reunbursement of 925 m orthodontic expenses for his son ntacted <7XC) to 
advise him that USAID will issue a bill for coll C<tion for the $925 paid because his son was not 
lO O •th him b "th 1..~A •I:. Th I:. (b)(G),(b)(

7
) o led thi 1vmg wt ut W1 ~ ex-W11e. ere1ore (C) was not enb.t to s payment. 

Detalh of Investigation: 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(6).(b)(7) 

On June 9, 2011 · and <Cl met with the RA to report allegations of 
h fraud . <1>xs>.<bx

1> /:. h . USAID/Iraq /:. edi . . . d vouc er agams cc> 1or overc arging 1or m cme,,Rrescn tlons an a 
cardiac t est that he claimed on a voucher dated May 16, 2011 . To 'llerinl~b)(GJ.(b>< 7xq edical claims, 

(bJcsJ.cb><
7
J(C) instructed one of his local staff to call a pharmacy wher~~~> <t>> claimed he bought his 

medicines and the medical terJ ere he claimed he bad a cardiac te . It was determined that 
fa 1 har 1 (b)(6).(b)(7) l . ed hi h the ci ities c ess <c> c 81m on s vou.c er. (.Attacl:mte. ttt 1 - Memorandum of 

Interview (b)(6) (bX7J(C) an~(bX6J.cbx1xq I 

(b)(6) .(b) 

On July 11, 2011, the RA prepared a chart com~g the medical charges claimed byE and 
the prices obtained from local Iraqis ph aciesJ~~i(bl\o'ler.char ed USAID/Iraq approxunately 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) • • • 
$2,385. (Atta.chment 3- Chart Comparln . ed1cal Claims wUh Prices 
Obtain from Iraqi Pharmacies) 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

On August 11, 2011 security clearance was revo~Jnr_the_RS ursuant to his 
. . (fr d 1 ed' al h US ID/Ir (b)(G).(b)(l)(C) • proviStd o ~u u ent m 1c vouc ers to A aq ASStstant RSO, 

(b)(6).(b) ~ . • 
escort mcc_> _ outs1de the U.S. Embassy. (Attachment 4- Memorandum of .Activity-Escorting 

e sJ(bJ<lXC) ]out of the U.S. Embassy) 

On A 11 2011 th RA 
(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) d ed . . f(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) j k N 

ugust , , e an con uct an inspection o ' or area. o 
indication of phannacy recei ts created b){f~~~t> JWas found. On August 14, 2011, the RA 

· ed and· (b)(s).(b)(l) 1 k h d dri and ·1 N . d. . f review inspect <Cl Lwo computer ar ve e-ma1 account o m 1catton o 
(b)(6),(b) 

phannacy receipts created b (7xci was found. 

r )(6).(b)(7)(C) I (b)(6)(b) 
On September 6, 2011 !reported that<7J(C) submitted a voucher in Ma}'. 2011 for 
reimbursement of $925 in orthodontic expenses for his son~<bxe> <bX

7
l<CJ ]contacted i~ 

advise him that USAlD would issue a bill for collection for the $925 because his son was not 



(b)(6) (bX7l(CJ 

Period: 06/09/11 to 9/07/11 

I. . 0 th him b 0 th hi .. .:~ Therefore (bXSl.(b) 't}ed thi ivmg wt ut wt s ex-wue. ,<7lcci was not enti to s payment. 
(.AttacluMnt 5- Memorandum of Interview [ii>xs).(bXlJ<Cl 

~------

Subject/Defendant/Suspect: 

r )(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Penonal Property: 

NIA 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

On August 11, 2011, the RSO revok 
(b)(6).(bX7)(CJ 

security clearance. 

Attach.menu: 

en Memo dum of Interview -t .. (b-)(6-)(b-)(7-)(C- ) ---------~I and (b)(6),(b)(7XCl 

Cbl<6J(b)(7J(Cl~t 'if!ll . 

(2) E-Mail fro~).(b)(l)(C) & Attachmen dated 6/20/11 
(3) Chart Com · (b)(S)(b)(

7
>(C> Medical Claims with Prices Obtain from Iraqi 

Phannacies, dated 7/11/11 
(4) Memorandwn of Activity- Escorting_1

_<b_x
6
_>.<b_x

7
_xc_> ----~!Out of the U.S. Embassy, 

dated 8111/11 
(5) Memorandum of Interview -~l<bx_6)_.<b_x7_xc_) ____ ]dated 9/6111 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: l(b)(6}.(b)(7)(C) Case Number: i~<bx_s_i <b_xr_xc_i ---~ 
Status: Complete 
Period of Investigation: 06/26/09 to 9/27 /09 OIG/I Office: RIG/Cairo 

Synopsis: 

(b)(6) .(b)(7)(C) 
On June 25, 2009 USAID/Suda reported that USAID/Sudan 

~(b)(S}(b)(7)(C} n . - n may have submitted a fraudulent travel voucher 
by falsely claiming lodging costs at thd <bxsi<bxrxc> otel and Suites in Nairobi, Kenya. l<bxsi .<bxrxci I 
stated th.at while he was reviewing~xricc> traxeLv_o_u~her dated February 28, 2009, he noticed 

(b}(6}.(b)(7}(C) • f(b)(6},(b}(7}(C) • 
tha had at~ched two receipts from th Hotel & Suttes to the voucher. The 
recejots_w.ete for 393;750 Kenyan shillings (valued at approximately $5,180.92 USD) indicating 

(b}(6}.(b)(7)(C} • • 
tha mcurred lodg.m costs from October 9, 2008 through November 2, 2008. 
According to(bJ(S}.(b)(

7
xc> since <bxs>.<b>(

7
)(C} iWife and children were living in USAID·paid housing in 

Nairobi and if he resided with them while detailed to Nairobi, he would not be entitled to 
reimbursement for lodging. 

Th . . . red .de th (b)(S),(b)(
7
)(C) b . ed fi . . lod . . ( l ed e mvestigatlon uncove ev1 nee a su rrutt 1ct1t1ous gmg receipts va u 

at $4,3 78.00 USO) in support of a fraudulent travel voucher dated February 28, 2009. 
S ifically, the investi _ ation revealed that from January 2006 through September 2008, 

<bX
5
HbX

7
>cc> served as (b)(S)(b)(

7
)(c> assigned to USAID in Juba, Sudan. His family lived 

in USAID-paid housing in Nairobi, Kenya during his assignment. On September 14, 2008, his 
employment status changed from Fellow to US direct hire but his duty station was still in Juba, 
Sudan. He was sent to Wa-;hington, DC in a temporary duty status for consultations and 
swearing in. However, his family remained in the same residence in Nairobi through November 
2008. Upon completion of his travels to Washington, he was detailed to Nairobi from October 8, 
2008 through October 31, 2008, to await his National Security Decision Directive - 38 approval. 
During his detail, he lived in the USAID-paid housing with his family. (b)(S}.(bl<

7
l(Cl later submitted 

the aforementioned travel voucher, which included the un-incurred lodging costs, to 
USAID/Sudan for payment. 

(b)(6),(b)(7)(C} 
REPORT MADE BY: Namel (bX6).(b)(7}(C) 

I 
Dace s1g7aec1: 09/29109 

Sii:utun: 

:J(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6)(b)(7) 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: N•mc (C} I D•kS~ed: 10/01Al9 
Signature: 

(b)(6),(bX7)(C) 



P e2 
(bX6J (bX7XCJ :J 

Period: 06/26/09 to 9/27 /09 

During his interview with the OIG~7xci verified that the signatme on the voucher dated 
0 I hi H 'd th . . all h d'd h 1 d . . b (bXS)(b)(lXCJ I ld h' 2 28/09 was s. e sa1 at ongm y e 1 not attac o gmg receipts, u to 1m 
that he had to provide documentation for housing in order to claim lod in . He talked to his 
wife and told her that they needed to have a receipt for lodging. b)(S> (bXlXCJ stated that he 
. d hi '&'. t'.-I. • fr (bXS)(b)(l)(C) H I d s . ( lod . l . mstructe s w11e to create a iCU\.e receipt o ote an wtes a gmg ocat1on 
where he and his family previously stayed when they first arrived in Kenya in 2005) which he 
submitted with his voucher. He acknowledged that what he did was wrong and stated that he 
"really screwed up". 

The case was presented to the United States Attorney's Office in the District of Columbia and 
was accepted for prosecution. 

Details of Investigation: 

(bX6) (bX7XC) (bX6> (b)(7XCJ 
On June 25, 2009L re orted that may have submitted a fraudulent travel 
voucher. He estimated tha•<bXS><bXlXCJ claimed approximately $5,180.22 in lodging from October 
9, 2008 through October 31, 2008 while on TDY in Nairobi, Kenya. (b)(S)(b)(lXC> stated that during 
th afi . d d USAID . &'. h . fi (bXS><bx,xci ' d h'ld . e orementione ates, . ,,was_na~ g lOr ousmg o w1 e an c t ren m 

, , • 1(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Nauob1. (Attachment 1 - E-Mai/J dated 06115109) 

, , b)(6) (bX7) i(bX6}(b)(7)(C) ' • 
On June 26, 2009, the RA interview cq who stated that ay have submIUed a 
fraudulent voucher. According to,<bxs>cbx,xc> ]claimed lodging for a hotel in Nairobi that 
d'd . In dd' . USAID . ti &-. ha: h . fi ITT>xs><bXlXCJ .fi d 1 not exisl a 1t1on, was paying or sa1e ven ousm or . w1 e an 
children in Nairobi. (Attachment 2 - Memorandum of lnterview1<bxs> <bx,xci dated 06116/09) 

On June 27, 2009, the RA reviewe (bXSHbX
7

><C> travel voucher dated February 28, 2009 and its 
hm Th . I d th (b)(S)(b)(l)(C) 1 . d f'A 378 00 . l d . ti attac ents. c review revea e a c aime .ft, . m o gmg expenses or 

official travel to Nairobi, Kenya from October 9 through October 31, 2008. However, he 
attached two receipts dated October 9 thr~ November 2, 2008 and November 5 through 

• i(b)(6) !bX7XCJ • November 10, 2008, respectively, from~ _ . Hotel & Swtes. The RA researched the hotel on 
the intemet_but was not able to find J bXSJ<bXlXC) otel & Su.ites in Nairobi. However, the RA 
l d i(bX6)(bXlXC) IA 'th d'" ddr th h th lod . . th ocate a partments W1 a 111erent a ess an t e one on e gmg receipts . at 

(bX
6

HbXlXCJ submitted with his travel voucher. (Attachment 3- Memorandum of Records Review 
for Travel Voucher, Attachments, and internet research dated 06127109) 

0 J l 13 2009 th RA 
. . d' [!bX6) (b)(7)(C) J th (b)(6),(b)(7XCJ pb)(6) (b)(7)(C) I 

n u y , , e mtery1e~_ lf partrnents l . 
vb nfi d th th • (b)(S) (b)(l)(C) h d d b ' d . h h' l .._h ___ _. \ o co mne at e rece1p attac e an su m1tte wit ts trave vouc er were 

not issued b~X7)(C) Apartments. (Attachment 4-Memorandum of Interviewt:><bXl><C> J 

dated 07113109) 

On Jul 14 2009 the RA intervicwed~1xc> General Services Office (GSO) 
(bX6)(bx1xq ct'(bX6><bx1xq who stated that USAID paid 
for safe haven housing tor <bXS)(ox,xci family through September 30, 2008. The GSO made 
arrangements to allow <oxs> <ox,xc> and his family to live in the house until October 31, 2009 



aite 3] 
CbX6) CbX7XCl -

Period: 06/26/09 to 9/27 /09 

without havinjt to pay rent for October 2008. (Attachment 5- Memorandum of Interview, E CbX
7

XC) dated 07114109) 

(bX6) 
On July 14, 2009, the RA interviewed USAID/Kenya who stated 
that beginning in January 2006, USAID made payments td b)(S)(bXlXC> for the housing for his wife 
and children. However, beginning in January 2008, USAID aid GSO who then paid the rent to 
the Landlord. (Attachment 6- Memorandum of Jntervi.ew~l~~s b 

1
> dated 07114109) 

On July 28, 2009,<bl<S><bXl)(C) J confirmed that from October 9 through November 2 2008, and 
from November 5 through November 10, 2008, (b)cs> (b)<lXC> was not a tenant o <bxs, <bX

7
l<C=.J 

• • l(bj{6) (bX7)(C) 
Apartments. (Attachment 7-E-Mazlfrom · dated 7128109) 

~-' 

On August 17. 2009, the RA received a copy o (bXS><bXlXC> criminal history records from OIG 
r S)(b)(

7
XC) (bXS)(bX7XC) The fCCOJdS rcV~}ed that On two OCCasionS i<bXS)(bX7XC) 

lead . ty to misaemeanor theft charges. (Attachment a rXS)(b)(l)(C) lcriminaJ History from 
:~~S) (bX7J dated 08117/09) 

On September 18, 2009, the RA, interviewe( xsl<bX
7

l<C> ] verified his signature on a 
travel voucher dated February 28, 2009, which the RA showed to him. He admitted that he 
instructed his wife to make a fake hotel receipt, because he was told that he had to submit 
"something" to get paid lodging. He acknowledged that what he did was wrong and stated that 
he "reall screwed up". He stated that he did not want to defraud the U.S. Govenunent. 

<bX
5
H

0
X

7
XCl voluntarily provided a signed written statement. (Attachment 9- Memorandum of 

/nterviewf<bXS)(bXlXC) dated 09118109) 

On September 18, 2009 (bXS>(bX
7
xq voluntarily provided a written statement whereby he admitted 

that he did not stay in a hotel why on TDY to Nairobi. He said that when he was "asked for an 
invoice against my time in Nairobi, I produced an invoice that was not for the housing we used, 
but something my wife made". (Attachment JO- Written Statement (b)(S)CblC

7
XC> dated 09118109) 

• • (bX6)(bX7XC) ed US l<oX6) (bX7XC) On Se tember 18, 2009, Spec1aJ Agent m Charge contact AUSfti 
(bX6)(bX7XCJ t'. • f . . (b)(6) (bX7XC) ~7XC) 
~-~'or an oral presentation o the case mvolvm SAC ___ _ _, 
explained that the OIG initiated an investigation that uncovered evidence that USAID employee 

(bXS)(bXlXC) submitted fictitious lodging recer pts valued at $4,378.00 USO) in support of a 
fraudulent travel voucher dated February 28, 2009. cbxs>cbx

7
xq evaluated the facts provided to him 

and accepted the case for federal criminal prosecution. (Attachment 11 - Memorandum of 
Conversation ~bx1,:c']dated 09118109) 

Defendants/Sus ects: 
(bX6) (bX7XC) 

USAID/Sudan (bXS> <bXlXC> 
.._-~-----~~-

Juba, Sudan 



i<bJ(6)(b)(7XC> faite3] 

Period: 06/26/09 to 9127 /09 

Undeveloped Leads: 
None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 
NIA 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 
On September 18, 2009, the case was referred to and accepted for federal prosecution by the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) in the District of Columbia. 

On September 29, 2009, the DOJ "May West" letter was provided to the Office of Security. 

The case will be referred to the Office of Human Resources. 

Attachments: 

(1) E-Mail fro1 (b)(S).(b)(lJ(C) dated 7125/09 
(2) Memorandum of Interview (b)(S).(b)(?XC) dated 7126109 
(3) Memorandwn of Records Review - Travel Voucher, Attachments and internet research 

on <bXs>.<bJ(lXC> Hotel & Suites dated 6/27 /09 
( 4) Memorandum of Interview r l?""'>is==> (b=-

111
,,,,,,xc==> ==="lda=te,,,,d,__,7C!.../~13/09 

(5) Memorandum of lnterview (bJ(G).(b~(~c> d.ated 7/14/09 
( 6) Memorandwn of Interview <bxs>.<b><7XC> dated 7/14/09 
(7) E-Mail frorr.txs> <bX?><C> ,dated 7 /28/09 
(8t >15><bX])(C) I criminal history from ~~s)(bX7> dated 8/17/09 
(9) Memorandum of Interview (b)(GJ.(b><1>1C> dated 9118/09 
( 10) Written Statement (b)(G).(b><7>1C> dated 09/18/09 
(11) Memorandum of Conversation {b)(s).(b)(lXCJ dated 9/18/09 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
l(b)(6).(b)!7XC) Case Number: I ~<bx_s>_<b_><1>_<CJ ___ ~ 

Status: 
Period of Investigation: 

Synopsis: 

Closed (Amended) 
09'28/09 to 9/14/10 OIGII Office: RIG/Cairo 

This is an amendment to the la,,t Report of Investigation for the period 6126/09 to 9/27 /00. 

On December 14, 2009, an employee for the U.S. Embass in Kenya was terminated as a result 
of the OIG investig~on. On April 7, 2010, (bJ(SJ.(b)(lJ(C) formet)<bXS><bXl><CJ ] 

(b)(S> <b><
7

><C> USAID/Sudan, pleaded guilty to one count of making a false statement on official 
certificates or writings in violation of Title 18 USC § 1018. On July 29, 2010, (b)(s> <bXl><C> was 
sentenced to one...ycar probation. This case is closed. 

Details of Inveatigation: 

On September 29, 2009, a referral letter with an attached of a U.S. Department of Justice 
(DOJ) reverse-proffer letter (aka. "Mae West" letter) <bxs><bXlXC> provided to the USAID 
Office of Security (SEC). (Attaclunent 1 - Referral utter to USAJDISEC) 

On September 30, 2009, SEC immediately suspen.cie<(<bl<S><bX
7xq """"""lsecurity clearance until the 

allegations of submitting a fraudulent travel voucher containing fictitious lodging recei was 
resolved sufficiently. (Attachment 2 -SEC Secllrity Clearance Suspension Letter (b)(s).(bJ!

7
Xc> 

REPORT MADE BY: 

Al'PllOVING omCIAL: Nuae: 
Slplmre: 

.. , j . . 



Period: 09128/09 to 9/14/10 

and the billing official was listed ~ ... :(b-)(G-)(b_l<7_xc_> ____ J (Attachment 3 -Memorandum of 
Meeting in ksponse to "Mae West" Letter) 

RbX6)(bX7XC) I 
On October22, 20091 USAID Foreign Service Personnel, issued a job 
termination letter to<bX6Hbx7xq effective November 22, 2009. (Attachment' - Job Termination 
letterfoJ~ 

On November 30, 2009, the RA interviewe~b)(6)(b><7xq USAID/Keny <bX5><bx1xcl =1 
who stated that he allowe (b)(SJ(b)(7)(~and his family to say in the USAID- id house until the end 
of October 200 and that he did not have any intentions_Jo make<bXSl <bX7l<C> to pay for the October 
2008 (b)(6) (b)(7XC) furth tated that b all ' fCbX6) (b)(7)(C) l' . th afi .,; ed h rent er s y owm o 1ve m . e oremen~on ouse, 
the U.S. Government would not lose any funds because it was already paid one year in advance. 

:~~5l<bX7> ted this was a iud2Jllent decision and made reference to 15 FAM 247, "Surrender of 
Residential Quarters.,, :~r> (b)(

7
) also stated the BFC did not look right to him because there were 

USAID funds involved an e 1s the only USAID representative who would sign BFCs for the . fi (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
agency. (Attachment S -Memorandum of Interview ori ----
On November 30, 2009. the RAinterviewp.tff<bX6l<bx7xci I 

_-.~b)(6).(b)(7)(C) , -..___ . . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) ~""=--o---' 
DOS, who stated tha _ Jlid not have the authonty to issue a BFC. Jfurther 
stated that he would review the BFC and would provide the RA with a written report of bis 
conclusions. (Attachment 6 - Memorandum of Interview /o~<bX6> (bX7

XC) i 

l(bX6)(bX7XCl 
On December 2, 2009, the RA interviewed 

(bX6) (b)(7)(C) afi . d . 
DOS/GSO, who stated that asked her to type the orementione BFC. AccordinE-tQ 

<bX5><b><7xc> she was suspicious abou (b)(6)(bX7xc> and the BFC but she did not report it to'<bX6><bX7xc) ] 
because she was ven: concerned about losing her job. :~»(6) (b)( 7

) stated that she would forward 
emails fro l!b)(6J(b)(7>(C) related to the BFC. (Attachment 7 - Memorandum of Interview for (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

On December 2, 2009, the RA received a written report fro l!bX
6

><bX
7
xq 

1 

where he concluded that 
f b)(6) (b)(7)(c) )did not have the authority to authorize the aforementioned BFC. (bX6> (bx 7xc) further 

concluded that the BFC was falsified and_mLo file with GSO, Financial Management Office, 
USAID or DOS cashiers. In addition (bX6> <bx

7
xc) eportcd that the lease for the USAID-paid 

house was paid in advance for a full year by the U.S. Government at the time in question. 
(Attachment 8- Written Report b/x6><bJ(7xc~ 

On_De_~mber 2, 2009, the RA interview l(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 1 s AJ(b)(5)(b)("'i)(C) 
(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) ]was present during the interview (b)(6)(b)(

7)(C) _first stated that he had the authority 

to produce the BFC but after being confronted by the RA, he then admitted that he had no such 
authori and that (bX6> <bx7xc) asked for his help to get him out of trouble. (bX6) <bx7xc> further stated 
tha <bX6l (bX7)(C> provided him with copiesJof expenditures to be included in e rFC. When the 
. . SA(b)(6)(bX7)(C) ad • (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) ----~ .. t..-• his . 'fi . h d be 
mtemew was over, vi 1wm secunty certJ ication a en 
revoked by his office because lie mowingly falsified the BFC in an attempt to conceal a matter 
being investigated by a U.S. Government Federal agency. SAi<bX6l<bx7xc> and the RA proceeded 

/ 

., 

' 1,, • . r • ; 

(,' . 



Page3 
~(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) =1 

Period: 09/28/09 to 9/14/10 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
to escorti outside the U.S. Embassy. (Attachment 9 - Memorandum of Interview and 
Written Statement (b)(s) (bXlXCJ 

{b)(6),(b)(7) (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
On December 2, 2009 <CJ forwarded to the RA an email fro which included 
another email wh <bXS) (b)(l)(C) instructed(b)(SJ (b)(lJ<CJ what infonnation to write on the BFC. 
(Attachment 10-Emailfrom (b)(S).(b)(lXCJ 

On December 14, 2009, the U.S. Embassy in Kenya terminated(b)(S><bX?)(CJ !employment 

because his security certification was revoked by the RSO and for unsatisfactory job 
pe.rfonnance as a result of false statements and misrepresentation. (Attachment 11 - Notice of 
T' • • ·"E 1 nJfi (bX6J.(bJ(7)(CJ 
.1. emunatiOn OJ mpioyme o ...._ ___ __ 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
On January 15, 2010.,~ AUS~ extended a plea agreement to (Attachment 12-n• A tfi 1<bl(6).(b)(7)(C) c1ea greemen or 

'----------' 

On March 15, 2010, AUS (b)(SJ(b}(lJCCJ filed a criminal lnfonnation chargin <b><S>.Cbl(lXCJ for one 

count of making a false statement on official certificates or writings in violation of Title 18 USC 
§1018. On March 24, 2010 lbXS>.<bX?xc> [l:Jleaded guilty to the charge. (Attachment 13-
lnformation flied by A USA,(b)(S) lbXlxc> I 
On April 17, 2010, a referral was forwarded to the USAID Office of Acquisition and Assistance 

. . '(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) ~-· 
(OAA) infonrung them 0£ plea. (Attachment 14 -Referral to OAA) 

On July 29, 2010 (b}(6).(b)(7)(C) d b . I' ,4 h 15 (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
was sentence to one-year pro ation. "'·1.ttac ment 

Sentencing) 
~-~ 

Defendants/Suspects: 

bX6l b)(7)(C) 

USAID/Su 
Juba, Sudan 

(bX6) (bX7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None. 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

NIA 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

1. On December 14, 2009rx
6
l.<bX

7
><ci I an employee for the U.S. Embassy in Kenya 

was terminated as a result of the OIG investigation. 



Pa e4 (b)(6),(b)(7XC) 

Period: 09128/09 to 9/14/10 

2. On October 22, 2009J~<b_X6>_.<b_><7_xc_> --~]received a Job Termination letter effective 
November 22, 2009. 

3. On March 24, 2010,(b)(Sl<b>(?)(C) pleaded guilty to one count of making a false statement on 
official certificates or writings in violation of Title 18 USC §1018 as filed by DOJ in a 
criminal lnfonnation. 

4. On July 29, 201 o,l<bxs>.<b)(?Xc>'"lwas sentenced to one~year probation. 

Attachments: 

1. Referral Letter to USAID/SEC. 
2. SEC Security Clearance Suspension Letter torbxs).(bJ(?XC) 
3. Memorandum ofMeetin in Res nse to "Mae West" Letter. 
4. Job Termination letter fo (bJcs).(b)(?XCJ 
5. Memorandum of Interview fo <bxs>.<bJ(?XCJ 
6. Memorandum of Interview fo 
7. Memorandum of Interview fo 
8. Written Report by (bXs>(bX?><C> >------~ 

9. Memorandum of Interview and Written Statement r xs).(bJ(?XCJ 
IO. Email fro (bX6).(bX7xc> 
11. Notice of T ennination of Em lo ent rotj<bXS) (bX?)(C) 
12. Plea Agreement fo (b)(s>.<b)(?)(C) 

(bX6).(b)C7XC) 
13. lnfonnation filed by AUS 
14. Referral to OAA. 
15 (bJ(6).(b)C7XCJ S t . .....__ __ ~ en encmg. 

._ __ _ ,_. 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
(b)(6) (b)(7XC) 

C N be 
lfli"X6l (b)(7XCl ue um r: _ _ _ _ ____, 

Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 11/22/09 to 6/9/10 OIG/I Office: RIG/Cairo 

Synopsis: 
l(bXSJ (bX7XC) 

On 11122/09: SAID/E t Office of Financial 
Mana ement OFM), informed the reporting Agent (RA) tha <bXSJ.(bX

7xC> USAID/E~t 
(bXS) (bX7XC) • "'"'t ha bmitted fraudul t tra: I h A d. t (b)(S) (b)(7)(C) 

m.i~ ve su a en :ve vouc er. ccor mg 
~ri(bxJused l<bJ(S).(b>(

1
xcf}totel business card as a lodging receipt to claim two nights lodging at 

$80 per night for a to1al of $160. The back of the aforementioned_card_read, "Received tow over 
nite for $160." It was also dated October 4, 2009, ands· ed. (b)(S)(bX

7xC> added that 
USAID/Egypt/OFM was unable to verify whether or no! > (bX

7
> actually stayed at the <oxs> (bX

7
xc> 

Hotel. 
\bX6)(bX7J 

During his intervieW!(c) denied the allegation and insisted that he paid $160 in cash for two 
'gh th [!b)(S) (bX

7
XC) M I . N y k b unabl b . h . Se eral m ts at e ote tn ew or ut was e to o tain a cas receipt v 

attempts by ifieRA to verify whether or no1i1i~(sJ (b)(
7
) sta ed at th (bJ(SJ.(b)(?J(C) Mo~ via the business 

card teL h b ful (bX6) (bX7)(C) USAID/E t (bX6) (bX7)(C) 
, P one nwn er, were unsuccess . £YPt 

(b)(6) (bX7)(C) al bl to erify heth ti(bX6).(b)(7) ta ed t :i: ibX6) (bX7)(C) H tel d was so una e v w er or no 
1
(c) s y a u1e o an 

disallowed the use of the business card as a lodging receipt with OFM's concurrence. 

This ~ is closed. 

Details of Investigation: 

(bX6) (b)(7XC) ed (DX6J (bX7l • • 
On 11/22/09 report that<c> might have submitted a fraudulent travel voucher 

h _ \... b · .. -~ (bX6)(bX7XCl 1, , . ) b . d lod • • t (bX6J(b)(7XC) t .. ..,.d that 
w ell.ile_su mILw.u JMOte usmess_~ as a guig recetp . Swm; 

E .(b)(
7

)(C) . USAID/Egypt/FM, called th <bXGJ(b)(?XC) Motel 
• • • (bX6)\bX7) , b 6 b 7 • and although no spemfic information o ~c> as given, she was told th ~c~ > ( x , might not 

REPORT MADE BY: Name: Date Slpcd: 6116110 

Sipatan:: 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 



Pa e2 (bX6) (bX7XC) 

Period: 11/22/09 to 6/09/10 

have stayed at their motel because they would never issue a business card as a lodging receipt . (b}(6) (b}(7XC) 
(Attachment 1 - Memorandum of Interview fo 

. . (bX6) (bX7XC) . 
On 11122/09, the RA mterviewe Voucher Examiner, USAID/Egypt/OFM, who 
stated ~>,<5><b>< 7> quested his assistance to fill out his travel voucher covering the period, 
10/2/09 through 10/17/09, when he attended a defensive driver training program in Washington, 
D.C., and in Richmond, Virginia. According t~<bXG><bX7Kci claimed two nights for rest stops . . f(b)(6) (b)(7) . (bX6l (b)(7) . . 
in Queens Villa e, New York.lie> advise cc> that he could only chum one rn~ht.__In 
ddit. (b)(6),(b)(7) ub "tted th (b)(6},(b)(7XC) M t l b . ard l dg" . t (b)(S},(b)(7XC) 

a 1on <c> s m1 o e usmess c as a o mg rece1p ·-----
claimed that he paid $160 in cash for two nights at the aforementioned motel and that he could 
not obtain a lodging receipt because it was too earl in the morning when he left. (Attachment 2 
- Memorandum of Interview for (bXGJ<bXlXC> ,_ ____ ___. 

On 11122109, the RA interviewed<bXS><bXlXC> 
1

who stated that she contacted the <bXS><bXlXC> 
Motel and was told that no information about their guests could be given. However, after<bXS><bx7xc> 

. ed bo (bXS)(bX7> . th . b . d lod • . he ld tha th explain a ut<c> usmg eu usmess car as a gmg receipt, s was to t ey 
b . d 1 d . . d th t'. l(b}(S) (b}(7) . h d would never use a usmess car as a o gmg receipt an ere1ore <C> Illl t not ave staye . . (b}(6) (bX7XC) . 

at their motel. (Attachment 3 - Memorandum of Interview for 

l<b)(6).(b)(7)(C) , . . 
On 12/14/09, the RA contacted the Motel via telephone and asked to speak with a 
supervisor but the request was denied by the employee who did not want to identify herself. The 
employee further stated that she could not give any information concerning their guests via 
telephone and suggested that the reguest for information be mailed to the motel. (Attachment 4 -, [<bX6)(b}(7)(C) 
Memorandum of Interview Jori otel) 

On 12/28/09, the RA and Special Agen(<bxs>.<b><7xc> ]interviewe l~{6)(b)( > ~ho denied the 
alle1Zat~· o and insisted that he paid $160 in cash for two nights at th ::_>.<bx

7
xq JMotel. According 

tdl~~s>. <b>< 7> the front desk employee gave him a business card indicating the $160 in cash paid for 
two m ts with the date, 10/4/09, stamped on it with the employee's signature. l~><s><bX7> further 
stated that when he asked for a lodging receipt he was told that he had to wait until mid-da but 
e would have missed his flight. (Attachment 5 -Memorandum of Interview fo <bxs><b><7xc> 

(bX6) (bX7XC) ---

(b)(6)(b) f(b)(6)(bX7XC) ~ (bXS) (bX7XC) 
On 1/19/10,11xc> sent a letter to the Motel to corroborate use of a business • . . ffb}(6) (b}(7)(C) (b)(6) (bX7XC) 
card as a lodging receipt. (Attachment 6 - Letter from to Motel)) 

. . (bX )(bl . . f!bXS> <ox1xcn 
On 6/9/10, the RA received an e-mail fro <7XCJ stating that as of this date, the Motel 

hi 
(bX6). b)(7) furth . (b}(6)(bX7XC) . 

never responded to s letter.<C> er stated that he disallowed use of the busmess 
card as a lodging receipt with OFM's concurrence. According t~~~s><bx 7> training was provided to 
all motorpool staff on e nrooer submission of travel receipts and vouchers. (Attachment 7 -(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
Folww-up email fro _, 



Defendants/Suspects: 

~r_><6_).(b-)(7-)(C-)~~--->lusAID/Egyp ~<b_)(6-),(-b)(-7XC_) ___ __, 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None. 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

NIA 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

Page3 
~~bX=6)~.(b=)(7=)(C~) -- ==i 

Period: 11122/09 to 6/09/10 

USAID!Egypt dl'sallowe (b)(6J.<b><?Jcci f b · d l d · · ._ ___ use o a usmess car as a o gmg receipt. 

Attachments: 

'th hm ICb)(6)(b)(7)(C) I 
(1) Memorandumoflnterview 01 wi attac ent -! 1dated 11122/09. 
(2) MOI with attachment <bX6><bX?xci dated 11122/09. 
(3) MOI with attachment CbX6>.<bX?><c> dated 11/22/09. 
(4) MOI with attachment-Telephone call Cb><

6
>.<b><

7
><CJ Motel, dated 12/14/09. 

(5) MOI <bX6J<bX7~_ dated 12/28/09. 
( 6) Letter from<b><6Hb><?><CJ o (b)csicb><?><CJ Motel, dated 1/19/10. 
(7) Follow-up email fro l<b><S>.<b><?>cc> dated 6/9/10. 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: Equal Access Case Number~ ..... <bx_6)_.<bx_1x_c) ___ _. 
Status: Completed 
Period oflnvestigation: 09/28/2011 to 11/30/2011 OIGIJ Office: Pretoria 

SynopsiJ! 

On September 28, 2011, USAID/OIG/htvestigations received two allegations from AED. 
The first pertained to AED' s contract with Africare to build solar powered radio stations 
throughout Niger. When the US government stopped funding to Niger, AED determined 
that none of the radio stations could operate at full capacity. AED determined that most 
of the issues were technical in natW'e. AED then funded, without requesting USAID 
reimbursement, the radio stations' start up and running. As AED did not allege fraud 
with this subcontractor and the issue is technical in nature, no further investigation is 
necessary. 

The second allegation pertained to issues involving another of its subcontractors in Niger, 
~ual Access. AED had originally reported this issue in December 2010 (see cas~ <bX

7
l 

rOJ:<bX7J<c> ] but now provided more details. The complainant reported two issues. 
First, AED reported that an Equal Access employee falsified lodging expenses, and 
engaged in business activities with vendors which created a conflict of interest by 
receiving inappropriate benefits from such vendors. The employee, as well as two others 
who were allegedly also involved, have since been fired from Equal Access. Second, 
AED reported that two trainers were given six days of per diem to distribute to ten 
participants and they only distributed five days' worth. One trainer confessed and was 
fired. The other trainer did not confess and is still working at .Equal Access; however, he 
has restrictions on financial transactions. ABO assured the OIG that the amounts 
obtained through fraudulent manners have not been charged to USAID. 

This matter shall be referred to USAID/OAA for consideration of administrative action. 

Details of Investigation: 

On October 6. 2011, the OIG conta <bXSJ.<bx7xc) AED, for 
the documents to support the firing of the four employees. She provided the Price­
WaterhouseCoopers (PWC) Agreed Upon Procedurm Report, the AED Internal Audit 

REPORT MADB BY: NanM! (bX6l (bX7XCJ 
(b)(6) (bX7)(C) 

Slpahlre: 
(b)(6) (bj(7j(C) 

Date Slptd: 11/30/11 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: Name: Date Slped: 

stplhlre l~ 
Tbh d11e111111qt b tlK property of die Oftlce of I or caaDO repiVdactd or ~ "1!.~n 
pcrnlaloa. Dlldotare to 11uu .. ortzed J)enelat II prolllblted. Pllbllc amllbllt1 II detmnlatd uadu 1ltlt 5 V.S.C.f55l. 
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I 

==~...;p;_::~ 2 (bX6) (bX7J(C) 

09/28/11 - 11/30/11 

R (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) t th all ti. (b)(6)(bX7XC) · t""'"'~_, epo response o e ega ons, ..... ,, .......... 
transcrip (bXS>.<bXJxc> res nse to the allegations, _ ,_<bx_6>_.<b_x1_xc_> .-iconfession. 
(Attachment 1, Email from<bXS)(bXJXC) dated 10/6/1011) 

The ABO internal r~rt stated tha f(bxs>.<b><7XC> J 80t.:_5> (b)(7XCJ 
colluded wi <bXs)(bXJXC) to forge receipts, provide b.i_ds_ fro_m_p_b_a_n_to_m_. -ven-...Jdors to 

give the appearance of competitive bidding. and 3eCUl'e inflated prices for materials. The 
report detailed some of the verification steps taken to determine the validity of invoices. 
The total amount lost due to fraud was determined to be approximately $33,000. All 
three individuals were fired. (Attachment l, AED Internal Audit Report, dated 
512312011) 

The PWC report stated that they obtained suspect hotel invoices and contacted the hotels 
to verify the authenticity of the invoices. In at least three separate cases with three 
different hotels, the hotels denied that the invoice was theirs. PWC also found blank 
hotel letterhead in the desk o <bxsJ(bXJxc> (Attachment 3, 
PrlceWaterhouseCoopers Agreed Upon Procedures Report, dated 3/4/2011) 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
stated with regard to the blank hotel letterhead, that some hotels are - ----,---" 

service providers and do not have the acity to prepare administrative or financial 
documents. She stated tha (bxs> <bXJxc> ~Id her that he created the fake receipts with the 
help oi <b)(s).(b><1xc> (Attachment 4, <bxs>= 1><c> )response to the allegations, 

dated 12/%7/2010) 

(bX6).(bX7XC) 
~ted that the lotri.stics surrounding a suspect hotel bill were arranged by 

<bxsl<bx7xc5 IHe stated ~x7xc> told him, with regard to paying for food at a meeting, 
that she gave a fiiend of hers who does catering 100,000Fcfa. Since the food budget is 

(b)(6)(bX7XC) • . 
305,000Fcti eeded to give the woman 200,000Fcfa and withhold the 
100,000Fcfa. He was to give the 100,000Fcfa ~.<b><Jxc> bro~.!(b><5><bXJJ<C> stated he 
did 'ust wha~<blCSJ(bXJxc>"'told him to do. He then went to the Hotel<bxs><wxq 

<bXS)(bXJXC) where l paid 5 OOOFcfa to obtain a bill justifying the expense in the total 
of 305,000Fcfa. He then admitted to forging the signature of the hotel, s ~esentative. 
He stated that he did this another time, again at the direction o (bxs> (b)(JXCJ (Attachment 
5,fXS)(bXJXCJ interview transcript, dated 12/2010) 

(b)(6).(bX7J(C) ed d. th tal f •\.ft • .___.__ ..... stat , regar mg e ren o a genera or_._\luat be was present dunng 
. d. th I (bX6).(bXi)l conversations swroun mg e renta . He stated tha <C> pmchased a generator for 

50,000Fcfa and rented it to Equal Access for a training conference for five days at 
1 O,OOOFcfa per day, effectively paying for the generator, but he kept the generator 
himself. The rece___int was created by an electrical parts seller in his presence: 
(Attachment 6'.b)(S)(bXJxc> Jresponse to the allegationa, dated 1/14/201 J) 



(b)(6).(bX7)(CJ 

09/28111 - 11130/11 

r::x7
XCJ ~ confession regarding per diem and transportation payments Stated that be and 

another committed fraud. He stated that instead of giving six days per diem to 
participants in the training, they gave five days and they shared the rest of the mone . He 
tatedJhat he acknowledged having made a very serious mistake. (Attachment 7, (b)(SJ.(bl<

7
xC> 

(b)(SJ.<bx
7
i(c> lconfenloa, dated 6/1/1011) 

Subjectl/Defendants/Suspects: 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence or seized contraband. 

Judicial and Admlniltrative Actions: 

Referred to USAID/OAA for suspension or debarment 

Attachments: 

1. Email from(bX
6

Hb><
7
xci dated 10/6/2011 

2. AED Internal Audit Report, dated 5/23/2011 
3. PriceWaterhouseCoopers Agreed Upon Procedures Report, dated 3/41201 l 
4. (b><

6
><b 

7
><CJ response to the allegations, dated 12/27/2010 

5 (b)(S)(bX
7
xCJ interview transai t, dated 12/2010 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) p 
6 , _ _ response to the allegations, dated 1/1412011 

b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

7. confessio~ dated 6/1 /2011 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Cue Title: Travel Management Services Case Number: <bX51 (bJ<7xci - -----Status: Closed 
Period oflnveatlption: 03/05/2008-08110/2010 OIG/l Offke: Washington, DC 

Synopsis: 

(b 6) (t>l(7XCJ 
On 02/28/08, an anonymous complainant told Special Agent in Charge (SA_,_ _____ __, 
that the USAID travel management vendor was charging unnecessary and excessive fees for 
passport processing and airline tickets for contract carriers to city pairs locations. Based on the 
allegations, the Office of Inspector General (010) initiated an investigation. 

[ibx6f{bX7XC> · ~ U$ 1 ' ~ =,.--... _ _,was the prune contractor ior AID's Trave Management Services S), 
andl~~61 <bX

7
> subcontracted the passport and visa orocessing portion of the work to <bX61 <bx7xci 

~x7xci J SAO~visited thel~~~~ located in the Ronald 
Reagan Building. On 03/05/08 SAd

0
x6> cb)(7XC) was infonned b ~~l employee~bX6> <0x1xci 

that the regular passport processing fee was $59 .81 with an estimatoo elivery time of four to six 
weeks. Furthermore, the rush passport processing fee was $80.2_5 with an estimated deliyenr 
time of two_weeks. On 03/12/08, SA0<0x6><1>x

7
xc> went tol~;~~(b) l desk and learned fronl. . 1l~~~~<b> 

~~~ . ~ . ~~ 
employee that regular pas.1p0rt processing tiKes tour to six wc;cks <CJ !further 
said that ~oedited service takes two weeks. The RA requested a copy of the1i_~negoti~ted fee 

(b)(6)(b)(7) 
schedule cc1 told her that the fee schedule taped to the desk could be cop1 

On 03/12/08 SA (b)(61 <bx7icci received a different copy of the schedule of prices from'.<1>i<s>.<1>><7xci L6> <bx7xci USA ID' <bxs> <b><7xci _ The schedule provided byl~~6> (bl<7> indicates 
tliBt a rush fee yields a processed passport within 24 hours. 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(S) (b) 

SAG comrull'ed the COJ?Y of the negotiated fee schedule obtained frotdj!xc1 to the 
copy obtained from<1>x6J<

0x
1
xci copy was cl free of handwritten notes, and contained 

"(24) hours" next to'niih passport processing. <t>x
61 

<t>x
7
xci copy had "4-8" (handwritten) next to 

regular passport processing and "2 weeks" (handwritten and blurred) next to rush passport 
processing. 

After a review of several boxes of original documents requested fro~;~ <t>> and reviewed 
by the Reporting Agent {RA), the RA determined that in 121 C88C8il~~~~ <t>> charged a 
traveler a rush passport fee when the turnaround time for receipt of the passport was 
greater than 24 hoW"S. As a result, the RA calculated that, according to the fee schedule 

RUORT MADE BYi rb)(6) (b)(7)(C) Diue Slped: 09/23f2010 

_ _____ ______ _,f<t>X6J(bX7XCJ 
APPltOVING OFJllCIAL: Date Slpecl! 



(b)(6) (b)(7XC) 

03/13/2008-08110/2010 

provided b 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C} 

overcharged the government $2,412.09 for passport processing 
fees. --~ 

After discussion with OIG/ Audit, SA <bXS)(b)(lXC) ade a formal referral to OIG/ A for 
the city ~rs and E2 Solutions portion of this investigation. The RA conta ~~x~\ <b> 

E:><bx,xc> Chief of the Fraud and Public Corruption Section, U.S. Attorney's Office, 

Washington, DC regarding the passport fee portion of the case. <bX
5
> <bXl><C> declined 

prosecution of the case. 

Details of Investigation: 

On 04/24/2008 SAd bXS><bXlXC> 1receiv fo boxes fro f<bXS)(bXlXC> 1ofi<t>x6><t>x7xq 

· · . · a1 d 1 ed <bx
6
> <bWi-i rk c. TMS Th d th oontai.ning ongm ocuments re at t <C> wo ior . e o uments cover e 

. . d Jul 2006 . 2008 Th d . (b)(S).(b)(l)(C} ---i time ?mO y to A . e ocuments were given to.. J 
<t>X5><t>>i7xc> for review <t>x6>(b)(lXC> generated a spreadsheet detailing information for 

aoJ>lications for passports, including the date a customer requested a passport, the date 
(b)(6)(b) • th h 
11xq called the customer to pick-up the passport, whe er the customer was c arged an 

expedited fee, and the amount charged on the receipt. 

Th RA . ed(b)(S) (b)(l)(C) dsheet d fi d th t • 105 (b)(S).(b) har ed e review sprea an oun a in cas <1xcJ c g a 
f(b~6), customer a $80.25 passport fee. In five cases<bJ(7) charge a $79.57 passport fee. In 

(b)(6) <C 

eleven casestx1xC>
1
charged a $75 passport fee. In all of these cases the passport 

turnaround time was greater than 24 hours. an<Lthe customer should have been charged 6)(b) 
$59.81. As a result, the RA calc.ulat} C> overcharged $2,412.09 for passport 

• • (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
processing fees accordmg t oopy onlie fee schedule. (Attachment 1, 
Memorandum of Records Review, tUIUd 1110912009). 

On 0Jl21L20l0- the RA.interviewed1bxs> <bx,xc> the former Manager o <bxs> <bx,xc> 

(b)(6)(bX7XC) A din ._.(b)(6)(bX7) s·-·- n~artm t' 'd }' c. sh 
---- ccori g W!(C) ~ en s gw e mes ior ru • (b)(6)(b)(7) 

passport processmg was two weeks. According to1q __ the "(24 hour)" typed next to 
• l<bX6)(b)(7)(C} I ':-:J(b)(6) (b) 

"Rush Passport Processing" o~ ..Joopy of th~1xci .. fee schedule should not be there 
because it did.no.tre~ect the acliiiil.imcessinsttim ~~~~~<b> l!_ealt with for rush passports. 
Furth 

1!~~(6)(b)(7) stated th (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) J: :l(b)(6)(b) I h bar fi ermoree__ at _ to f.\(7XC) w at to c gc customers or 
~ous ~· ces and that the fee schedule 680 . developed in oonjunction with 

(b)(6) CbX7XC) • • • ' 
_ Contracting Officer's Technical Representative at USAID. According to 
(bX

5
> (bX

7
xC> the passport processing times of two weeks and four to eight weeks were 

reflective of actual processing times. (Attachment 2, Memorandum of Inurview­
Smith, dated 0112112010). 

On 08/10/2010, S1':~~s><t>X7> oontacted Assistant U .S. Attom (bXS><bx
7
xq 

Fraud and Public Corruption Section at the U .S . Attorney's Office in W 



Pa 3 
(bX6) (DX7XCJ 

03/1312008-08/10/2010 

After discussing the facts of the invemgati (b)cs>.<b><7>cc> declined to prosecute the matter. 
(Attacluunt 3, DeclinatUHt, dllled 08110/2010). 

Undeveloped Leads: 

There are no other investigative issues remaining. 

Dhpo1ltlon of Evidence, Contraband or Penonal Property: 

(bX ) (b) (bX6JCbX7XC) 

The boxes of originac1xci docwnents will be returned to _____ ~ 

Judiclal and Administrative Actions: 

This matter was declined for prosecution by AUS~:s).(b)c7xci jThe case will be 
referred to the Office of AC'luisition and Assistance for any action it may deem 
necessary. 

Attachments: 

1. Attachment 1, Memorandum of Records Review dated 11/09/2009 
2. Attachment 2, Memorandum of Interview 1~~~s)(bX

7 dated 01/21/2010 
3. Attachment 3, Declination, dated 08/10/2010 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

f(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) c N b l(b)(6),(b)(7XC) 
Case Title: ! ase 1 um er: .... --------
Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: l 0/6/2008 - 8118/2009 OIG/J Office: Washington, D.C. 

Synopsis: 

On 10/06/2008 the USAID/Washington travel office reported that USAID direct hire,! __ <b>_<
6
>_<b_><

7
>_(c> _ _, 

rb)(S).(b)(7XC) I may have submitted fraudulent vouchers in relation 
l d . d d l . A l . (b)(s).(b)(7> f d N . b. K d to o gmg an ry c earung expenses. t t le t1me, <C) post o uty was airo 1, en ya an 

she had traveled to the Washington, D.C. area on .January 3, 2008 under the sco e c ·· er . . . . (b)(6).(b) . 
employment to part1c1pate m long-term foreign language development courses. FXC) remamed 
in the Washington . .D~ '. area under travel status until September 2008. The USAID trave.l office 

d h (b)(S).(b) b · d d i · d l . . f h I h also reporte t a <1xc> su mitte up icate ry c eanmg expenses m one o er trave vouc ers. 
Based on these allegations, the Office of inspector General initiated an investigation. 

The investigatio1 didnot.substantiate the allegations regarding the submission of excessive . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) . 
lodging expenses landlord confirmed that she had rented an apartment owned by lum 
and that she had paid him rent on a slidin -scale basis. The total amount of rent claimed 

l l · 1 d . (b)(s).(b) 1 . d h h 1'1 . . . d"d 1 ma c iedJ e tota amount m o gm <1xc> c a1me on er vouc er. 1e mvest1gatlon 1 revea 
tha l~~~~<b>_ submitted one duplicate dry cleaning receipt for reimbursement to the US.t\ID travel 
office l~~s>.<bX7> staled that the duplicate dry cleaning receipt submission occurred in error. lt is 
noted that the USAlD travel office noticed the double submission and did not pay the claim. 

This case is closed. 

Details of Investigation: 

REPORT i'r/ADE BY: 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 

Nume; 
Signatu re: 

Nume; Isl ASACj(b)(S).(bl(7XCl 

(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 

Signature. 

Notice: 

I 

l>ate Signed: 

¥1812()()9 

Date Signed: 

This document is the property of the Office of Inspector General and cannot be reproduced or eopicd without wrinen permission. Disclosure to 
tlnaothorizcd persons is prohibit.Cd. Public avai lability is determined under Title 5 U.S.C.§552. 
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. . . h 1 d 1 (bX&J (b) d . l l area to part1c1pate mt e anguage eve opment eourse,<1xci staye at a non-comrnerc1a pace 
of residence and received lodging expenses as well as meas and incidental expenses (M&IE). 

,.1 .. r x&)(b) · h ·d · 1 ddr 1 1 · d h · Althou&1<1xq eported staymg at t e same res1 entia a ess, s te c a1mc t e maxunum 
L_ • . (bX&l (bX7) 

allowable amount for lodgmg expenses for several months despite the fact tha cq allowable 
lodging allowance decreased in percentage on a monthly basis. In addition ~~~~;<b> iay have 
submitted duplicate dry cleaning ~enses and attempted to claim the expenses separately on her 
travel vouchers. (Attacltment J ~5l~<bX7> J\1101) 

~bX6J (bX7XC) . . . (bX6) (bX7XC) 
On 10/7/08, SA ___.iand the reportrng agmt (RA) interviewed 

(bX6)(bX7XC) (bX6J (bX7XC) ' . CbX6)(b) . 
USAID-contracted employeeexplamed tha <7xC> received the 

maximum lodging allowance for the first 30 days of her temporary duty assignment (TOY) and 
the maximum M&IE allowances for thatsame time period (i.e., $201.00 and $64.00, . . (bX6J (bX7J . . 
respectively). After the 30-day penod <CJ lodgmg and M&IE allowances reduced lo half for . . (bX6HbX7) . 
the next 90-day penod. After 120 days <C> lodgmg and M&IE allowances reduced to a 
quarter of the full amount. 

. CbX6) (bX7XCl (bX6> (b) . . . 
Accordmg t althoug <7xq reported staymg at the same res1dent1al address 
throughout her TDY in Washington, D.C., she claimed the maximum aJiowable amount for 
lodging expenses each month despite the fact thati~~&)(bX7) llowable lodging allowance decreased 
in percentage during her TOY assignment. In addition ~~;~\<b> submitted duplicate dry cleanin 
expenses and attempted to claim the expenses separately on one of her vouchers. When1bX&J<bx7xc> 
was_ uestioned by personnel from the USAlD travel office re ardin' the dry cleaning claims. (b)(6).(bX7l . . . . ., (b)(6) (bX7)(C) . (bX6l (bX7) . . . 

(C> ephed that she "dtd not reahze 1t. · provide cc> ongmal travel file to the 
RA. (Attachment 2 <bX&)(bJ<7XCJ 01) 

On I 0/29/08, the RA re-interviewe b 6 .(b)(7xcJ USAID travel 
office. was also present. The RA also reviewed i~~s> (bX7

l travel file wit~0x6l <0x1xq and <bXSHbX7XCJ 
jibx6) (bl{7XC) I (bX6) (b) . . . . . 
[ alleged ha~<7xcJ had subm1ned dupltcate dry cleanm rece1 ts rn an effort to be 

d ' C. th · · (bX6l (b){7 C) (bX6)(bX7> compensate twice ior t e same expenses. At at lime, ne1the no (C) could 
locate or roduce any copies of duplicate dry cleaning receipts inl~r><bli7> travel file. <bXSJ<bX7xc> 

(bXS)(DX7) 1 . d h th d 1· d ] . . th . fi an <C> exp ame t at e up 1cate ry c eamng receipts at were previously ound were 
denied as legitimate charges and not paid. It is nol d that afleLa subseauent ilc review, the RA . . . (bX&J (b)(7XC) 
found the duplicate receipt entries. (Attacllme11t 3 MO/) 

. bX6) (b)(7) . . (bX6J (bX7XCl 
The RA reviewed areas o <cJ ravel file that appeared queshonable wit and 

~<bX&J(bX7xq I SpecificaUY the RA reviewed~~~6><bX7l travel voucher for the period between 2/1/08 to 
2129/08, signed byl~~~~(b) on 3/12/08, in the amount of$4,379.03. In that travel voucherJ<bX5><DX7xc> 

~~----reported drv cleanmg expenses in the total amount of $751.92. (bXSJ<bX7J<C> andl~~5><bX7> stated 
tha l~~~~(b) 1~as questioned regarding the amount of said dry cle~ expenses a~d thatE 6><bX7xC> J 
reported that her dry cleaning expenses were high during that period as she had just returned 
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from a long-term oversees assignment and that much of her clothing needed dry cleaning and 
re air due to the mold and odors that they were exposed to while in storage and transit. 

(b)(S).(bX7l<C> an i~\<5>.<bX7> stated tha ~~~~~<b> provided dry cleaning receipts for her expenses that 
were approved an pa1 by the USAID travel office. (Attachment 4 - 3112108 travel voucher) 

(b)(6).(b)(7) . [(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
The RA then reviewe <C> lodgina rece1 ts dated January 2008 thru June 2008. ,_! ____ __. 

concerns revolved around the fact thatl~~~i(b) always claimed the maximum allowable lodging 
expenses each month while living at tne same re identia address throughout her TOY in 
Washington, D.cJ<bl(SHbX7l<C> 1 urther noted tha ~~\<s>.<bl< 7> allowable lodging expenses decre""a'-"'s;;..,ed~~~ 
on a monthly basis. (b)(S)(b)(l)(C) also noted thats 1e was concerned with the appearance of (bJcs).<bXl>CC> 
submitted lodging receip,ts as t ey appeared to have been created by a simple computer program. 
Tt .c ll . . l' (b)(6).(b)(l) b . d l d . c h d' h ie 10 owmg is a ist o cc> su mitte o gmg expenses wr t e correspon mg mont s: 

January 2008: 
February 2008: 
March 2008: 
April 2008: 
May 2008: 
June 2008: 

$6,231.00 
$3,61 8.00 
$3,115.00 
$3,035.00 
$1 ,500.00 
$ 433.00 

Subsequently, it was learned tha l~m<b> also resided at thei<b>(S).(b)<7xcl 
l~m<bJ address thru the month of July 2008, but did not pay~r-en_t_t_h_a_t _m_o_n_th- as- it_\.\_1as_ a_l_re_a_d_y ___ ~ 

d . . Th t f l d . b · d b (b)(S)(b) covere m previous payments. e tota amount o o gmg expenses su rmtte )1<1xq over a 
seven month period was $17,932.00 or $2,561.7 l monthly. (Attachment 5 - lodging receipts) 

0 11/ 14/08 S 
(bX6J(bX7)(C) d th RA. . (bX6)(b)(7) l di d)(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) i h 

n , an e mterv1ewe cc> an or . !w o 
confirmed tha l~~~/b> had been a tenant of his and had occupied a unit owned by him located at 

(bJC5l<bX7l<C> He further confirmed thad~~~)(b) moved into ,___ __________________ ___ 
said address in January 2008 and had occupied that address thru July of 2008. (b)(S><bXll<C> uther 

d h h th (b)(6).tbJ I I .--h . reporte t at e was aware a c1xc> as a government emp oyee w 1en preparing t e easmg 
agreement and added he often rente his apartment units to government ernployees. l<bxs>.<bJC7Xc) =1 
was then shown a copy o'f l~l 6l.<bXl> submitted lod ina receipt for the period January 1, 2008 to 
January 31, 2008, in the amount of $6,231.00. (b)(s).(bJC7xc> confirmed that he did sign the receipt 
and received the reported amount in rent fro ~~~~l<b> for the month of January 2008. He said that 
the hand-writing on the receipt was his. He further explained that he has dealt with numerous 
government employees in the past and understands that the allowable per diem lodging expense 
rates set by the government decreases over time. Therefore, he accepted a "sliding pay scale" 
method of payment fro i~~~~<b> knowing that he would receive more than the rent amount at first, 
but that would decrease each month eventually and average itself out. 



. . (b)(6lCbX7J(C) 
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(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) h h t (b)(6),(b)(7) b ' d I d . . fi h h f }~ b was t en s own a copy o <Cl su m1tte o gmg receipt or t e mont o ·e ruary ___ _, 

2008 in the amount of $3,618.00. He stated the receipt bore his signature but that the hand-
. . h . h' (b)(S).(bX?)(C) 1 . d h ft l . (bX6),(b)(?) T 2008 wntmg on t e receipt was not 1s. xp ame t at a er comp etm <C> . anuary 

1 d · · h <bXs).{b) I blank I d . . th h . d . d i ·1. o gmg receipt, e gave <1Jcc> severa o gmg receipts at e s1gne rn a vance. ltere 
was an understanding tha l~~~(b) would fill out the recei ts according to her lodging expenses and , . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
turn them m to the government for payment of claim. as then shown a copy of 

(b)(s)(b)(?Jcc> submitted lodging receipts for March 2008 thru June 2008. He stated that the recetpts 
bore his signature but that the hand-writing on the receipts was not his and indicated he typically 
received approximate v ~? Ci00.00 a month in rent from his tenants with a $300.00 up-or-down 

(~ H r.: d h ·r h. · b . k' swing for the unit tha (1xc> !had rented. e further reporte t at 1 1s tenants o tarn ar mg 
i• l, h h dd. . } $300 00 1 • dd. . l (bXS)(b)(?)(C) rom um e c arges an a ltlona . · . per montr1 m a 1t10n to t 1e rent amount..__ ___ _, 
further ointed out tha ~~~~><b> did obtain, and was charged, for parking. (Attachment 6 -

(bX6l.(bJ(7XC) tlf Ol) 

On 01/30/2009, SAL s).(b)(?)(C) :=Jand the R..L\. tele 
h l US E b D

·'b . D .. b · "'"<b""'xs~).(b~J(~1x~q=-====~-=-'=~-'-'--''-='-~--'-'-'-'=--'--'-=> 
t enatt1e .... m assy, .. ~ 1 out!. ~1 oull was 
also present for the interview. The RA read the Kalkines warnin s to l~s><bX?> She acknowledged 
h h d d h . d d . b)(6).(bX7l d f h t at s e un erstoo t e warnmgs an agree to answer questions cq s1gne a copy o t e 
Kai kines warnings that was later forwarded to the RA. (Attacltment 7 - Kalkilles warnings) 

(bX6J (bX7l . . . (b)(6 (b)(7)(C) 
(C) began employment wJth USAID m 1988 as g At '-----'. . i(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

the time of the allegat1on, she was a USAI in Sudan 
participatin in long-term language training in Washington D.C., which she began on 

(b)(6),(b) d . l d 1 . Jibxs) (b)(7)(C) -----0 l /22/2008. <1xc> ha previous y secure od 111 aL · 
(b)(6J,(b)(7) Sh d . · w(b)(6){bX7XCJ '--..,...h~. ---

1
..,....d-.,.,.---,-J - .---d-_, (C) e entere into an agreement w1t11 to pay 1rn on as i m sea e rn accor ance 

.th h d. (b)(6).(b)(7J .. 1'<bX6){bX7XC> L thl b . Sh 'd (b)(6J(b){7)(:1$6 231 00 r th w1 er per 1em.<c> pai~ pn a mon y as1s. e pai , . 1or e 
month of January. (b)(s)(bX?)(C) created, completed and signed the receipt that he later provided to 

~~><SHbX?J for that month l~~s>.<bX7> signed the receipt and submitted it attached to her voucher to the 
. j<bX6).(b)(7)(C) L . . 

USAID travel office for re-1mbursement. Subsequently provided her with several 
blank receipts that bore his signature fo l~~~/b> to fi ll in herself. 

(b)(6),(bX7> . . . (b)(6), b)(7) 
(C) 1 1ned and com leted each rent receipt for each subsequent month that she resided at..__<c_> _ _, 
<bX5>.<bX7XCl and submitted all of the receipts to the lJSAID travel 

office. ~~~~t> stayed in the apartment from January 2008 thru July 2008. She did not make a 
payment in July 2008 as that pa ment had been covered by the above reported payments. 
I 1 d d . h (b)(G).(bX?)(C) · 1 · . . h thl f $ J 20 00 11 nc u e m er rent payment tq 1were uu 1t1es in t e mon y amount o . as we 
as housekeeping services and parking expenses. 

(bX6l b) . 
(7)(C) stated that m her travel vouchers to the USAID travel office, she made an error when 
submitting duplicate dry cleaning expenses. She explained that she submitted the dry cleaning 
receipts that she was handed by the dry cleaners at the time when she dropped off her dry 
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cleaning. She then submitted her credit card receipt encompassing the same dry cleaning 
expenses. Specifically, she submitted two dry cleaning receipts both dated 02/01 /2008 in the 
amounts of$175.67 and $143.15 for a total of$318.82. She also submitted a credit card receipt 
in the amount of $318.38 (date illegible) to the USAIO travel office for reimbursement. The 
~,.u.L•"A{>D travel office noticed the double submission and disallowed the overcharged expense. 
(b(s).(b)<

1
> d h h. . . ak /,4 ' 8 I 1· d I . . ) 

<Cl state t at t is was a one-time m1st· e. 1/1.ttacr1ment - ""P tcate ry c eamng receipts 

~~><s><bx71 claimed the fo llowing dry cleaning expenses in her vouchers to the USAID travel office for 
re-imbursement: (Attachments 9tltru16 - travel vouchers/dry cleaning expenses) 

- January 2008: 
- February 2008: 

- March 2008: 
- April 2008: 
- May 2008 : 
- June 2008: 
- July 2008: 
- August 2008: 

$230.68 
$751.92 ($3 18.82 disallowed as double submission as detailed 

above). Total after disallowance: $4 3 3 .10 
$ 98.35 
$194.49 
$146.39 
$285.03 
$404.85 
$147.95 

(b)(6)(b)(7) 

cc> explained that she had been posted overseas for many years and that much of her clothing 
required dry cleaning as they smelled of mold and mildew after being left in storage before being 
shipped to Washington, D.C. in January 2008. All of her dry cleaning expenses, except the 
double submission, was approved and paid b the USAID travel office. (Attachment 17 - · dry 
cleaning receipts) and (Attaclzment 18 :~m<b> 1\1101) 

Def end an ts/Suspects: 

(1>)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

U SAI
. D d. l . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

irect me 
"-~~~~~~~~~~~~---' 

Nairobi Ken a 
(b)(6) (bX7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

None 
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Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

None 

Attachments: 

L 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9-16. 
17. 
18. 

:ms).(b)(l) MOl dated 101612008 
(bJ($).(b><

7
xCl MOL dated I 017/2008 

and ~~r)(b)(l) MOI, dated 10/29/2008 ---------3/ 12/08 travel vouc 1er 
Lod · n receipts, dated January thru June 2008 

(b)($)(b)(l)(C) MOI dated 11/14/2008 
' Kalkines warnings, dated 1/30/2009 

Duplicate dry cleaning receipts, 2/1/2008 
January 2008 rhru August 2008 travel vouchers/dry cleaning expenses, respectively 
Dr cleaning receipts, dated 1/ 17/2008 and 2/1/2008 

i~~$)(b)(l) 1 01, dated 1/30/2009 
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INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
[(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) Case Number: (b)(S)(bX?><c> ...... ~~~~~~--' 

Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 9/23/2009-10/28/2009 OIG/I Office: Washington, D.C. 

Synopsis: 

On August 21, 2009, USAID Office of Securit SEC advised OIG/J that from February 2008 to 
December 2008, U.S. direct-hire (b)(S)(bJC?XC> SAID/SEC, bad misused her 
government-issued travel card to make several thousands of dollars in ersonal cash advances. 
Subsequently, OIG/I conducted an investigation that substa fated tha~~~~»(b) misused her 

. "" . $ 0 (b)(S),(b) d $3- 00-0 . government-issued travel card 1or approxunately 6,0 0 (7XC> ma e , m payments to the 
account, leaving a balance of approximately $3,000. 'lbe remainin $3,000 balance went past 
due and was sent to a collection agency. On August 27, 2009 l~~~;<b> paid the balance in its 
entirety lo the collection agency. The U.S. Attorney's Office in the District of Columbia 
declined criminal prosecution. This case is closed. 

Details of Investigation: 

RA 
. . d (b)(6),(bX7)(C) 

~~~.~~'--'-'-.....,,~--"""'--'-'~""""'~__,.,,,,,,,_en,_,_t"--'-"= mterv1ewe ._,...~~-~-----------' 
USAID/SEC. <bJ(s).(b)(?Xc> indicated that on or about 

(b)(S~)(b~)~.-J h 
Febmary 2008 to December 2008c1xq misused er government-issued travel card ~o make 
s_ey_eral_o.ersonal cash_adY .. lances and the $3,000 balance was reported to a collection agency. 

(bX6) (bX7)(C) J(b)(6) .{b) . . • • • 
learned otl<7>tC> government travel card misuse m January 2009 when her d1v1s1on was 

._n_o_t-ifi-1e_d ... b USAID\ (b)(SJCbX
7

>(CJ ]tha ~~~s>.<bX?> government travel card was past 
due ~7KCJ asked Calvin Revelle, Security Specialist, USAID/SEC, who handles s ecial 
investigations to initiate r:_eliminary investigation into tho,allegations agains l~~~rl During the 

l
. . . ' . (b)(S),(b)(?) l d fi l . d . . pre 1mmary investigation <CJ government trave car statements or t 1e peno m question 

were obtained. 

-----------------~(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
REPORT MADE BY: Nume: Isl SA 

Signature: 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: Nome: 
Signature: 

Date Signed: 

tojz4j?IJ09 

Date Signed: 

This document is the property of the Office of Inspector General and cannot Ix rcpnxluced or copied without wri u.cn permission. Di~closurc 10 

unauthorized persons is prohibited. Public availahilily is determined under Title 5 U.S.C.§552. 
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Report oflnvestigation (RO I). (Attachment J, Memorandum of Interview ~<bXS)(b)<rxcl ldated 
8131109) . 

(bX6Hbl (bX6J.(b) 
On September 14, 2009, the RA interviewe (7)cci According l <

7><CJ she was issued a 
government travel card in August 2007 to attend a government-sponsored conference in 
Memphis, TN. She used her government-issued travel card on the triRJo Qay for lodging and 
other related expenses in accordance with governmental travel policy l~~~~>t> I admitted to falling 
behind on her car JQan nd credit card bills and owing thousands of d6Tlars to the U.S. Internal 

S · (b)(S)(b) f h d . d . h . d I d ~ l Revenue erv1ce <rxq urt er a m1tte to usmg er government-issue trave car ior persona 
use in early 2008 to pay past due bills, knowing that personal use of her government-issued 
travel card was not authorized. She planned to pay off the balance on her government-issued 
travel card but could not keep up with her other outstanding debL·~~mcbJ added that she did make 
payments on her government travel account and trjed to continue the payments on a monthly 
basis. 

i~~~;<b> then stated that she entered into a payment plan of $400 per month with the collection 
agency but stopped making payments because she could no longer afford them. She explained 
that allhough she had one government-issued travel card, she had two government accounts that 
were past due in the amount of approximately $600 and $1,900. Her first government-issued 
travel card was replaced sometime in 2008 and the balances on each card never merged. 

, . (bX6).(b) . . 
fhe RA reviewed each charge o cricci government-issued travel card statements from 1'ebruary . (b)(6)(b) . 
26, 2008 to December 24, 2008 with her .crl<C> stated that every debit made on those statements, 
except for a debit of $179.67 made on August 13, 2008, was for personal use and not for official 
government business -~stated that she mainly made cash advances in order to pay off her 
personal credit cards. l~~~~:i then ind icated that she has paid off the account balance on her 

. d I d . f 11 h II . ~ d' . (b)(s><b> ·a d government-issue trave car in u to t e co ection agency La JhOtWJ<C> prov1 e a . . (b)(6)(b) . . 
sworn aff1davtt. (Attachment 2, Memora11d11m of Interview <7>(C> dated 9114109 with AdVlce 
of Rights Form and Sworn Affidavit). 

On September 18. 2009. the RA presented the facts of the case to Assistant U.S. Attorney 
(AUSAt:>·<bX?J(CJ !District of Columbia. AUSA 'bJ(S).(bJ<rxq declined prosecution of the case 
based on a lack of federal interest, no monetary loss to the governmen1.1u1l:Li lieu of agency iCbX6J.(bX7J(C) 
administrative action. (.4 ttacllment 3, Memorandum of Activity dated 9118109). 

[(b)(6J(bX7)(C) I 
On September 21, 2009 the RA telephonically interviewed Client 
S · 1 < h 11 · di (bXS).(bX?> c· ·b .,, ) ervices nc., t e co ection agency t _a e <CJ two goverrunent tt1 atJJ\ accounts . 

(b)(S)(b)(?) ·1·- d h A 21 2009 <bXSJ.(b) ·d rt·b th c· ·b k · h · <CJ · verr 1e t at on ugust , cri<CJ a1 -o o government 1t1 an accounts m t eir 
entirety. The accounts had balances of $1 ,762.48 and $648. 12, respectively. Client Services 
reQorted the pay-off to Citibank that same date. (A ttachment 4, Memorandum of Interview -

<~~s>.<i>X0ldated 9121109) . 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . . . . . 
On September 21, 2009 A US provided an email dechmng prosecution of the case. 
(Attachment 5, AUS Cbxs>.<bxrxci Declination Email dated 9121109). 
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On Septem~e 23, 20 9 the RA completed his review of the following relevant documents 
. d d b (b)(6).{bX7)(C) prov1 e 

• {b)(6).(b)(7XC) · 
a) An email forwarded from USAID ito USAID Secunty 

Specialist Calvin Revelle dated January 13, 2009. In the email 1~mci stated that all of her 
purchases on her government-issued travel card, with the exception of the ... l<b_><6_l .<b_x7_x_c>~~~~ 
Hotel charge of $179 .67, were made for personal use and not for official business. Cb><

5l<b><7l<C> 

explained that she also made charges to her other government-issued travel card which 
had been replaced and destroyed when she received her new goverrunent~issued travel 
card. 

01 b S 
(b)(6).{bX7) h' h d {b)(6).(b) d . . d 'd' . b) R y A <c) w 1c ocumente (7)(C) a m1ttmg an prov1 mg a written statement 

detailing her misuse of her government-issued travel card. 

{b)(6),(b){7) • • 
c) <c> government credit card statements from February thru December 2008 showing 

personal charges in the amount of $6,089.85 to her government issued-travel card. The 
statements also indicated payments made to the account in the amount of $3,063.47, 
leaving a balance of $3,026.38. 

d) Email fro 
account. 

{b)(6){bX7) . l d F 009 'fy ' (b){6)(bX7) ' 
(C) · to Revel e ated ebruary 24, 2 , noll mg SEC o (CJ past due ,__ _ __, 

{b)(6),(b) (b)(6) {b) 

e) Memo fro <7xc> to Citibank dated March 23, 2009, addressing (7J(C) plans to pay off 
her govenunent travel card balance. 

f) Payment schedule sent frone~~<b> 1to Revelle, (b)(GJ<b)(?)(C) and USAID[<b><G>.tb><
7
>(C> I 

ror(b)(
7
XC) I reporting her schedule to make four separate payments in the amount of 

$400 in May, June, July and August 2009. 

g) Statement from Citibank dated December 25, 2,.0Q.8 showing an overdue balance of 
$1,975.74 with a total balance of $2,325.09 o i~isJ.(b)(?J government credit card. 
(Attachment 6, R ecords Review dated 9123109). 

Defend ants/Suspects: 

Connie Hall =~=---------
USAID/SEQ~cb_)(s_>.cb_x_7lc_CJ ________ ~ 
Washin ton D.C. 
Email: {b)(6)(b)(1xci 

Telephone: (b)(G),(b)( 7XCJ 
~----~ 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 
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Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

None. 

Judicial and Administrafo•e Actions: 

None. 

Attachments: 

1. 
2. 

3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 

Memorandum of Interview <bX
5

>·<bX
7xci <lated 8/31 /09. 

Memorandum oflnterview l~m(bJ ldat~d 9/14/09 with advice of rights form and 
Sworn Affidavit. 
Memorandum of Activity (b)(S)(bX

7
l(CJ dated 9118/09. 

Memorandwn oflnterview CbX5>·<bl!7i ated 9/21/09. ----- =c~~ 

AUSA (b)(S)(bX
7xci declination email dated 9/21109. 

Records Review dated 9/23i09. 
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
Status: 

~(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

Complete 
05124/10- 07 /14/ l 0 

Cue Number: .... r _xs)-(b_x
1
_)<C_> ___ _, 

Period of Investigation: OIG/I Offiu: Washington, D.C 

Synopsis: 

r )(6)(bX7)(C) 
1 

. 
On April 08, 2010 of Management Sciences for Health 
(MSH) contacted the 010 hotline. MSH is a prime contractor that was awarded a task order on a 
contract (GHH-1-01-07-00068-00) to provide critical HIV/AIDS services to countries worldwide. 

(bXG).(b)(?><C) ovided documentation to su _ rt his alle ations that US AID Employed1bXSl (bX?><C> I 
<b><5>.(bJ<

7
xc> for the task order, violated the 

Procurement Integrity Act by: 1. attempting to remove a key personnel from MSH's proposal 
before the actual issuance of the contract. 2. directing the contractor to communicate directly 
with him and not the USAID Contracting Officer, and 3. traveling to a USAID su.b:_~tractor's 

• • • • • • (b)(6).(b) 
pla~_of residence whileJ he comD!PlY_~JlatLQ(a_USAID active bid m whic F><CJ part of 
th RbX6)(b)(7)(C) ·-·_,,! b . h to nfid +'al e Suuc;u. e WIS remain co en~1 . 

Reporting Agent (RAf°>(~l)(C) ]initiated an investigation to d! ine the facts 
d. th all . Th RA . . ed th 1 . (b~ d th . surroun mg e egations. e mterv1ew e comp aman~ c11(C'i:lan o er witnesses. 

The RA also reviewed the contract file and other documents including:~ic6HbX?) travel voucher for 
a TOY from 9/13[2_008 to 10/15/2008. The investigation did not uncover any evidence to 

bs . . f(b)(G),(b)(?)(C) all . H RA d' red (b)(G)(b) b . d t'-I lai f 
su tantiaui · egations. owever, 1scove <7l<CJ su nutte a uuse c m o 

$322.00 when laim d a lodging expense on a travel voucher w en e did not actually incur a 
lod · (b)(G).(b)(?) admi ed th fals I . l . . h led d all . l . 

gmg expense <C) tt to e e c aim exp rurung e trave un er an -me us1ve 
per diem, and claJ.m e not aware he committed a wrong-doing. (Attachment J, 

• (bX6lJbil Memorandum of Interview <7XCJ ted 07114110) 

Details of Investigation: 

On 05/27/10, the RA interviewed the compl~iut_~xsi.<bX7xci 
info . gardin th all . . RbX6l(bl ...,,,.__~--~~~~ •• 

nnation re g e egations against!<7l<C> e sta w 
temporary duty assignment in the United King om. he spent the night at the 

REPORT MADE BY: N1111t: (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
'-•===;,=--Slpliture: (bX6l .(bX7XCJ 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: (b)(6).(bX7XC) Date Slptcl: 
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emnL yee of a subcontractor who was listed as a key personnel on MH~~rono.sal. 
(bX6).(b)(7) • • {b)(6),(b)(7XC) 

<c> spent the mghl, proP:Qsal had not yet been awarded. Accordmg 1-._ 

a member ofthl'xsJ(bX7
><c> for the proposal. (Attacnment 2, 

• (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) d . I '/ Memorandum of Interview date 05/27. I 0) 

On 06/09/l 0, the RA reviewed~>.<bX7> travel y_o_uc er for a temporary duty assignment to 
London, England. According to the voucherfl~~~r> claimed lodging costs from 10/10/08 to 
10/15/08. He was authorized "flat rate" per iem and hotel receipts were not required. 
(Attachment 3, Memorandum ofRecord~ Review -Travel Voucher, dated 06109110) 

On 6/10/2010, RA conducted a record review of USAID's Automated Directive System (ADS) 
522.5.19c (All-Inclusive/Flat Rate Per Diem Reimbursement Basis). Paragraph 3 ofE522.S.19c 
states, "If no lodging expenses were incurred, and the time in travel status is 12 hours or more, 
then Y. the locality M&IE rate will be paid The trnveler mu~1 include the following statement on 
the travel voucher: No lodging costs were incurred for the dates specified on this voucher." 
(AttachmenJ 4, ADS 522.5.19c, dated 811612005) 

• • (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

On 06/10/10, the RA contacted Assistant Umted States Attome Fraud and 
• • , (<b)(6) (bX7)(C) lW 

Pubhc Corruption Section. The RA e_d_the case to1 who evaluated the matter for 
• , (b)(6).(b)(7XCJ l . . . , 

prosecutonal potential. On 06/23/10 declmed the case for cnmmal prosecution. 
(AttachmenJ 5, AUSA Declination (bX&> ated 06123110) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

r X6l.(bX7XCl 

US AID/Washington 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence or seized contraband. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

On 7 /28/l 0, the case was referred to the Office of Human Resources for administrative action. 
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Attachments: 

• f<b)(6) (bX7lj 
1. Memorandum oflnterv1ew cc> dated 07 /l 7 /10 
2. Memorandwn oflnterview <b><S>.<bi<

7
xc) dated 05/27 /10 

3. Memorandum of Records Review - Travel Voucher. dated 06/09/10 
4. Memorandum of Records Review, ADS 522.5.19c- dated 8/16/2005 
5. AUSA Declination- dated 06/23/10 
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INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

C Titl 
(bX6J (b)C.7XCJ ase e:.___ ____ ....,, C N--1..- (bX6)(b)(7XCl ase ~r:t _______ __, 

Status: Completed 
Period of Investigation: March 16, 2011toDecember27, 2011 RIG/I Office: Cairo 

Synopsis: 

, • , (bX6l (bX7XC) 
In March 2011, USAID OIG received a complaint concermng the travel vouchers of_._ _ __ _, 

l<
0

x
5><0

x;xcl ] i~0X5l<0x7xcl at USAID/Mozambique. From September 2010 to 
February 201 1,i~~6> <oxri was assigned to Washington, DC, where he was enrolled in language 
training at the Foreign Service Institute. He was also accompanied by his wife and three 
children. During this ti.mJc~~sicox7> and his dependents were entitled to a "sliding-scale" per diem 
reimbursement for their actual lodging expenses. For the first 60 days of his temporary duty 
assignment (TDY) l~~6> <ox

7
> was entitled to 100°/o of the lodging rate, 50% of the lodging rate for 

the subsequent 60 days, and 25% of the lodging rate for any period after this. For the first 30 
days of his TDY, his spouse was entitled to 75% of the lodging rate, while each of his three 
dependents was entitled to 50% of the lodging rate. During his training, i~~6) <0x1

l ~ted an 
artment in Arlington, VA, through a company called <oxsl cox

7
xc> 

(bX6)(bX7XCJ .._ _ ___ _ 

It was alleged tha~~~6> <°K
1
l lodging receipts were not accurate, as l~~~/0) submitted lodging 

receipts for $17,800, $10,000, $3,167.50, $2,805.50, and $1,583.75 forrent for the months of 
September 2010 through January 2011, respectively. 

Based on the allegations, USAID OIG initiated an investigation. Witness interviews, original 
. d ed Cb)(&) Cb)(7) (bX6).(b)(7) • 

receipts, and other ocuments reveal tha <C> requested tha <Cl create a false receipt, 
which he later submitted to USA ID for reimbursement.!~~~6) <ox

7
> aJso admitted to using his 

personal credit card for his lodging expenses. These acts were in violation of: 

• 18 United States Code Section 1001 - statements or entries generally 
• USAID Automated Directives System 633.3.3 - Government-Sponsored Travel Card 

i~~a) (bXil submitted a lodging receipt to USAID showing that he paid $3,167.50 for November2010 
rent. According to a credit card sales draft onlv S2.55650_was charectlto~<°K1> l credit card 
ti N b 2010 (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) fu.J<bX6)(b)(7)(C) f"::Jcn led ed th or ovem er rent. e J ac ow g at 
for October 20 l O~~t cox

7

> had anticipated his lodging allowance to be $10,000, but the allowance 

REPORT MA.DB BY: NAtniJCb)(6) (bX7XCJ 

~(bX6) (bX7XCl Slpanare: ___ ~ 

___________ __,f<bX6)(b)(7)(C) 

~=~1 APPROVING omCIAL: 

Date Slpecl: 111612iOU 

DateSlped: 

tJ30z 



Pagel 
E (bX7XC) "=1 

Period: March 16, 2011 to November 29, 2011 

tuall d ed b ab t $600 T ak fo th d 'ffi (b)(6)(bX7) k (bX6)(bX7XC) to ac y ecreas y ou . o m e up r e i erencee_ as 
create a receipt showing that $3, 167 .50 was paid for November 2010 rent, even though he 
actually only paid $2,556.50 for rent that month. 

When questioned in an interview :~~
6

><b explained that he paid $10,000 for October 2010 rent, 
but later found out that the lodging allowances for that period had decreased by $610.50. After 

(bX6J (b)(7) , 

having paid $10,000 for the October 2010 ren <Cl proposed amending the lease schedule, 
reducing the October 2010 rent from $10,000 to $9,389.50 and increasing the November rent 
from $2,556.50 to $3, t 70.50. For November 2010 rent.i~m<b> paid $2,556.50, as shown by a 
credit card sales draft. The $610.50 "overage" for October 2010 rent was reapplied to his 
November rent payment, which resulted in a rent receipt showing that he paid $3, 167.50. He 
also admitted to using his personal credit card because he had reached the credit limit on his 
government travel card, which was $15,000. 

This investigation is completed. 

Details of Investigation: 

On March 16 2011 (bXS) (bX
7
)(C) of_the (b)(6)(bX7xci 

(bX6)(b)(7)(C) • • eel (bX6)(bX7) 'ded-d----.--l -ed-~th---l-...-----1 
.. __ was mterview . <c> provi ocwnentation re at to e trave expenses of 

l~~6)(bX
7

> showing tha~:~~6> (bX
7
l submitted lodging receipts for reimbursement of S 17,800, $10,000, 

$3,167.50, $2,805.50, and $1,583.75 for lod2in~expenses in Washingto~ DC between 
September 7, 2010, and January 31, 2011. :~~6) (bX

7
) was assigned to temporary duty in Washington 

for langqajte training. His travel authorizajjon.included lodging for his spouse and three 
children ~~~~\ :J advised that per ADS 522)i~~~\ ~was entitled to decreasing monthly lodging 
allowances, as well as meals and incidental expet1$es_, but that lodging receipts were required for 
the reimbursement of his actual lodging expenses.:~:s)<bX7l thought that $17,800 was a large 
amount for 24 days of lodging and that it was unusii81 or rent payments to decrease substantially 
over several months, as indicated by the receipts.:~~6> (bX

7
> advised that these vouchers had been 

paid in full. (Attachment 1) 

On Marrh 21. 2011, the facts of the case were presented to Assistant United States Attorney 
(AUSA)<b)(S)(bX7

xc> of the Fraud and Public Corruption Division of the US Attorney's 
Office for the District of Columbia. AUS '<bXSl {bX

7
l<C> indicated that more investigative work 

needed to be completed before he would decide whether or not to accept the case for 
prosecution. (Attachment 2) 

(bX6) (bX7XC) 

(Attachment 3) 



Pa 3 (b)(6) (bX7)(C) 

Period: March 16, 2011 to November 29, 2011 

. ~~~m 
On March 24, 2011, a recoro review was conducted o cc> travel vouchers. The vouchers 

. ed . flod . . ub . edb (b)(G),(b) ~ . b . th f contain copies o gmg receipts s mitt <7XCJ 1or reun ursement in e amounts o 
$17,800, $10,000, $3,167.50, $2,805.50, and Sl,583.75, for the months of September 2010 
through January 2011, respectively. (Attachment 4) 

. . (b)(6),(b)(7) 
On March 24, 2011, a record review was conducted of the d~ents provided b <Cl The 
d • ed 'ginal 1 d . . :t.. • ed b_ffbXG)(bl &. • b • th ocwnents contain on o gmg receipts suumitt ye ><CJ 1or reun ursement m e 
amounts of$17,800, $10,000, $3,167.50, $2,805.50, and $1,583.75, for September 2010 through 
Jan~ 2011, respectively. There were also credit card transaction receipts that verified that 

1~~sJcbX7l was charged $15,000 and $2,800 on October 6, 2010. An addendum to~~><s>.<bl<7> lease 
agreement lists a payment schedule of$17,800, Sl0,000, $3,700, $3,000, $1,800, and $900 for 
the months of September through February. (Attachment 5) 

On March 24, 2011)~~~/b> advised that if an employee's lodging receipts are real, and if an 
actual monetary transaction took lace to generate such receipts, then the government would 

, l (bX6l (b)(7) gul · th u1 have to reimburse the trave er.cc> was not aware of any rules or re ations at wo d be 
broken if an employee entered into a lease agreement with declining monthly rental payments, 
and then submitted rental receipts to the government for reimbursement. (Attachment 6) 

b <?~ ~pril 11, 201 iJ::l (b)(l)(C) ------ Jwas interviewed. He advised that 
le~><><> h ad anticipated an October 2010 lodging allowanCJ' ofSl0,000, but the allowance then 

decreased by about $600. To cover the differen 1~~6) (b)(
7
) asked him to create a receipt for 

November rent that showed an amount about $600 above wha l~~~/b1 actually paid for November 
rent. He made a receipt showing that $3,167.50 was paid for November rent, even thoug:Il<bXGJ<bX7l<C> I 
only paid $2,556.50 for rent that month. (Attachment 7) 

On October 11, 2011 , 1~~~/b> was interviewed. He advised that he had sought advice from others 
at USAID/U ganda, where he had previously been posted, who told him about renting lodging on 
a sliding-scale payment schedule. He paid $I 0,000 for October rent, but later found out that the 
lodging allowances had decreased. He then agreed with his landlord to amend the lease 
schedule, reducing the October rent from $10,000 to $9,389.50, and increasing the November 
rent from $2,556.50 to $3,167.50. As shown by a credit card sales draft, he actually paid 
$2,556.50 for November rent. The $610.50 "overage" for October rent was reapplied to his 
November rent p vmenLwhich.resultedjn a rent receinisho · g that he paid $3,167.50. He . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
commumcated to that he had changed the schedule 
of his rent payments. He also admitted to using his personal credit card because he had reached 
the credit limit on his government travel card, which was $15,000. (Attachment 8) 

• . . (b)(6) (b) [(b)(6)(bX7)(C) I 
On November 29, 201 1, a record review was conducted of an email(7)<ci sent to 
an l~~6) .(bX7l In the e·mailf<bXG> !advises that he modified his October 2010 rent to $9,389.50. 
Th . . f th &. tha h al ask (bXG),(b)(7) . hi N b 2010 . ere 1s no mention o e 1act t e so <cl to mcrease s • ovem er receipt 
so that he could recoup USAID reimbursement funds not received in October. (Attachment 9) 



Pa~ 
~l(b=)(6)~.(b=)(1=xc~) - -"" J 

Period: March 16, 2011toNovember19, 2011 

On December 13, 2011, a record review was conducted of ADS regulations 522.3.12.1 and 
633.3.3. ADS 522.3.12. l states that for each day of a TDY, a traveler is entitled to receive the 
actual amount oflodging expenses up to the maximum allowance established for the IDY 
location. ADS 633.3.3 states that travelers must use their government-sponsored travel card for 
lodging and other travel expenses; if the card is not used for these expenses, the traveler must 
provide an explanation on their voucher. (Attachment 10) 

On December 27, 2011, a record review was conducted of Federal Travel Regulation (FTR) 
301.11-14. This regulation states that when an employee obtains lodging on a long-term basis, 
the lodging rate is determined by dividing the total lodging cost by the number of days of 
occupancy for which the traveler is entitled to per diem. (Attachment 11) 

On January 13, 2012, Aus (b)(S).(b)<lXC) d lined th ~ . (A hm 12) ec e case ior prosecution. ttac ent 

Subjects/Defendants/Suspects: 

~(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Penonal Property: 

None 

Judicial and Administrative Acdons: 

None 

Attachments: (bXS) (bXl) 

1. Mem d of Interview (MOI) <C> March 16, 2011 
2. MOl: (b)(S)(b)(J)<C> March 21, 2011 
3. Mo1i~~s)(bXl) arch 23 2011 
4. Record Review (RR ill~>'6)cbx7i lvouchers1 March24, 2011 
5. RR:<0xs).(bX

7
xc) liocuments, March 24, 2011 

6. MOI <~~s) (b)(
1

) March 24, 2011 
7. MOI (b)(S).(b)(lXC) April 11, 2011 
8. MO )~s><bX?) October 11 2011 

(b)(6),(b) i::: . , 
9. RR: Fxci email, November 29, 2011 
10. RR: ADS 522.3.12.1and633.3.3, December 13, 2011 
11. RR: FfR 301.11-14, December27._2Q1J 
12 M d f Co ti. f(b)(SJ.CbXlJ(C) J 13 2012 . emoran um o nversa on anuary , 
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Case Title: 
Status: 

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

C N be 
l(bX6) (bX7XC) 

Reduced M&IE Policy ase um r:'L 
---~ 

Complete 
Period of Investigation: April 2011- August 2011 OIG/I Office: Port-au-Prince 

Synopsis: 

This investigation was predicated on information provided to the OIG concerning allegations of 
non-compliance with a USAID/Haiti mission notice in which the Meals and Incidental Expenses 
(M&IE) reimbursement rate had been reduced for visiting Temporary Duty (TOY) personnel. 
The executive officer (EXO) at USAID/Haiti, in conjunction with the mission's controller, 
decided that due to the large nwnber of TOY personnel arriving at post for lengthy stays, it was 
appropriate to control costs by reducing the maximum M&IE rate. 

Effective March 1, 2011:<bX6)<bx
1

xC> _] implemented EXO Notice 2011-001, in 
which TDY personnel who were ''provided lodging in TDY quarters with facilities to prepare 
meals" were only entitled to a daily M&IE rate of $60, less than half the allowable rate of$122. 
EXO Notice 2011-001 indicated that it relied on Volume 14, Foreign Affairs Manual, Section 
573.3-l(a) (14 FAM 573.3-l(a)). 

A subsequent USAID Staff Notice, dated February 25, 2011, further explained the provisions of 
EXO Notice 2011-001 and referenced Department of State (DOS) Administrative 
Annowicement 282-2010 (DOS AA 282-2010). DOS AA 282-2010 relied on the provisions of 
DOS, Standardized Regulations, Section 120 (DSSR 120). 

The investigation determined that 14 FAM 573.3-l(a) is a nonexistent FAM citation. 14 FAM 
572.3-1 appears to be the intended reference citation for EXO Notice 2011-001 . 14 FAM 572.3-
1 allows for a reduced per diem rate "such as when meals are provided at no cost or at nominal 
cost by the US Government". The provisions in DOS AA 282-2010 and DSSR 120 do not apply 
to 1DY personnel. 

RE.PORT MADE BY: N-. Dlte Slpecl1Auptt10, ltll 
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f th 1 fli USAID/H 
. . . l d' (DX6).(b)(7XCl 

None o ere evant o cers at 81tl, me u m.o.·----.. -~---~-___ _ 
(b)(S)(b)(7XC) l(i))(S)(bX7KCl l bl t 'd th

0 

OIG 'th 'ta..: from were a e o proVl e e w1 a ct uon 
the FAM, DSSR, or any other authority that specifically allowed a reduced M&IE rate for TDY 
personnel based on the fact they were provided with lodging facilities that included facilities to 
prepare meals. 

Details of Investigation: 

In April 2011, Special Agent<bXS)(bXlXC)-,received information that some USAID personnel in Haiti 
on TDY status were not complying with a USAID/Haiti policy in which the daily M&IE rate had 
been reduced (Attachment l). 

Investigation determined that on December 7, 2010, the DOS, Port-au-Prince, Haiti, issued DOS 
AA 282-2010, entitled Temporary Quarters Subsistence AJlowance (TQSA) (attachment 2). 
The intent of DOS AA 282-2010 was to assist permanently assigned DOS employees, housed in 
temporary lodging, with the reasonable cost of meals and laundry expenses. For a period not to 
exceed 90 days from the date of arrival at post, employees were entitled to reimbursement not to 
exceed one half of the daily Port-au-Prince M&IE rate. The anno\.Ulcement references OSSR 
120 as the post's policy guidance (attachment 3). 

(b)(6)(bX7XCl . . . 
On January 31, 2011 ~ ssued EXO Notice 2011-001 , entitled Reduced M&IE Rates 
(attachment 4). The notice implemente:d a policy, effective March I , 2011 , in which certain 
TDY USAID personnel would only be entitled to M&IE reimbursement at a re:duced rate. 
Pursuant to the notice, a11 TOY personnel arriving in Haiti on or after the date of the notice, 
were limited to reimbursement of $60.00 per day if they had been provided with temporary 
lodging quarters equipped with facilities to prepare meals. According to the notice, the current 
M&IE rate for Port-au-Prince was $122.00 per day. 

EXO notice 2011-001 referenced14 FAM 573.3-l (a) as the policy guidance however, the OIG 
detennined the reference is incorrect as 14 FAM 573.3-l(a) is not a part of the FAM. The 
closest numerical FAM citation is 14 FAM 573.3 which concerns travel in conjunction with 
crossing the International Date Line (attachment 5). It appears that a possible intended 
reference is located at 14 FAM 572.3-1 , Reduced Rate Per Diem (attachment 6). This reference 
provides for a re:duced M&IE rate "such as when meals are provided to the employee at no cost 
or at nominal cost by the U.S. Government". 14 FAM 572.3-1 requires that the reduced rate 
"must be stated on the travel authorization before travel begins and may not be changed after 
travel is underway or completed". TOY personnel subject to EXO Notice 2011-001 were not 
provided with meals at no cost or at nominal cost TDY personnel staying in TOY group guest 
houses had access to full kitchen facilities. TOY personnel staying at the Handal Vilaj housing 
had access to a small microwave oven, compact refrigerator and a sink (attachment 7). 
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On February 25, 2011,~(b)(l)(c> USAID!Haiti, issued a joint USAID!Haiti EXO 
and Office of Financial Management (OFM) Staff Notice that referenced EXO Notice 2011-001 
and DOS AA 282-2010 (attachment 8). The Staff Notice appears to have amended EXO Notice 
2011-001 in that it stated the reduced M&IE policy applied to all TOY personnel regardless of 
the date of their arrival in Haiti and identified the allowable M&IE rate as $61.00. 

• • (b)(6) (b)(7) • • (b)(6).(b)(7) 
On June 10, 2011, an interview o <c> was conducted m whic (c) was not able to 
provide specific, accurate reference(s)iliiii allowed for a reduction of the M&IE rate when TOY 
personnel were provided with lodging that included some type of cooking facilities (attachment 
9). 

• , (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) • , (b)(6).(b)(7)(Cfl 
On July 18, 2011, an mterview o was conducted m wh1c as not able to 
provide specific, accurate reference(s) that allowed for a reduction of the M&IB rate when TDY 
personnel were provided with lodging th.at included some type of cooking facilities (attachment 
10). 

On August 9, 2011, an interview o l~~6> <bx ) was conducted in whicl:li~~61 (bX
7
> elied on 14 FAM 

. . th~ (b)(6) (b)(7) 
572.3-1 as the authonty to reduce e M&IE rate. cc> stated that due to the large nwnber of 
TDY personnel arriving at post for lengthy stays, a decision was made by the offices of the EXO 
and Controller to oontrol costs by cutting the maximum M&IE rate by half. ~~~6) (bXll stated he did 
not believe that all travel authorizations issued to IDY personnel reflected the reduced M&IE 
rate as required by 14 FAM 572.3-1(attachment11). 

Based on a review of Travel Authorizations (TAs) and Travel Vouchers (TV) available from 
USAJD!Haiti, Financial Management, the reporting agent determined that the TAs and TVs all 
contained an indicated M&IE rate of $122.00. Some also contained a notation that the rate was 
reduced to $60.00, and in some cases, $61.00. The TVs reflect M&IE claims of$122, $61.00 and 
$60.00 (attachment 12). 

At the time of this report, EXO Notice 2011~001 remains in effect. 

Undeveloped Leads: 

NIA 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

NIA 

Jud.iclal and Administrative Actions: 



Report of Investigation; Reduced M&JE ~olic_y 
(oX6) (DX7XC) 

Page4of4 

Refer to USAID/Haiti for administrative action 

Attachments: 

1. MOI: l~~s> (bX
7
> 4/25/11 

2. Department of State, Administrative Announcement 282-2010 (DOS AA 282-2010) 
3. Department of State Standardized Regulations, Section 120 (DSSR 120) 
4. EXO Notice 2011-001 
5. 14 FAM 573.3 
6. 14 FAM 572.3-1 
7. Memo to File 
8. USAID/Haiti Joint Staff Notice 
9. MOI: ~~~S)(bX7) 6/10/11 
1 o. MOr XS) (bX

7
)(C) l 7 /18/11 

11. MOI 8/9/11 
12. RR: Travel Authorizations, 8/10/11 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

C T
•t1 l!b)(6)(b)(7XC) c N b (b)(6)(bX7XC) ase 1 e: ase um er: ---------

Status: Oosed 
Period of Investigation: May 24, 2011 to September 26, 2011 RIG/I Office: Cairo 

Synopsis: 

In May 2011, the USAID OIG Hotline received an anonymous complaint containing several 
allegations agains coxs> These included his alleged submission of 
fraudulent lodging receipts to USAID for reimbursement. His time and attendance records were 
also described by the complainant as "inaccurate" and insurance vouchers that he submitted for 
reimbursement increased significantly, and were "in question." 

ioxs>.<b><
7
xc> i$_.a GS-14 equivalent onal services contractor, working at USAID/Ki~i as <b><5><bX7><C1 

~~ ~~~~~~ ~ 
medically evacuated to the United States in October 2010 fo l~~s)(b)(71 to give birth. The two 
remained in the United States witil mid-March 20ll.J roJnJ 30, 2010 to March 15, 2011, 
th ta ed • th (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) • (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) hi h • artm t ey s y m e 10 w c is an ap en 
building managed by Bozzuto Management. 

Based on the complaint, USAID OIG initiated an investigation. The investigation revealed that 
coxs> <

0
X
1

><C> submitted fraudulent lodging receipts for reimbursement of his travel expenses, in 
violation of: 

• 18 United States Code (USC} Section 1001 - Statements or entries generally 
• 18 USC Section 287 - False, fictitious or fraudulent claims 
• 3 Foreign Affairs Manual 4138 (10) - Standards of Conduct 

(bXS)(bX
7
)(C) sub . ed 1 d . • &. • b • di . th h 'd ta} f C' mitt o gmg receipts J.Of reun ursement m c at e pm a to o o1124, 797 

for lodging from October 30, 2010 to March 15, 2011. <bx
6

>.cbx
7
xq admitted that his actual lodging 

expenses were less than this amount. Records from the apartment management company where 
he stayed and copies of checks indicate tha :~~<G>.<b><7> paid $14,196.68 for the apartment. 

When questioned in an interview coxs> (bX
1

><C1 first said that it was his wife that asked for the inflated 
receipts, claiming miscommunication. Later in the interview, he claimed that he asked for the 

REPORT MADE BY: 5 Date Silnecl: ot/UllOll 

------------f(bX6)(bX7XC) 
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Pa e2 (bX6).(b)!7XCl 

Period: May 24, 2011 to September 26, 2011 

inflated receipts. He said that he paid separately for utilities, cable television. and internet 
service, which he did not pay to the apartment management company, though these items 
appeared on his lodging invoices. He admitted that he asked someone at the apartment 
management company to create a false invoice, which he later submitted to USAID. 

(bXG)(b)(?)(C) 'd d "tt tat t H t that h ''willfull ked th (bXG).(b)(7)(C) to . fl t provt e a wn en s emen . e wro e e y as m a e 
the invoice to be based on the per diem for Washington DC." He explain at nediif this to 
avoid the complexity of vouchering for things such as insurance, cable, internet, and electlfoity • 
amenities he would have received had he stayed in a hotel. He expressed that he did not do this 
for financial gain, but to reduce the complexity of his vouchers. 

The investigation did not substantiate thaJ<bxsi <b><
7

icc> ~ime and attendance records were 
inaccurate. Additionall the investigation did not show any wrong doing, malfeasance, or false 
claims related t (b)(G).<bX7l<CJ insurance vouchers. 

Details of Investigation: 
(b)(6).(b)(7)(CJ 

On May 5, 2011, the USAID OIG Hotline received an anonymous complaint agains It 
was alleged that he submitted fraudulent lodging receipts. His time and attendance records were 
also described by the complainant as "inaccurate" and insurance vouchers that he submitted for 
reimbursement increased significantly, and were "in question." (Attachment 1) 

On June 8, 2011, USAID/Kigali'.<bX5l<bX7i<c> lwas inteni~wed~ She advised that 
i~ <bl<7J<CJ =:,]were medically evacuated to Washington, DC. (bXSl<bX7l<CJ was supposed to be 

telecommuting during this time, but his timesheets were a ''mess." He had submitted a planned 
work/leave schedule, but he asked a secretary at USAID/Ki i to make corrections after the fact, 
changing planned leave days to work days. Additionally <bl<G> <bX7l<C> request for insurance 
reimbursement increased dramatically. 

(b)(6).(b)(7) . (oX6) (bX7)(C) . . . . . 
cc further advtsed tha lodging receipts did not look legitimate. She requested that 

(b)(S),(b)(7) "d f f c. hi lod . 11 led fro th 1 h 'h 
(C) RfOVl e proo o payment ior s gmg, as we as a ger m e p ace w ere . e 
stayoot~s).(b><7> requested a face to face meeting wi i~~s).(b><1> and then explained that the receipts 
he submittoofor reimbursement were inoorrect; the amount shown on the lodging receipts he 
submitted did not match the amount withdrawn from his bank account to pay for his lodging. He 
said to her that when he requested a receipt from a woman working at the residence where he 
stayed, he told her that the per diem lodging rate was the maximwn that he could pay; she may 
have gotten confused and printed a receipt showing that the maximum per diem rate had been 
spent for each day of his stay. He also claimed that his wife was handling the lodging, and that 
he was not involved. (Attachment 2) 

On June 8, 2011, a records review was conducted of documents provided b ~~~6l<bX?l concerning 
<bXSHbX7><CJ travel voucher. <bXSJ.<bX7xc> submitted for reimbursement six lodging receipts from the 



Pa e3 
(bX6) (b)(7)(C) 

Period: May 24, 2011 to September 26, 2011 

showing a total lodging expense of $24,797.00. Accord~=to=a~~ 
ledger tha ~~~s)(bX1' gave toi~~&)(bX1' he only incurred $14,196.68 in expenses from th<1<bXS)(bX7xci 
(Attachment 3) 

On Jwie 14, 2011 (bXSJ(b)<lXCJ Bozzuto Management, was 
interviewed at th~b)(S) (bXlXC) He replaced<b)(S) <bXlxc, who was then working at a different 
Bozzuto property, and advised that it was not stan ar practice to create invoices or receipts for 
residents. If they were requested, invoices have to be created manually by reading a resident's 
ledger, totaling the charges, and transcn'bing it on the invoice. (Attachment 4) 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
On June 15, 2011 
. . ed th (b)(6) (bX7XC) 
interview at e 

Bozzuto Management. was 
She advised that she handled1bxsi<ox7xc, account 

hil h ed th (b)(S) (b)(l)(C) bad ked h • • • h • h hi w e e stay at e . as er to wnte mvo1ces s owmg w at s 
expenses would look like based on $181 per day for lodging expenses. He asked her for receipts 
multiple times <bX&) <bX7l<ci said specificall what he wanted printed on his receiJ>tS to include 
descriptions and the dollar amount (b)(S).(b)(lJ<C> was shown the receipts tha (b)(&J(bJ<1:Jsubmitted to 
USAID for reimbursement and acknowledged that she had created those receipts, and that none 
of the receipts accurately reflected the amount that he expended on lodging during the period of 
time covered by the receipts. She thought thal~~sJ(bJ(l) asked for ~_ts showing both inflated 
lodging expenses and his actual lodging expenses. Based on what xs)(bXlxc, told her, she believed . . . (bX6J (b)(7XC) 
he needed the receipts for an "executive summary of his expenses." If she knew thaL .... _ _ __, 
was goingJo submit the inflated receipts for reimbursement, she would not have created them. 
She sai (bX6

> <bXlXCJ wife had no dealings with the account. (Attachment 5) 

fo)(6) (b)(7)(C) . . . . 
On August 11, 2011 f USAID/Office of Acquts1tton and Assistance, 
Washington, DC, was interviewed. She advised that USAID is not supposed to reimburse the 
premiums for separate dental insurance plans for PSCs. However, if the dental insurance is 
included in an insurance package that includes a basic health insurance plan, USAID will pay for 
the whole package. (Attachment 6) 

On August 16, 201 1.<bXS)(bXlXC) USAJD!Ki~txsl<bx,xc, was interviewed. She 
advised that she was1<bXS)(bX7xc, 'supervisor. Wh l~~&HbX 7> had been granted permission to work 
remotely while in Washington, DC, there was no telework agreement, nor was he given 
instructions on how to log his work hours. In several instances, he requested changes to his 
timesheets after they had been approved, saying that he actually worked hours during which he 
had initially said he would be taking leave. She also felt that her team was not getting the same 
level of support that they had come to expect fro lfbl<SJ<bx7xq'when he was in Rwanda. 
(Attachment 7) 

On August 23, 2011r S)(b)(lXC) USAID/Rwanru{XS)(b)(lXC) was 
. . ed Sh 'd tha l <bXS><bXlXC) 1 . ed th h ki d . h th mterview . e sai t at east on c aun . at e was wor ng unng ours at 
had been marked on his timesheet as leave. In this particular instance, she thought that it was 



P~e4 l(b)(6) (b=)(7=)(C"'°') --"'-- =1 
Period: May 14, 1011 to September 26, 1011 

(bX6) (bX7l 
very unusual because(c) himself had initially requested to take leave during the period in 
question. (Attachment 8) 

On August 31, 2011, a records review was c.onducted of docwnents subpoenaed from Bozzuto 
Management Several documents subpoenaed, includin2-.tw_o lease agreements, and an 
dd d . di ted th (b)(S)(b)( 7)(C) thl t t th l(bX6)(b)(7x;J $2 723 B t 1 a en um, m ca a mon y ren a t1 was , . ozzu o a so 
rq__vided copies of the resident ledgers, which corresponded with those tha~l<bX71 provided to 

<b>(5>.(b)(7XCl Also included among the docwnents were copies of the inflated invoices tha~(bX5HbX7l<C> ---, 
had submitted for reimbursement. Additionally, there were receipts for three months showing 
lower rent payments than the inflated receipts: October: $175.68; November: $2, 723; and 
February: $2,723. (Attachment 9) 

On September 8 2011, the case was referred for criminal prosecution to Assistant United States 
Attom ,(bXS><bX7xc> =1in the District of Columbia. On September 9, 2011, (bX5>(bX7XC> 

declined to prosecute the case and advised that USAID could proceed with appropriate 
administrative alternatives. (Attachment 10) 

On September 15, 201 l,1bxsi<bX
7
xc, was interviewed. When first questioned about his vouchers, he 

claimed that his wife asked for the receipts showing the inflated expenses and that she was the 
one handling the lodging during the medical evacuation. He claimed there must have been some 
kind of miscommunication which resulted in the apartment management comoany providing 

. h . . fl ed H 1 . ed th h . ed b. f(b~S)(bX7) bo h' receipts s owmg 1n at expenses. e c aim at w en questlon YL(Cl a ut 1s 
lodging expenses, he realized that the receipts he submitted for reimbursement did not 
correspond with what he actually paid for lodging. He apologized to her for the mistake. 

Later in the interview, he claimed that he asked that the receipts show the maximum govemment 
per diem rate for lodging. He explained that if he stayed at a hotel, he would have been entitled 
to other amenities that he would not otherwise receive if he were staying at an apartment. He 
paid separately for utilities, cable television, internet service, and insurance. He did not pay for 
these services through the apartment management company. He admitted that he asked someone 
to create a document that was false, which he later submitted to USAID. At the time, he did not 
know if these additional expenses were reimbursable. 

(bX5>.(b)(7XC> explained that his health insurance premiums increased in late 2010 because his 
msurance group switched to a different health care provider, which was more expensive. His 
premiums increased again after be added hls newborn twins to the plan. 

Based upon seeing a document which detailed his work activities, he claimed that he was in fact 
working during the last two weeks of December 2010. He offered to provide e-mails to prove 
that he was working. (Attachment 11) 
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Period: May 24, 2011 to September 26, 2011 

• • • (bX6l (b)(7) • • • 

On September 15, 2011, a few hours after bis mterne c> voluntanly provided a wntten 
• i(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) • • • 

statement. He wrote that he "willfully asked th . to mflate the invoice to be based on 
the per diem for Washington DC." He explained that he did this to avoid the complexity of 
vouchering for things such as insurance, cable, internet, and electricity, which he would have 
received had he been living in a hotel. He expressed that he did not do this for financial gain, but 
did so to reduce the complexity of his vouchers. (Attachment 12) 

• , , (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

On September 26, 2011, the reporting agent conducted a record review of the e-mails.__ __ __, 
provided to prove that he was working during the last pay period of2010. The e-mails indicated 
that he worked on several issues during this period. His e-mails also referenced several 
conversations that he had with various USAID staff and contractors. {Attachment 13) 

On_,.S~tember 26, 2011, the reporting agent conducted a record review of the information that 
i(bj(Sl(b)(?)(C~ 'ded ' hi ' 1 In Q b 2010 hi . . bed 1_ provi concemmg s msurance p an. cto er , s msurance group sWJtc 

to a plan that cost $1301.60 per month for an employee and a spouse, and $1998.92 per month 
for a family. (Attachment 14) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

l(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

None 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

This case was referred to the U.S. Department of Justice for prosecution, but was declined on 
September 9, 2011. 

ffi . lb . fin . USAID/Ki l , (bX6).(b)(7XC) b Ano c1a ne g was gtven to ga on Septem er 
15, 2011. Following the briefi.n i~rl.<bX?> decided to l imiti<bX

5
><bX

1
><CJ activities or those necessary 

to complete the hand-over of his respons1 ilities. ~~6> (b)(?) also cancell (bX
5

>.(b><
7

xc> planned 
consultations in_\\'_ash.irurton~and a temporary duty assi8iiment to France, wlifo had been 

(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 

scheduled fo reported that $5,433 of funds from President's Emergency Plan for 
AIDS Relief had been de-committed as a result of the cancellation o <bl<G><bX?><Cl travel. 

A written referral memo will be sent to USAID/Kigali. 
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Period: May 24, 2011 to September 26, 2011 

Attachments: 

1. Hotline£Q_mnlaint, May 3, 2011 
2. F s)(b><

7
XC> =1Memorandwn of Interview (MOI), Jwie 8, 2011 

3. Records Review of travel voucher docwnentation, Jwte 8, 2011 

5. (b)(S>.<bl<?XC> MOI, June 15, 2011 
4. (b)(S)(bX

7
><C> ~\ 01, June 14, 2011 

6. Cbl<
5><1>><7>cc> MOI, August 11, 2011 

7. c1>xs>.<1>X?XC> 01, August 16, 2011 
8. !MOI, August 23, 2011 
9. Records Review of subpoenaed documents Au t 31, 2011 
10. Declination letter from AUS <t>><s>.<t>X

7
>cci September 9, 2011 

11 (b)(S).(b)!
7

>!c> MOI, September 15, 2011 
12 written Statement, September 15, 2011 
13 work emails records review, September 26, 2011 
14 insurance emails records review, September 26, 2011 



 



• ~: U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERN~TIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title~x7xq 
Status: Completed 

C be 
ffOX6) (bX7XC) ase Num r: ... L ___ ___ __, 

Period of Investigation: July 8, 2011 to September 29, 2011 RIG/I Office: Cairo 

Synopsh: 

In June 2011 the USAID OIG Hotline received an anonymous complaint alleginJLtha~(bXSHbX?xc> 
(bx6) (bx7XC) . . (bX6) (bX7XC) 

· a personal services contractor working at USAID/Rwanda as 
(bX5l<bx7xc) had not identified all personal phone calls on her phone bill, and signed the bill 
indicating that some of these personal calls were official. 

Based on the complaint, USAID OIG initiated an investigation. The investigation revealed that 
r)(b)(?)(C) ]failed tO identify a Dwnher Of her personal calls, in violation Of: 

• 18 United States Code Section 1001 - Statements or entries generally 
• US Embassy Kigali Management Procedure Number 27, dated June 23, 2011 - Use of 

Official Cell Phones. 

(bX6l (bX7XC) 
From February 2010 to December 2010, made 34 caJls to Uganda and five calls 
to Yemen during weekends or weekdays after 9:00 pm, which she did not mark as personal calls. 
She also made 19 calls to the United States on weekends (excluding December 2010), which she 
also did not mark as personal. The approximate cost of these calls is $159.41. 

. . . . t(bX6)(bX7XC) 
When questioned man mterview1 acknowledged that calls to Uganda and 
Yemen on weekends or after 9:00 pm are personal. She acknowledged that calls to the United 
States on weekends were also personal calls, with the exception of December 2010 when she 
made phone calls to oorrect a problem with her travel card, She said that her actions were "very 
careless" and "reckless"; she did not make marking her personal phone calls a priority. She 
offered to pay for any calls in question that may have been personal. 

Due to the low dollar amount of the questionable calls, a referral will not be made. However an 
oral briefing of the facts of this case was made to USAID/Rwanddfbxsi<bx?)(C) lon 
January 4, 2012. Any action taken was requested to be reported to the OIG. This case is 
completed. 

Rl!J'ORT MADE BY: Dau Slped: 114/2011 NameJlbX6l (bX7XC) 
S 

(bX6).(bX7XC) 
lptve: 

~----~-~~-~--f(b~X6~)(b~)(7~XC~) :::::::::::==:=----
AJ'PMOVING OFFICl.AL: Name: DateS&ped: 

Slpabt 



Pa~l f<6f<bX7)(C.-,-) -~ =:J 
Period: July 8, 2011 to September 19, 2011 

Details of Investigation: 

In June 2011, the USAID OIG Hotline received an anonymous complaint alleging tha <bXG><bx
7
xc, 

:~~5> CbX7> bad not identified all personal phone calls on her phone bill, and signed the bill indicating 
that some of these personal calls were official expenses. (Attachment 1) 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) l 
On September 12, 2011, USAID/Rwan was interviewed. 
She advised that she was'b)(S)<b><7>cc> supervisor. S e leamedlfom_US-AIDlR.wanda 

(b)(S)(b)(?)(c> that there were a lot of international calls o l<bXG><bX7)(c) hone 
bi11s.<bXGffbx7xc> got offended when she asked about the personal callstx6,cbX?XCJ _ who 
works orJ<bX6><bx1xc, 'at USA.ID/Kampala, is['bX6JCbX7XCJ J 
<~x5><b> friend and mentor. She is aware that<bXS><bX?xCJ ~IJc~x~JCb> for work-related advice. 

XC . , /Cb)(6)(b)(7XC> ~ 
There is no acceptable busmess reason fori to call Brazil. (Attachment l) 

On September 12, 2011 l~r><bX?> was interviewed. She advised ~cbx?xCJ 
three months of phone bil s at once and asked to mark her personal calls. (bX5> (bX7xc, 

. call ed th 'l j(b)(6).(b)(7) claimed she was bus_y, marked a few s as personal, and return e bt l t cc> She 
returned the bill tdfb>CG)(b)(?)(CJ and more calls were marked as :Qersonal including calls to 
BraziiJ<bXG)(bX7xc> husband is Brazilian. In February 2q11f 5><bx7xc> asked to pay 
for her entire phone bill, including business and personal calls. CbXS>CbX?xCJ has since 

' bed difii efu d h (bX6) (b)(?)(C) 1 th . b bill d sw1tc to a erent payment m o w ays e entire p one an 
receives a fixed credit for reimbursement of official calls. <bXG)(bX7XC> later approved some calls 
th f(b)(6)(bX7)(C) I ad d . So th Afri hil µbx6) (b)(7)(C) . tr . . m e unng u · ca w was m at.rung. 
(Attachment 3) 

r )(6) (b)(7)(C) I 
On September 15, 201 lwas interviewed. She acknowledged that there were 
problems with her phone bills. She offered to hav l~r>~m her for the entire amount for the 
three months of phone bills in question. Sometime between Januacy and March 2011, she got 
her own phone line, and now pays for all officialand personal calls.~~~6> (bX7> is her friend and . (bX6)(bX7l . 
colleague. She depends on gwdance fromcc> She bas both personal and busmess , . (bX6) CbX7) , . 
conversations witli<c> She was "very careless" and ''reckless" to not have highlighted more (b)(6)(b) 
of her calls toc1xC> as personal Any calls to Uganda or Yem en during weekends or weekdays 
after 9:00 pm were personal. Any calls to the United States on weekends were personal, with the 
exception of December 2010, when she was in South Africa for training and had an issue with 
her travel card. She offered to pay the full amount for any questioned calls. (Attachment 4) 

. (b)(6)(b)(7 C) 

On September 29, 2011, a record review was conducted o phone bills from 
February 2010 to December 2010 (excluding May 2010). There were dozens of calls to Uganda, 
and very few were marked as personal. All calls to Brazil, except for one, were marked as 
personal. The following were not marked as personal calls: 

o Nineteen calls to the United States on weekends (excluding December) 
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Period: July 8, 2011 to September 29, 2011 

o Five calls to Yemen on weekends or after 9pm on workdays 
o Thirty-four calls to Uganda on weekends or after 9pm on workday 
o One call to Brazil 

Based on an exchange rate of 596 Rwandan Francs to 1 US Dollar, the cost of these calls was 
$159.41. (Attachment 5) 

Subjects/Defendants/Suspects: 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Penonal Property: 

None 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

None 

Attachments: 

1. Hotline com~laint, June 2, 2011. 
2. <~l~J.<bX7l<CJ Memorandum of Interview (MOI), September 12, 2011 
3. (bXGJ~bx7xc> MOI. S1m~ember 12, 2011 
4. ~x7xcJ MOI ~tember 15, 2011 

• {bX6l (bX7XC) • 
5. Record review o phone bills, September 29, 2011 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: rxs).(~XC) Case Number.~(b_xs_).(-b)(-?XC_) __ __. 

Status: Completed 
Period of Investigation: 08/11/2011to11/ll/2011 OIG/I Office: Pretoria 

Synopsis: 

• • (b)(6),(b)(7) 

On Au~t 11 , 2011, the Office of lnsP-ector General received_an alkgati9n frOJIJ!.C> 
(b)(6> (b)(7)<CJ USAID/South Afri~xc> I regardin [<b><6J.<bX7><CJ -a-""" 

USAID/South Africa project development specialist. The allegation states <bXS><bX7><C> 

received two advances for official travel in May 2010 amounting to approximately 
$10,500. After his second trip was cut short, he failed to return approximately $4,600 in 
unused advances - which is still outstanding as of November 1, 2011. In addition, he did 
not prepare travel vouchers until a year later, despite several emails requesting him to do 
so. The travel vouchers that were eventual\ submitted contained suspicious items such 

. 'fi ti ·1 } . ed . (bJ(G).(b)(?XCl na} bi 1 than u}d be as sigru can y more IW es c aim usm , perso ve c e wo 
expected, several supporting documents with dates that did not coincide with the trip, and 
unsupported claims. 

The OIG investigation confinned tha~<b><S><bX?><CJ ] did not prepare his travel vouchers 
until more than a year after the trips. He acknowledged that he owes a significant amount 
of money to USAID. The investigation also confirmed the inclusi9n__9f several incorrect 
and unsupported amounts on the travel voucher fonns, whic <bxs>.<bJ<?xc> acknowledged. 

The investigation confirmed violations of the following Automated Directives System 
(ADS) policies: 

• 633.3.5 Travel Voucher Processing Requirements, which states that travel 
vouchers must be completed within five business days of completion of travel, 

• 633.3.6.3 Laundry and Dry Cleaning Expense, which states that laundry is not an 
acceptable expense when traveling outside CONUS, and 

• 633.3.5.1 Lodging-Plus Per Diem Method which requires receipts for all lodging 
expenses and any expense over $75. 

REPORT MADE BY: DateSlpei: llfll/11 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: Name: Date Slped: 

Slpatare ~~"I J 
nu doee.-.t II tle property or tllt Oflla of ~ be repftMIMed er copied wllllMt wrtttm 
permbGoa. Dlldewre to au_.,rtz.d ,..... .. lit pnlldbhed. Pwbllc .mlablltty I• ........... _...11tle 5 U.S.Cl552. 
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The investigation also confirmed a violation of a federal criminal statute, 18 U.S.C. § 
643, Accounting Generally for Public Money, which applies to employees of the United 
States or of any department or agency who receive public money which they are not 
authorized to retain as salary, pay, or emolument. " ... (Failure] to render his accounts for 
the same as provided by law is guilty of embezzlement" 

This matter shall be referred to USAID/South Africa for consideration of administrative 
action. 

Details of Investigation: 

On August 11, 2011, the OIG interviewecfX5>.<bJ(1><c> lror 
USAID/South Africa. She stated that there is an outstanding advance of$1 l,816 from 

i<bXSHbX7J<c> :Jfor official travel. He traveled from Pretoria, South Africa to Gaborone, 
Botswana from May 9 through May 15, 2010 and then from Gaborone to Harare, 
Zimbabwe from May 15 through May 30, 2010. The second trip, to Harare, was cut 
short. He was planning to stay in Harare until June 12, 2010. He received an advance of 
$975 for the first tri and $9,545 for the second trip. When the second trip was 
terminat (b)(s).(b)(7>(C) did not return the unused advance of approximately $4,600. He 
did not turn in travel vouchers until Jwie 2011, over a year after the trips were complete. 
In addition, there were some suspicious items on the travel vouchers. USAID/South 
Africa' s Financial Management office contact (bXS><bX7><CJ several times during the 
past year requesting him to liquidate the outstanding vouchers and never received an 
answer. Although he submitted travel vouchers for both trips in June 201 'La ear after 
the completion of the trips, he still has not returned the unused advance. <bXS> (b>(7><c> is 
from Zimbabwe and still has family there. Suspicious items found in his vouchers 
include suspect claims for mileage on his personal vehicle, dates on receipts that do not 
coincide with the trips, suspect laundry amounts, insurance costs that are not allowed and 
a travel cost spreadsheet that does not agree with the travel voucher submitted. <bxs>.<b)(l)(C) 
asked the mission staff to go back through emails to find the ones sent to <bxs>.<b>(7XC) to 
h 

. (b}(6),(b)(7)(C) . 
s ow they requested repayment of the balance several times. provtded the OIG 
with copies of two emails as well as co ies of the two travel vouchers. (Attachment 1, 
Memorandum of Interview [(b)(S)(b)(7><CJ dated 08111/11) 

On September 7, 2011, the OIG interview (b)(S).(b)( 7XCJ for 
USAID/South Africa. She stated that (bl<5> <bX7><c> has not contested the fact that he owes 
USAID money. He has not paid it back. She is unaware of anyone physically speaking 
to him about the issue. She is only a.ware of a couple of ails_sent to him r uesting 
payment. (Attachment 2, Memorandum of Interview (b)(SJ.(b><7><C) dated 

09/07/2011) 

On September 8, 2011) the OIG interviewed (b)(G)(b)(7
)(C) for 

USAID/South Africa. (b)(G> (b><1><C> lhas not ~k.enJ <bxsT.<biffxq regard.41 the amount he 
owes USAID but believes tha' <b>(SJ.<b><1xc> ]usAID/South Africa<b><5><bK7>cc> has 



P e3 (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

08/11/11 - 11121111 

spoken with him_rxs) (b)(7)(c>:Jbelieves<b><Gl.<bx7xc> said he will y it back. The advance 
was paid via electronic transfer of funds (ETF) to(b)(G).(b)(7xci bank account. 
(Attachment 3, Memorandum oflnterview <bXGJ.<bX7xc) dated 09/08/11) ._ ____ _ 
On S tember 7-8, 2011, the OJG reviewed documents received fro~<bXG)(bX7xci 

(bJ(S).(b)!7XCl for USAID/South Africa. Items were found to be un~su_ppo __ rt_ed_o_r_~ 

insupportab y excessive on the vouchers, including mileage, hotel stays without 
supporting invoices, an incidental charge without su orting documentation, and a border 
crossing fee for the wrong time period. In add'tio (b)(s)(bX7l(C> 1 ovided two emails dated 
A 12 2010 d N b 16 2010 fr 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) t ' 
ugust , an ovem er , o 

1 
reques mg 

he Ii uidate his outstanding advances. (Attachment 4, Record Review - Documents 
fro (b)(s).(b)(7xci dated 0917-8/11) 

. rb)(6).(b)(7)(C) I 
On October 31, 2011, the OIG interviewedfor 
USAID/South Africa. He stated that in his capacity as the regional monitoring and 
evaluations specialist, he travels about once a month. His trip to Zimbabwe in 2010 was 
cut short by two weeks. He understood that he was supposed to submit a voucher soon 
after travel completion. He stated it was a mistake on bis part not preparing the travel 
voucher sooner. He stated that he was very busy. He also stated that when he did finally 
prepare the vouchers, he was under a lot of pressure to get them done and there may be 
mistakes. 

He is aware that he owes a significant amount but is unsure of the exact figure. He has 
not paid the money back because he has not received a bill of collection to tell him how 
much he owes. In the past, that is how the process worked. He does not remember ever 
receiving an email alerting him that he has an outstanding advance that needs to be 
liquidated. When seeing copies of two emails sent to him for this purpose, he stated that 
his mailbox may have been full and perhaps it bounced back to the person who sent it 

rbJ(S),(bl(7XCl !said IlO one has ever called him Of spoke to him personally alerting him to 

the outstanding advance. He kept a certain amount of money to the side in his bank 
account to repay USAID. 

l(b)(6).(b)(7XC) I . . 
clauned he did not pay the amount due once he prepared the travel vouchers 

as the voucher examiner did not call him for clarification on issues, which could affect 
the total amount of the voucher, as typically happens. Therefore, he was unaware of the 
actual amount due. He said he had not been contacted by the voucher examiners on 
either of these travel vouchers. 

When going through each voucher with the investigating agent and looking at the 
inconsistencies, he offered the following: 

He acknowledged thatJhe_milea.ste to Botswana as well as around Gaborone and Harare is 
high th ed rb)(S)(b)(7)(C) l ed th h b 1' th '1 d er an expect . stat at e e 1eves he wrote e Illl eage own on a 
piece of paper and that is how he tracked the mileage to submit. He offered to attempt to 
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find that paper to support the mileage. He is from Zimbabwe and bM family there. He 
acknowledged driving around to see his family, but claimed that mileage was not 
included in what be submitted for reimbursement. The mileage around Gaborone and 
Harare would include travel from his hotel to USAID as well as trips out to visit partners. 
He visited three or four partners in Gaborone. 

The first "travel cost work.sheet", included the correct calculation of mileage. It took the 
kilometers driven and converted it into miles before applying the mileage rate for 
reimbursement. However, in the second, the mileage rate was applied directly to 
kilometers, which resulted in a much higher reimbursement The two worksheets each 
contain many of the same costs, which would suggest that one sheet was used as a basis 
for the oth . However, the conversion from kilometers to miles was taken out of the 

d (DX6l(bX7XC) ted this h been "ght d "d "fied • th secon one. _Jsta must ave an ovecst an i enti 1t as e 
kind of issue he expected the voucher examiner to can him about 

Regarding the S 110 for insurance for the Botswana trip, he stated, while looking at the 
receipt, that it should have been in pula and not US dollars. This was another mistake on 
his part. He was under pressure to get the travel voucher done and expected the voucher 
examiner to go through the submission and ask for clarification. 

Regarding the $250 for insurance for the Zimbabwe trip, he stated, while looking at the 
receipt, that it is dated July 2009 and not May 2010. He stated he "should have checked 
their stamp." He will look for the correct receipt. 

<bX
5

> <bX7XC> __J was unable to explain the S 106 incidental amount on his Zimbabwe 
su ss1on. He thought it was laundry, but the laundry charges on his hotel invoice only 
equal $81 . He could not explain the difference. 

On the Zimbabwe voucher, he included hotel stays for May 15 and May 30, but there 
:w_ere no hotel invoices to support those_amounts. He claimed he stayed at the <bX

5icox7xci 
(bX6HbJl. l!bX6l (bX7XC) • • • --. --
(7XCl m Bulawayo on May 15 and at the m Be1tbndge on May 30. He did not 

want to make the trip to/from Zimbabwe all in one day. He will look for the invoices and 
ho he did not misplace them. (Attachment 5, Memorandum of Interview ~ox5><bx1xCJ 

(bX
6
)(bX

7
XC) dated 10/31/11) 

(bX6l (bX7XC) 
On November 2, 2011, at his request, the OIG re-interview In an email to 
the OIG, he advised the following: He does not have copies of previous bills for 
collection as this is the first time he owed money to USAID. He attached a copy of his 
bank slip showing funds available for payment to USAID. The amount varied from 
approximately$ I ,500 to $5,600 for the past three months. However, at the top of the 
page, next to~v:ailable balance", the amount was approximately $30. He attached a 

(OX6l (OX7XC) • 
copy of the Bulawayo mvoice that showed the room rate as SI OS, not the 
$150 be claimed on the travel voucher. Re stated that the process at the Zimbabwe 
border is "nonnally cumbersome to the extent that receipt docwnents for this purpose 
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will be difficult to retrace." However, he claims he did make a payment "for the purpose 
of temporarily importing my vehicle to Zimbabwe." He stated the document attached to 
the travel voucher "was erroneously included." He wrote, "In addition, while I am from 
Zimbabwe, I wish to state that any no point did sleep over at any of my folks' place 
{sic]." "I wish to end by confirming that I take full responsibility for the delay in closing­
out these trips and regret the inconvenience it brings to all parties concerned. This trip 
close-out was put together in a hurry and I acknowledge some of the discrepancies/ 
oversight that may have arisen as a result. I wish to declare that there was no intention on 
my part to falsify infonnation for my benefit." 

i<b><G>.<b><7xq lbrou t several documents to the interview, including the invoice for the 
May 15 stay at thd(b)(G).(b)( 7)(C) Bulawayo. He mentioned that the amount on the invoice 
is not the $150 be put on his travel voucher. He identified it as a mistake that should 
have been $105. 

(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
He stated that his recollection in the previous interview about staying at in 
Beitbridge on May 30 was incorrect and that he confused it with the subsequent trip he 
took in July. He offered the invoice for th~<b>(s).(b)( 7xci lBeitbridge dated July 24, 2010. 
He asked why it was even an issue as the invoice for the hotel in Harare went through 
May 30. He stated that he did stay in Harare on May 30, and that he drove back to 
Pretoria in one day, not two days as he previously mentioned. It was then pointed out 
that the Harare hotel invoice did not include a stay on May 30. He replied that perhaps 
the hotel was fully booked the last night and he had to stay at another hotel next door. It 
. ed • -~7)(C) J . . 11 h d . &: th H h 1 th ts not tbatl · · ongma y a a reservation ior e arare ote at went 
through JWle 12. Tlietrip was cut short after he arrived in Harare. He stated again that 
he did not stay with family on May 30, but he needed something to jog his memory 
because he did not remember where he stayed. However, he is sure he stayed in Harare. 

Regarding the incidental amount of $106 on his travel voucher, he offered that it was a 
combination oflaundry charges and telephone calls. He produced a second page to the 
hotel invoice in Harare that included $341 worth of phone calls. He stated that he must 
have added $25 of the phone calls to the $81 laundry charges to come up with $106. 

Regarding the insurance charges on both travel vouchers, he acknowledged that both 
amounts should have been in rand, not dollars. It was another mistake. 

He stated that he was feeling under pressure to get the travel vouchers done and that is 
why he made so many mistakes. He stated that the Zimbabwe mission wanted to close 
out its accowits and he had another trip coming up. He needed to complete the process of 
preparing the travel vouchers in order to have everything completed. He claimed to be 
very sorry for the mistakes he made in preparing the ~avel voucher. (Attachment 6, . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 
Memorandum of Intel"Vl.ew ated 11/02111) 
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On November 21, 2011, the OIG interviewelx
6

><DXJ)(c) for 
USAID/South Africa He stated that he sent two emails to (b)(S)(bKJXCl requesting him to 

liquidate his outstanding travel advances. The emails did not bounce back as 
deli bl H al k ' tli(bX6) (bX7XC) • • H un vera e. e so spo e WI m person on one or two occasions. e 

tol <DXS><bX
7
xc> to pay the cashier and keep tlie recei t as of of payment. 

(Attachment 7, Memorandum of Interview (bXS)(bXJXC) dated 11/21/11) 

Defendants/Sutpects: 

r )(6) (b)(7)(C) 

-----~jUSAID/South Africa 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence or seized contraband. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

Referral to USAID/South Africa 

Attachments: 

1. Memorandum of Interview (b)(
6 

XlXC) dated 8/11/2011 
2. Memorandwn of Interview (bl<5><DKlXC) dated 9n/2011 
3. Memorandum of Interview (b)(

6
)(b)(l)(C> dated 9/8/2011 

4. Record Review - Initial Documents, dated 9n-8/201 l 
5. Memorandum of Interview (b)<G><bXlXC) dated 10/31/2011 
6. Memorandum of Interview- dated 1112/2011 
7. Memorandum oflnterview f bx

5
><bxlxCJ dated 11/2112011 
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: International Republican Institute (IRI) Case Number: (bX6l<bX
7
l<Cl 

Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 02/09/06 - 05/03/06 OlG/I Office: Washington 

Synopsis: 

On January 30, 2006, Senator Christopher J. Dodd, Ranking Member, Subcommittee on 
Western Hemisphere, Narcotics and Peace Corps Affairs, sent a letter to Donald A. Gambatesa, 
Inspector General (IG), U.S. Agency for International Development (USAID), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG). In his letter, Mr. Dodd requested a follow-up investigation regarding 
USAID-funded International Republican Institute (ffi.f) democracy programs in Haiti. 

Previously, on March 18, 2004, Mr. Dodd requested that Conner IO Everett L. Mosley 
conduct an inquiry into similar issues involving USALD-funded IRI programs in Haiti from 
January 1, 2001 to March 2004. A program evaluation conducted by the 010, Audit Division 
(Audit), found IRI to be in compliance with the tenns and conditions of the USA ID grants and 
cooperative agreements. OIG/ Audit also found no evidence of any meetings betwee (bX

6
)(bX

7
xC> 

(bX6J (bX7) ffi (bX6J (b)(7)(C) 
<C> Program 0 1cer, IRI, or other members of the 
Ecuador Group (Attachment 1 - USAJD OJG Response to Senator Dodd). 

In his January 30, 2006 letter to the JG Donald A. Gambatcsa, Mr. Dodd requested that 
the OIG revisit all such programs from January 1, 2000 to present in light of information 
received from a January 29, 2006, New York Times article; particularly, whether these programs 
and the U.S. govenunent funds expended in conjunction with them, were consistent with official 
U.S. policy at the time of their use (Attachment 2 - Letter from Senator Dodd). 

Pursuant to Senator Dodd's request for investigation, the OIG initiated an investigation 
into whether IRI had misused or misappropriated USAID funding for the Haiti program by 

. (bX6l (bX7l · 
financrn cc) travel to Ecuador and Peru. 

Wl ·1 th . . . d'd fi h (b)(6).(b)(7XC) I u e e mveshgahon 1 con um t a trave ed to Ecuador and Peru under 
the auspice of IRI during 2001 as alleged, it found no evidence that TRI used any USAID funds 
to finance his travel. Additionally, the investigation determined that USAID did not have any 

lb)(6) (bX7XC) 

--------~----l 
REPORT MADE BY; Name; Date Sigotd: 

Siem•h•r" ~ <'1 ',,.,/ 
l(bX6) ...J/ lS UfO 

------------:<~~)(7) 

Name: Datt~Sl . ~d: 

--------~--S-lg-na_iu-.,re (';~_fr'(; 
______ j q 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 
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. r H . . . h lRI d . h 2000 2001 . .c... d h (b><G><1>><
7

><C> acilve grants 1or a1t1 programs wit unng t e to t1me-uame; ao t a ------travel to Ecuador and Peru was actually financed by money IRI received from a National 
Endowment for Democracy (NED) Grant No. 2001~047.0. 

Details of Investigation: 

~(b)(GJ.(b)(J)(C) I Senior Vice President, IR I, was interviewed and stated that in the 
latter part of 200 l , lRl received a USAID grant related to the Haiti program that ran into 2002. 
He advised that any 'USAJD funding received by lRI prior to this grant was not related to the 
Haiti program. 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (b) • 
stated (7)(C) was an IRI employee durmg 2000-2001 as th~ rogram officer for 

h L -,.,- . d C 'bb D' . . IRI W h"D C (bX6l <1>X7>(C> d (b)(s ,(b)(tJ d'd t e _ atm .t\.menca an an ean tv1s1on at , as mgton, . ..__ state (C) 1 
travel to Ecuador durin 2001 to participate in a training program that was funded under the 
~ (bX6).(b)(7) (b)(6).(b)(7) • -fi 

Ecuador program <c> agreed to researc (C) travel lo Peru and provide more spec1 1c 
funding information at a later date (Attachment 3 - MOT ,if).("><

5
><"X

7
>(C>J 

i(b)(G><"X
7

>(C) JusAID/Haiti, Oflice of Financial Management, reported that for the 
period July 30, 1999 through September 28, 2001, IRI did not receive any funding from USAID 
ti H . . "" h 4 (b)(6).(b)(7> E ·1 or rub programs 1/tttac ment (C> -mat~. 

An OIG review of USAID grant records revealed that there was no funding for the Haiti, 
Ecuador or Peru programs awarded to IRI from July 30, 1999 to September 30, 2001 
(Attachme11t 5 -Records Review dated Feb 16, 2006). 

• (bX6l (bX7) • (b)(6),(b)(7) • 
In an e-mail to the OIG dated March l, 2006 <C> explamed tha (C) traveled tw1ce 

to Ecuador in March and September 2001, once to Peru in September 2001 , and th~<1>><5><"><7>(CJ 
travels to Ecuador and Pern were funded using NED grants. According to <"X

5
> <"><

7
><C> travel 

• - (b)(6).(b)(7) • 
to Ecuador m March 2001 was for Program Devdopment. <q travel to Ecuador and Peru m 
September 2001 was for PoliticaLParty Strengthening: Youth Development and for PrO!,'l'atn 

l b)(6).(b)(7) • 
Development (Attachment 6 <CJ E-mail). 

(b)(6).(b)(7XC) . • • 
___ stated that NED was established as a nonprofit organization under Section 50l(c) 

(3) of the Internal Revenue Service Code. He further elaborated that NED is made up of four 
organizations; the Center for International Private Enterprise (CIPE); the National Democratic 
lnstitute for International Affairs (NDI); International Republican Institute (IRI); and the 
American Center for International Labor Solidarity, also known as the "Solidarity Center". The 
Endowment serves as the umbrella organization throu which these grou s receive funding lo 
carry out programs abroad (Attachme11t 7 - MO/ 0 (b)(G).(bJ<

7
xc> 

'----~~~~~~~~~~--' 
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OIG research of NED confinned the information about NED provided bye:<b><
7
> and 

further disclosed that NED receives its funding under the State Department AuthorlZation Act 
(Attachment 8-Records Review of NED History Website). 

i<bJ(S)(b)CJxci I Chief Financial Officer, IRI, explained how IRI developed the numerical 
codes used in their accounting system. For example, 01.00004.07070.01 is a project number for a 
program funded using USAID funds. The 01 is specific to USAID, the next two digits, 00 
identify the year as 2000 and denote the year in which the grant was awarded, and the next three 
digits, 004 identify the award number. The last seven digits, 07070.01 are assigned by IRI. These 
numbers are in-house numbers used to identify specific programs within one project. For NED 
codes, the process is the same except the first two di its which are 02 identify the project as an 

• f(b)(6)(o)(7)(C) 
NED project (Attachment 7 - MOT ofl 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(oxsJ<bX
7
xc> further explained there can be several project codes that fall under one program. 

For instance, w1der the NED grant, IRI had several codes with only the last seven digits 
differing. The NED grant codes are 02.01047.06575.03 and 02.01047.06501.12. Another NED 
grant code is 02J)0031.06201.12. Project codes 6201 6501 and 6575 were used on travel 

(bX6),{b)(7) 1 {b)(6),{b)(7)(C) • • 
documents fo cc> travel to Ecuador and Peru. stated the same codmg system lS 

used for the times eets and labor detail reports as mentioned above. She stated the employees 
are given a list of active projects at the beginning of each year with funding codes to charge time 
to the appropriate projects. She stated she would provide copies o :~>cs)(bl<1> timesheets and his 

~~~-

corresnonclinl? lab.o.r..detaij reports for the period of 2000 - 2001 (Attachment 7 - MO/ oi bXSl CbX
7

l<C> 
r X6)(bX7)(C) _J 

(bXS){bX
7
)(C) dd' - Jl d 11 IRI l . ed . ,. . k l gh a 1ttona y state a emp oyees are 1ssu air me he ets, t irou 

~--~ 

American Express, from one main company account. Also, each employee is issued an 
American E~press card to cover meals, lodging, and incidentals incurred while traveling. The 
employees are required to settle accounts within l 0 business days after travel is completed. She 
stated the accounting department provides American Express with the appropriate funding codes 
per each employee's travel requirements. American Express is also given instructions on billing 
IRT projects and when and how to split costs if necessary (Attachment 7 - MOJ o_t)<0

xs).{bX
7
xci j 

~)(7)(C) I 

~(b)(S),(b)(J)(C) lch· f T 1 n· · · 1 1 · 1e, rave 1v1s1on, RI exp amed that each employee must 
complete a Travel Authorization fonn (TA) and the TA must be approved by the supervisor and 
filled out completely with the employee name, dates of travel, location, funding code, project 
information, length of travel, and cost estimates. Once she receives the TA for processing, if any 
information is missing, she returns it to the traveler. If there are any fonding code questions, the 
acco _ ting deoartm uld contact her division for clarity (Attachment 7 - MOI 0 <bXS>.(bJ(lXCl 

{bX6l {bX7XCl 
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r S)(b)(?)(C) !further explained that quarterly program repOrtS are requite)MO b 
s_u_b_mitle_d_along wit.h financial reports to NED and USA1D (Attachment 7 - MOI oA xsl<bX

7
lcci 

r )(6).(b)(7)(C) =1 

IRI provided quarterly project reports for NED Project Codes 6501 and 6575. These 
reports detailed the program activities with respect to Ecuador and Peru. Review of the quarterly 
status reports for Project Code 6501 and 6575 reflected the following information: 

The first quarterly report dated January-March 2001 is titled "Program Development>'. 
Grant Number 2001-047-6501 (Project Code 6501). The uarterly ac_tivili~_S.!!J;tion stated that 

• • (b)(6).(b)(7) f(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) J dunng the January-March 2001 period IRI staff member cc> and.'-..-"-" .. -, traveled to 
Quito, Ecuador from March 18-23, 200 l, to assess the political situa'iloiiaiiO the feasibility of 
initiating a program aimed at revitalizing Ecuador's democratic institutions. According to the 
report, IRI staff members met with a wide range of political parties, non-governmental 
organizations, government officials and university students from various political organizations 
in Ecuador. Additionally, the report relayed that IRl's primary interest was to get new faces and 
young leaders involved in Ecuador's political parties artd organizations. More emphasis was 
placed on meeting with young Ecuadorians and evaluating the most effective means to involve 
them in the country's political process. 

The second quarterly report dated October-December 2001 is titled "Political Party 
Strengthening: Youth Development,,, Grant Number 2001-047-6575 (Project Code 6575). As 
such, the quarterly activities section stated in part that the upcoming year in Ecuador is 
si ificant dJie_to m_esidenti l elections in October 2002. Moreover, the report reflected. that 

(b)(S) {b)(7) f(i))(6)(bX7J(C) • • • • • • 
<c> and House L1a1son for Republican Party of Flonda met with vanous 

political contacts and initiated training with the parties and youth groups. Furthennore, the report 
conveyed that pre·electoral training was conducted in Peru (Attachment 9 - Records Review, 
dated 1\11Zrch 15, 2006). 

IRl did not provide the quarterly project report for Project Code 6579 (Venezuela); it was 
outside the scope of the investigation. 

An OlG review of NED grant records provided by lRI reflected Ecuador and Peru 
activities were funded under one grant. The NED grant awarded to IRl was Grant Agreement 
Number 2001-047, in the amount of$ 2,487,291, for the period January I, 2001 through January 
31, 2002. Per the Grant Agreement, this grant was made subject to a master Grant Number 
IPPS-1037 between the U.S. Department of State and NED. The purpose of the gnmt agreement 
was to enable the Grantee to carry out project objectives as specified for each project 
(Attachment 10- Records Review dated March 21, 2006). The payment process clause, 
Attachment C, reflects that the expenses are drawn from the grant on an advance basis 
(Attachment 11 - Record.v Review dated April 21, 2006). 
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The OIG conducted a review ofJRI labor and travel documents. The documents included 
the Emp\oyee Labor Summary fo 1~~5><bX7> or the years 2000 and 2001. The Employee Labor 
Summary shows project codes to which billable and non-billable time was charged during these 
fiscal years. Also provided was a list of project codes_for fiscal years 2000 and 200 I. The 
review identified the NED project codes shown onl~16>.(bJ(1JEmployee Labor Summary. 111e NED 
project codes are listed below (Attachme11t 12 - RecorasReview dated April 6, 2006, and 
Attachment 13-Labor Reconciliation Chart). 

1. 
2. 
3. 

02.01047.06501.12 
02.01047.06575.03 
02.01047.06579.02 

NED01047 - Program Development 
NED01047 - Ecuador 
NED01047 - Venezuela 

Per the documents reviewed the projects were identified by the highlighted four digit 
number. 

(b)(6) (bX7)(C) stated that the Project Labor Summary lists all employees who charged 
time t'""o_a_p-art-.-1c_u_a_r_p-ro .... ~ect within that grant (Attachment 14). 

(b)(6),(b)(7) 

The review and reconciliation of <c> timesheets, Employee Labor Summary, and 
Project Labor Summary reflected the following actual charges to NED for labor in the schedule 
below: 

March 2001 
Project Code Timcshect Employee Labor Summary Proiect Labor Summary 

Hours (b)(6),(b)(7) IL b c ~) <c> a or osts 
6501 40.0 $1244.69 $1244.69 -
6575 0 $-0- $-0-
6579 112 $3485.15 $3485.15 

September 2001 
Project Code T imesheet E mployee Labor Summary Proiect Labor Summary 

Hours l~b)(G).(b)(7) IL b c • ) 1c> a or osts 
6501 0 $-0- $-0-
6575 40.0 $1282.20 $1282.20 
6579 163.0 $5596.78 $5596.78 

D . t• . h IRI ff . . fil (b) 6).(b)(7XC) l . unng a mce mg Wtt sta to review project es exp amed that 
Project Status Reports (PSR) are reports that show total labor 'costs, whlcllmc udes salaries and 
any compensation adjustments; total non-labor costs which includes contract and consultant fees . . ' 
travel, telecommunications, supplies, seminars, printing foes and subscriptions; and total indirect 
cost which include fringe benefits and overhead indirect costs. Project Status Reports are 
computed by individual project code on a monthly basis. The report lists total contract budget 
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costs, prior year actual costs, current period actual costs, year to date actual costs, contract to 
date actual costs, and total contract variance costs. When reconciling drawdowns from the grant, 
the project status reports for the period being reconciled are used to compute amounts drawn 
down. <bXG>.<bX

7
xci further ex.plained that the total costs for labor, non-labor and fringe benefits, 

to ether comprise the total direct costs for the drawdowns (Attachment 14 - MOI oA~<bx=5~><0~x7~><c~i--­
(bX6> (b)(7)(C) 

The review reflected that total employee labor costs from the Project Labor Summary are 
consolidated in a Project Status Report (PSR) for each project code. These labor costs reflect 
actual labor costs reported on NED Drawdown Numbers 3 (March 2001) and 7 (September 
2001 ). Total labor costs per the PSR were included in the total amount for the drawdown. See 
the schedule below (Attachment 13 - Labor Reconciliation Chart): 

l Project Labor Costs/ Draw down Drawdown 
Code PSR Number Amount 
6501 $ 2523.10 3 $ 7141.39 
6575 $ - 0 - 3 $ - 0 -
6579 $5512.74 3 $55,333.95 

~" 

Project Labor Costs/ Draw down Drawdown 
Code PSR Number Amount 
6501 $ 2062.46 7 $ 6676.40 
6575 $ 2064.57 7 $ 8839.91 
6579 $10852.66 7 $57025.11 

A review oflRI travel records was conducted. The records included IRI Travel 
Authorization (TA) and Advance Requests, Quarterly Reports, IRI Trip Detail Reports and 
American Express One - Business Travel Services Itineraries. In addition other records were 
reviewed which included Travel Vouchers, Projects Status Reports, Project Non-Labor Detail, 
American Express invoices and NED DrawdownU'Attachment 9 - Records Review dated March 

l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) I 15, 2006; Attachment 14 - MO/ of and Attachment 16 - Travel 
Reconciliation Chart). 

• (b)(6). b)(7) 

lRI travel records reflected tha <CJ traveled from Washington, D.C. to Caracas, 
Venezuela on March 11, 2001. On March 18, 2001 i~r><0X1> traveled from Caracas, Venezuela to 
Quito, Ecuador, retuming to Washington, D.C., on March 25, 2001. The travel was financed 
under NED Grant Agreement Number 2001-047.0, NED Project Code 6501, Program 
Development and NED Project Code 6579, Venezuela. The purpose of the trip as defined per 
the TA was "Venezuela Trainingi'Ecuador Exploratory Trip". The TA was signed on February 
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26, 2001 by a requestor and approving official, whose signatures are not legible (Attachment 9 -
Records Review dated March 15, 2006). 

The review further reflected thati~~s){b)(
7

l travel costs per his voucher or American Ex.press 
invoice were charged to a PSR for each project code. rn addition the review reflected that actual 
travel expenses for March and September 2001 were reported on Drawdowns 3 and 7, 
respectively (Attachment 16- Travel Reconciliation Chart) . 

• . (b)(6).(b)(7) • 

Project Non-Labor Detail reports reflected tha <CJ actual travel costs for March 2001 
were reported on Drawdown Number 3 Pro'ect Code 6501, included in non-labor costs totaling 
$7141.39. The expenses charged fo ~~\cs).Cbl<7> March 2001 Ecuador travel per reconciliation of the 
Travel Voucher, American Express Invoices, Project Non-Labor Detail, and Drawdown Number 

• • ~(b)(6).(bX7'Jl.C) ~ 
3 are summanzed in the schedule below (Attachment 15-MOI o ttachment 16-
Travel Reconciliation Chart; and Attachment 17 - Drawdown Reconciliation Chart): 

Project Code Expense Total Travel Drawdown Drawdown 
6501 Amount Costs/PSR Number Amount 

Meals $241.50 $312.50 3 $7l41.39 
Lodging Ecuador $549.00 $1398.12 3 $714 1.39 
Airline Fees $112.00 $112.00 3 $7141.39 
Airfare $350.00 $733.62 3 $7141.39 

IRI travel records further reflected l~m<b> traveled from Washington, O.C. to Quito, 
Ecuador, on September 6, 2001. On September 10 lei 6i. bX?> traveled from Quito, Ecuador to Lima, 

(b)(6).(b)(7) • 
Peru. On September 12. 200 I <CJ returned to Quito, cuador from Lima, Peru. On 

j<b)(6){b)(7l I . (bX6){b) 
September 16, 200l i<c> itravele from Quito, Ecuador to Caracas, Venezuela. c1xq departed 
Caracas, Venezuela anarefurned to Washington, D.C., on September 22, 2001. T e travel was 
financed under NED Grant Number 2001-047.0, NED Project Codes 6501 (Program 
Development), 6575 (Ecuador) and 6579 {Venezuela). The purpose of the trip as defined.on the 
TA was "Training in Ecuador and Venezuela" and "Organization of American States (OAS) 
General Assembly - Democratic Charter in Peru". The TA was signed on August 29, 2001 , by a 

f(b)(S) (bXl)(C) 1 d . ffi . I h . . l 'bl requestor; an an approving o · ic1a w ose signature 1s not egi e (Attachment 
9-Records Review dated March 15, 2006). 

P . 1 b d · 1 fl d h (b'Jl.S).(bJ<?> 1 I c. ro1ect non· a or eta1 reports re ecte t at cq actua trave costs ior September 
2001 were reported on Drawdown Number 7~ Project Code 6501, included in non-labor costs, 

" $ (bXS) (b)(7) totahng 6676.40. The expenses charged fo <ci September 2001 Ecuador and Peru travel 
per reconciliation of the Travel Voucher, American Express Invoices and Project Non-Labor 
Detail and Drawdown Number 7 are summarized below. 



Project Code Expense 
6501 Amount 
Airline Fees {Peru) $ 22.00 
Airfare( Ecuador) $867.40 

IRl Report of lnvestigation._l<b><_61
_<

0
_><

1
_icc_> ..__. 

02109106 - 05103106 
Page 8of10 

Total Travel Costs /PSR Drawdown Drawdown 
Number Amount 

s 979.40 7 $6676.40 
$9894.44 7 $6676.40 

• • (b)(6),(b)(7) 
. Project non~labor detail reports reflected that <CJ Ecuador travel costs (actual) below 

were reported on Drawdown Number 7, Project Code 6575 Ecuador), included in non-labor . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
costs totahng $8839.91 (Attachment 15 - MO! o Attachment 16 - Travel 
Reconciliation Chart; and Attachment 17-Drawdown Recollciliation Chart). 

Project Code Expense Total Travel Costs/PSR Draw down Draw down 
6575 Amount Number Amount 
Airfare $867.40 $2871.00 7 $8839.91 

i(iijf6).(b)(7) 

Project non-labor detail reports reflected thaV<CJ Ecuador and Peru travel costs 
(actual) were reported on Drawdown Number 7, Project Code 6579 Venezuela), included in 

. . (b)(6){b)(7)(C) • 
non-labor costs totalmg $57,025.11 (Attachment 15 - MO/ o ttachment 16- Travel 
Reconciliation Chart; arid AttacJiment 17 - Drawdow11 Reconciliation Chart). 

Project Code Amount Total Travel Costs/PSR Draw down Drawdown 
6579 Number Amount 
Lodging_~uador) $1894.70 $9894.44 7 $57,025.11 
Lodging (Peru) $ 220.00 $9894.44 7 $57,025.11 -- >-· 

Airfare $ 867.40 $9894.44 71 $57,025.11 

The review of lRI Drawdown Numbers 1 - 7 reflected that advance requests and 
payments for estimated expenses from the NED Grant 2001 -047.0 were made in accordance with 
the grant agreement terms. The amounts advanced are reflected in the cumulative total of amount 
requested. (Attachmellt 18- Records review dated May 3, 2006). 

Advance estimated expenses for March 2001 for salaries and non-labor were requested in 
Drawdown #1 on February 21, 2001. The total amount of the drawdown request was $244,796. 
March 2001 estimated expenses were paid per Drawdown #3 dated June 19, 200 l. The total 
amount received was $244,796. l 0 (Attac/lment 18 - Records review dated May 3, 2006). 

Advance estimated expenses for September 2001 for salaries and non-labor were 
requested in Drawdown #5 on August 25, 2001. The total amount of the drawdown request was 
$67 ,983. September 2001 estimated expenses were paid per Drawdown #7, dated December 17, 
2001. The total amount received was $67, 983 (Attachment 18 - Records review dated May 3, 
2006). 
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~(b)(G)(bX7l!C> IIRI, Senior Program Officer for Afghanistan, Middle East, and North 
Africa, was interviewed and provided the following information. 

He began his career with IRI between 1992 and 1993. During 2000-2001, he was the 
Senior Prognun Officer for the Latin American and Caribbean Division and worked on 
the Ecuador, Venezuela, Haiti and Peru programs which were funded by NED. As of 
April 25, 2006, he will transition lo a new position, working directly for the Senior Vice 
President in Strategic Planning. 

(b)(6) (bX7l • • . 
1c> recalled that the purpose of his March 2001 tnp to Ecuador and Venezuela was to 

prov1 e training. When traveling in-country, he was always accompanied by a program 
assistant, trainer, or support staff He recalled that he traveled to Peru on the eve of 
September 11, 2001. He arrived in Lima, Peru on September 10, 2001 and checked into 
his hotel. The next morning he met two IRI staffers in the hotel lobby who informed him 
of the first plane hitting the Twin Towers. After the meeting, he contacted JRI, 
Washington D.C. staff who tried to encourage him to stay in place and not travel, but the 
group decided to return to Ecuador. 

l~~s).<bX7l stated that he has never me (bXS),(bX?xc, in his life. He has heard of him 
in the news but never has met him ~~~6> <bX

7
l stated in 1997, UU established an office in 

Haiti. At the time, it was IRI policy to J>a a courtesy visit to the 12olice station to inform 
h f h ff• h h (b)(6) (b) f(bK6) (bX7)(C) t em o t e new o ice. lt wast en t at c1xq encountere as 

.__,....,_~-.,,~-..,.----,,--~ 

the District Police Commander at Port-au-Prince in 1997. This was the only time he met 
(bl<

5
>·<bX

7
><CJ He never played ping-pong witl <b>C5).(b)C

7
XC) or coached him in ping-pong. He, 

<bxsJ.(b>c
7

xC> , s a well-known figure in his country, Haiti. He has appeared on national talk 
shows, traveled to 562 Haitian counties as a political figure, and owned his own business 
in Haiti. 

i~l15> 1bl<7> stated that when he was in Ecuador he went to a bar with an IRI trainer and 
someone recognized him and approache i . The person i eotified himself asl~m<b> a 
H . . 1· ffi d . th (bK6) (bXi) • • • (bX6).(bX7) .d k I . a1t1an o tee o icer unng e yearscc> was m Ha1t1..<c> 1 not . ow t us person 

(bX6). • • . l(bj(6j (b) (b)(6).(b) 
an (bJc1xc> 1s a common nickname used m the Canbbean.li1iici engage c1xc> n 
conversation inquiring about information on who was responsible for the attempts on his 
life. 

~00 . . 
When asked about the Ecuador group, (7)cC) stated there are four countnes that provide 
police training: United States, France, Canada and Ecuador. His understanding is that the 
name Ecuador Group is derived from the country from which the local residents received 
the training; in this case, Ecuador. He did not know anyone from the Ecuador group, nor 
had c~c~~~ y contact with anyone from this group during his travel to Ecuador and 
Peru 1c> described the Haitian anned opposition as a group of thugs who hijacked the 



IRI R rt f Jn t. t' _i(bX6).(bX7)(C) 
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democratic proces ~~r).(b)(?) did not know, nor had he met with, anyone representing this 
group, during his travel to Ecuador and Peru. 

(b)(6)(b)(7) d . h al I . h' . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 1 db . 1C> · state ot ave a person re ations 1p wit e 1a . een m 
~-~. (b)(6),(b)(7) • • • 

meetings tha 1c> attended and knew him on sight, but had not had any conversation 
with him ~~~s).<b>1JUrther stated that IRI sent out mass mailings via email to several 
Assistant Clmmistrators at USAID as well asjo_U_._S. Senators and Congressmen in an 
effort to keep theroJ nfi rme<l of HU activities l~~~6, (b)(

7
,lstated these would be the only 

• Rtii1s).(b)(7> • • <bxs> (b)(7) ._ __ J . (b)(6 .(b)(7) 
emails betweeq1c> and himself. c · ad no direct contact with 1c> or any of 
his staff (Attachment 19 - MOJ o (b)(G>.<bX

7
>
1
C) 

Defendants/Suspects: 
International Republican Institute 

r )(6)(bX7)(C) 

1 
'"' 

Undeveloped Leads: None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: None 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: None 

Attachments: 
1. USAID OIG response to Senator Dodd, dated May 21, 2004 
2. Letter frQJttSenator Dodd, dated Jan 30, 2006 

~b)(6l (bX7)(C) 
3. MOI o' dated February 22, 2006 
4. Email from (b)(S).(b)(?XC) dated Feb 8, 2006 

5. Records Rc
1

view, dated February l6, 2006 
6. Email kom'b)(s).(bX

7
lic> ldateilM.ai:ch..1..100 

7. MOI of <bJ(
6
).(bl!

7
XC) dated March 21, 2006 

8. Records Review of NED History website, dated April 13, 2006 
9. Records Review, dated March 15, 2006 
10. Records Review, dated March 21, 2006 
ll. Records Review, dated April 21, 2006 
12. Records Review, dated April 6, 2006 
13. Labor Reconciliation Chart 
14. MOI Of 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

t,;;v;;;T.:Vn~r------'dated April 21, 2006 
15. MOI of\<bX

6
l<bx

7
xc> dated May 1, 2006 

16. Travel Reconciliation Chart 
17. Drawdown Reconciliation Chart 
18. Records Review, dated May 3, 2006 
19. MOI 0 'i~r) (bX7) \ tatcd April 24, 2006 
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U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

C N b 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

ase um er: 
Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 5/16/06 to 918106 OIG/I Office: Washington 

Synopsis: 

• (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

An_uoidentified caller reported to this office that._ _________ ~~=-----'--~ 
~) (b)(7)(C) ~ b d h . . . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) L a use er preVIous position a 

at USAID/Jamaica by housing her mot er in a TDY a- artment in Barbados for an extended 
. d f . 'fh I . d . d th (b)(G)(b)(7)(C) h I peno o time. · e comp amant a vise at mot er was not a govenunent emp oyee 

or contractor and was not in Barbados on official business. Further, no compensation was made 
fi I dd. . h d . d h (b)(S)(b)(]) d I . or the apartment stay. n a 1t1on> t e source a vise t a <C) oes not c aim any assets on 
her annual financial disclosure fonn in spite of the fact that she likely has considerable assets. 

Based on this complaint, the Otlice of Investigations commenced an investigation in 
W· i gton> D.C., Kingston, Jamaica and Bridgetown, Barbados. Investigation determined that 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) • • • 
(lid not house her mother m the USAID-leased TOY apartment m Barbados. Further, no 

- e-vi-d-en-ce was obtained which indicted tha l~~6><bX7> ossessed assets which, if unclaimed, would 
have constituted a false statement on her financial disclosure form. 

!bl(6J.!bX7l . • 
<C> attested on two Optional Forms (OF) 126 - dated l 0/ l /03 and 3/18/98 - that her mother 

was a "qualifying family member/ .. who will normally travel at government expense and reside 
with you abroad." During the relevant timeframe (b)(s)(b)(7

)<c> mother lived with a caretaker in 
(b)(6).(b)(7) • 

Barbados andcCJ pa1d her mother's expenses. 

This case is closed. 

Details of Investigation: 

An anonYmous call was received by the Office of Investigations on 5115106. The caller alleged 
tha~l~r~bl< 7> Jinappropriately lodged her mother in official TDY housing and failed to . accurately 
report er assets on financial disclosure forms. Suggested leads were provided. (Attachment J, 
Memorandum of Interview dated 05115106) 

REPORT MADE BY: Name: 
Signature: 

l(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
SAi Date Signrd: 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 
N i b)(6).(b)(7)(C) r b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

Date Signed: 

SiJ l(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

"71.;t_L~t j 



Pa e2 (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

Period: 5/ I 6/06 to 9/8/06 

(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) , . . . 
On 5/16/06 SF 287-112s, Public Fmanc1al Disclosure Reports, for the last e1ght years 
(1999-2006) were obtained from the USAID Office of General Counsel. i~><sJ.(bl<7> signed all of the 
reports, certifying their accuracy and never claimed any assets over $1,000. (Attachment Z, 
Memorandum of Record~· Review dated 0516106) 

· (b)(s).(bl(7XC) l · d Offi . IP l F'l led h h I . ed l A review o 1 Eva uahon an 1c1a ersonne 1 es revea t at s e c aun 1er 
mother (bl<5>·<bX7>(C> as a dependent on 10/1/03 and 3/18/98. (Attachment 3, Memorandum of 
Record~· Review dated 05123106) 

l(b)(s).(b><7xci I USAID HR was interviewed on 5/24/06. She denied any knowledge of 
inappropriate activity by~~s)(bX7l (Attachment 4, Memorandum of Interview dated 05114106) 

~b)(S) (bX7xc> JUSAID/Barbados[(b)(S).(b)(7>(C) lwas tele_ohonically interviewed on 5/31106. 
. . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

She stated that she did not have any direct knowledge o . mother staying that the ___ _ 
~~><5l<bX7l ! artment in Barbados- the apartment leased durini <b><S><bX1><C> tenure as USAJD/Jamaica 
(b)(s).(bl<7xq for TDY ers to Barbados. She stated that Sfie once ried to reserve the 

apartment for official visitors to the island and recalls being told by hotel reception that it was 
not available at the time she needed, as (b)(s).(bXl)(c> mother was there. (Attachment 5, 

Memorandum of Interview dated 05131106) 

Ub)(G).(b)(7)(C) I t.:'. USAID/B rb d (b)(S),(b)(7XC) t l h . II . t . ed 616106 ! . aorrner a a os _ was e ep omca · m erv1ew on . ...____ ___ . ---' . (b)(6),(b)(7) . (b)(6) (b)(7)(q---j 
She demed direct knowledge tha <C) housed her mother m thq · ~apartment. 
(Attachment 6, Memorandum of Interview dated 06106106) 

(bX6) (b)(7)(C) 
as interviewed on 617/06. She denied housing her mother in the TDY apartment 

'-a~t t~e•Tti<b:j(Exsii7).(bbiix7ii1)(0c>~1Hotel. She also claimed that she did not have any assets to claim on her 
financial disclosure_fQrms due to expenses incurred taking care of her mother and raising three 
children alone.~~s)(bXJ> expressed her intent to cooperate fully with the investigation and said that 
she would provide her bank statements to the investigator. (Attachment 7, Memorandum of 
Interview dated 06107106) 

~xc> jusAID/Jamaic <bxs>.<b)(7)(c) was telephonically interviewed on 6/8/06. She 
said that she never heard tha ~~~sJ(bX7l ad misused the TDY apartment in Barbados .... l<b_x5_>.<_b>(_7x_c) __ I 
advised that the apartment lease had been allowed to expire as it was no longer needed. The 
USA ID ~arbados office was fully staffed and the need for TOY ers had diminished. 
(Attachme11t 8, Memorandum of Interview dated 006108106) 

t::::C) J usAID/J . f(b)(6).(b)(l)(C) ~ . . d 6/8/06 Sh ama1c was mterv1ewe on . e 
stated that sllc had never before heard that non-official TDYers or non-federal employees were 
using the apartment. (Attachment 9, Memorandum of Interview dated 06108106) 

l(bJ(6J.(b)(J)(cJ I fonnerl(bJ(s).(bl<7>(C) J of the USAID/J amaica Program Of.fice._w s telephorucally j(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
interviewed on 6/8/06. She said that she had no direct knowledge tha mother stayed at 



Pa e3 (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 

Period: 5/16/06 to 9/8/06 

the USAID-leased (bJ(GJ.(b)(7)(C) 

06108106) 
apartment. (Attachment 10, Memorandum of Interview dated 

USAID/Jama1c was mtervtewed on 619106. He adv1s that there was 
r )(6)(b)(7)(C) 

1 

. 1<b)(6) (b)(7)(C) I . . . ed 

a lot of talk that <~~s)(bX7l had housed her mother in the TDY apartment in Barbados, however, it 
had never been confirmed. He had no direct knowledge of this. He suggested that people may 
have wanted to believe this rumor becausee:>.<bX

7
l was not liked. He also said that he once 

fu d . ({bXG).(bX7XCl ~ . ) d' } . ~ b h d'd b ) ' h th re se to s1gn
1 

_ nanc1a isc osure 1orm ecause e 1 not e 1eve t at someone a er 
level in the Foreign Service had not ac1,,wed any assets. (Attachmellt 11, Memorandum of 
Interview dated 06109106) 

l<b)(S)(b)(7)<c> lformer USAID/Jamaic ~~~tj<b> was interviewed telephonically on 6/9/06. He bad no 
direct knowledge of non-government employees using the TDY apartment in Barbados. 
(Attachmellt 12, Memoratidum of Inter11iew dated 06109106) 

i<bl<GJ<b><7><C> ] USAID/Barbados!<bXG).(bJ(7xci I was interviewed on 6/13/03. She had 
no infonnation that non-TDY travelers ever stayed in the USAID-lease<(<b)(S)(b)(7)(C) ] apartment. 
She never heard that any official traveler had to share the apartment with anyone else not on 
official travel or not a federal employee. (Attachment 14, Memorandum of Interview dated 
06113106) 

. i(b)(6).(b)(7XC) ~ 
On 6/13/06 the case agent s oke with the Deputy to the 
Managing Director at th .<b)(G)(bX7l<C> I advised that he remembereJ~~~'6HbX7l ]speaking of her 
mother who Jived in Barbados, however he never met the mother. He did not 6clieve she ever 
came to the hotel. (Attachment 15, Memorandum oflnterview dated 06113106) 

F6) (b)(7)(C) l . . . (bX6J.(b)(7)(C) . 
was mterv1ewed on 6/13/06. She worked m th Hotel Reservat10ns 

Office for six years. She was "99% positive" tha~(b)(G) .(b)(?)<c> mother never stayed in the apartment. 
(Attachment 16, Memorandum of Interview dated 06113106) 

On 6/14/06, the case agent completed his review of thq<bxs><ox7><CJ lapartment lease file, copied 
in Jamaica and Barbados. The lease cost a total ofUS$48,000 per annum and was leased from 
9125101 until 9/24/03. Funds were drawn from operating expenses. An internal review of the 



Page4 
~7)'.Vf] 

Period: 5/16/06 to 9/8/06 

lease, conducted by an unknown author, determined before 3/25/02 that the lease was not cost 
effective for the government. (Attachment 17, Memorandum of Records Review dated 
06114106) 

l(b)(6) (b)(7XC) I . . (b)(6).(b)( ) • l(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
1 · was re-mterv1e:wcd on 6/14/06 (C> could not explain why the 

· Id h h (b)(S)(bX1)(C) th · · h ·r h c_h ____ __, rece hon to er t at mo er was staym m t e apartment i sue was not t e case. 
(b)(6).CbX7) • d th . "bl h . h d (bX6).(bX7) I d . d h . h . 
cq opme at 1t was poss1 e s e mis ear . ccJ 

1
a so a vise t at in er years m 

Barbados, she was never unable to secure a hotel room for a visitor. (Attachment 18, 
Memorandum of Interview dated 06114106) 

On 06/16/06, a review of a list of_apJm ent guests maintained by the USAID Barbados office 
d.d } . d" . h (bXG).(bX

7
> d. h /"- h J9 111 d 1 not revea any m 1cahon t a cc> staye mt e apartment. 1/:lttac ment , memoran um 

of Records Review dated 06116106) 

. f b F. CEN 6/16/06 d'd 1 . h · fl<bl<
5

>.<bX
7

><C) A review o t e m report on 1 not revea any assets mt e possession 0. 1.. 

that she would be obligated to claim on her financial disclosure forms. (Attachment 20, 
Memorandum of Records Review dated 06116106) 

l(b)(6)(bX7)(C) I . t . d .1 h . JI 6/20/06 (bX6),(b)(7) d USAID[(bX6),(bX7XC) .... ____ _._was m erv1ewe te ep oruca yon . cc) serve as a l 

based in the J(jngston Mission from 1998-2001 and then as a USAID contractor based in 
Bridgetown, Barbados from 2001-2003. He stated tha (bJ(SJ.<b><

7
xq other did not stay in the 

USAID TOY apartment in Barbados. (Attachment 21, emorandum of Interview dated 
06120106) 

(bXG) (bX7)(C) 
was re-interviewed on 6/30/06. She provided additional infonnation, including 

tliat regarding large transactions ($7,000 - $15,000) within her account. (Attachment 22, 
Memorandum of Interview dated 06130106) 

During the week of 915106, financial records received from an 10 subpoena served on (b)(GJ.(bl<
7
xq 

bank were reviewed. 0 checks t~<bXG)(bX7xc> lwere found; no indication of Lin_co_m_e _ _. 
(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) . . 

generation other th USAlD salary was revealed. (AttacJune1it 23, Memorand11m of 
Records Review dated 09108106) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 
Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

NIA 



Pa e 5 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Period: 5/16/06 to 9/8/06 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

b)<G> !(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) I 
Administrative subpoena, Numbe (b><7> was served on~_ ---------~Jon 
7/24/06. 

Attachments: 

1. Memorandum of Interview MOI): Anonymous, 5115106 
2. Record Review (RR): (b)(GJ.(b)(?XCJ SF 287-112s, Public Financial Disclosure Reports, 

5116106 
3. RR (b)(SJ.<bJFXCJ valuation and Official Personnel Files, 5/23/06 
4. MOI: <bXGl<bJ<?lcci 5/24/06 
5. MOI: imsi.<bX7> 5/31/06 
6. MOI: 6/6/06 
7. MOI: '617/06 
8. MOI: 6/8/06 
9. MOT: (b)(S),(bj(?J{C) 6/8/06 

10. M 0 i:t~)<~-(b) 6/8/06 
11. MOIJ~~s).(b)(?J 16/9/06 

12. MOI: 619106 
13. MOI: i~~~,<b> r 6/12/06 
14. MOI: ) 5113106 
15. Mem nversation wittj<bXSJ.<bl<

7
xc) l 6113/06 

16. MOit icsl<b)(?)(C) 6/13/06 
17. RRf tiics)(bJ<?XCJ Apartment File, 6/14/06 
18. MO~~~>cs>cb)(?) 6/14/06 
19. RR: (b)(G).(b)(7xc) eservation list, 6/16/06 
20. RR: FinCEN report, 6/16/06 
21. MOI: ims)(b)(?) 6/20/06 
22. MO!: 6/30/06 
23. RR:<bXSJ(b)(?Jcci subpoena production, 9/8/06 



 



Case Title: 
Case Number: 
Status: 

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
(bX6) (bX7)(CJ 

Oosed 
Period of Investigation: 10/27/06 to 11/17/06 OIG/I Office: San Salvador 

Synopsis: 

On October 27. 2006, the Office of the Inspector General received information fron\<b><s> <bX
7

J<CJ ] 
i<bJ<5>·<b><7xCJ ] USAJD El Salvador regarding possible submission of fraudulent 

raveJ vouchers from two Forei n Service National (fSNl emplov~~<bl<7XCJ lalleged_tha_t 
(b)(6).(b)(7J(C) . and (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) J b)(6),(b)C7XC) :=i 

(bJ<5J.(bJ<7J<C) USAJD/Mexico City have been submittimdalsified travel vouchers since 
2004 S 'fi all (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) d . ed h_-t](bj<(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (bX7) h bee b 'tt' fra d I 

. peet ic y a vis t a 
1 

an cc> ave n su m1 mg u u ent 
tra hers and receiving reimbursement ba~e on t e audulent travel vouchersrxs> (bX

7
l<CJ ] 

andi~~~> (b) have been dating for several years and when they travel together on official-._b_u_s_in_es_s _ __. 
the t m the same hotel room, thus only incurring lodging cost for one room. Yet,r xs)(b)(7)<C> I 

(b)(S).(b) b h b . d 1 h l . . I d . B ed h 11 . and <7xc> ot su mrtte trave vouc ers c a1mmg o gmg cost. as on t ese a egat1ons, 
OIG opened an investigation. 

• . . • . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (b) . • 
The mvest1gatton substantiated the allegation that andc1>cc> violated Section 301-11.13 
of the Federal Travel Regulations (FTR), which states: reimbursemenl is limiled Jo one-half of 
the double occupa11cy rate if the person sharing the room is another Government employee on 
official trave/. lf the person sharing the room is not a Govemme111 employee on official travel, 
your reimbursement is limited to the single occupco1cy rate" and Section 522.5.19c{7) of the 
ADS which states: "The flat rate per diem system must no/ be used when US government 
employees are sharing a room. In this case, the lodging-plus systems must be used " 
(Attachments 1 and 2) 

In addition, the investigation found that: 

(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (bX7) . . , , 
1. andcc> took four official tnps to El Salvador from Mexico m which only 
one room reservation was made but each filed a travel voucher claiming fuH lodging cost. 

2. 
(b)(6).(b)(7XC) (b)(6) CbX7) . 

andcci were overpaid a total of $1735.00 as a result of fraudulent travel 
,___~_, 

vouc ers. 

REPORT MADE BY: Name: l(b)(6J.(b)<7><CJ 
Signature: 

Date Signed: 11117/06 

APPROVING omCJAL: Name: (b)(S).(b)(7)(C) 

Signatu~LZr.::(b)""(6"') (b'°"')(7"")<C"'""') -----! _ __.., 
Date Signed: 2..1 or 



Pa l (t>X6J (bX7XC} 

Period: 10117 /06 to 10/27 /06 

. , (b)(6) (t>X7XCJ1 b)(6)(b)(7) · 
3. Pnor to travelmg to El Salvador ~_Jan <Cl knew that they had reservations 
for only one hotel room. which contradicts t eir statements that they made hotel 
reservations for two rooms prior to traveling to El Salvador. 

Details of Investigation: 

On 10/27/06;11>xsH1>x1xC> ] USAID/El Salvador advised that since 
2004r xsii1>x7xc> l~~»(b) have been submitting fraudulent travel vouchers and receiving 
reimbursement based on the fraudulent travel vouchers. (Attachment 1) 

. ' (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) ---, 
On 10/2]/06, the Case Agent (CA) reviewed 13 travel vouchers that were submitted b _J 
an r~~~6> <1>x7l] A review of the travel vouchers revealed, that between January 2004 and August 
2006,<t>XG><t>x7xc> and :~;~r> took four trips to San Salvador together. (Attachment 2) 

ict>X6l <t>X7J (bX6l (bX7XC) d ffi ·a} 
On 11/08/06.<Cl stated that on 8/20/06, she and went to El Salva or on o et 
business and ey stayed at the:~s> (b)(7) Hotel. They requested and received reservations for two 
s arate hotel rooms at the~~~S)(t>X7> .. Hotet._<1>xsH1>x1xc> got a separate room but they only used 

(bX5> <1>x7xc> room. She is positive tha (bXS> <t>x7xC> ad a separate room and he should have a hotel 
'--,-' , (b)(6).(bX7)!CJl ~b)(6).(i)jj7j{Cfl 

receipt. She paid cash for the room at th JHotel. On 8/22/06, she and1 ·· ·· · iWanted to 
chan e hotels because th~~~~s> <t>x71 !Hotel was substandard. She caUed or had ~1>xs>i_1>x_1x_q __ 

<1>xs><1>x7xc> USAID/EI Salvador to caJI the (bXS><bx7xci 
Hotel to get two rooms~ however, there was only one room available. Since there were no 
add .. na1 'I bl h d 'ded ak th th l<t>XGHt>X7> ' l h d ltlo rooms ava1 a e s e ect tot e e one room at e<C) ote , s e an 

<t>xs> <1>x7xCl shared that room (bXS> (bX7xci paid for the room using his credit card. When they returned 
from the trip, they both filed separate travel vouchers claimin hotel lodging expenses. After 
seeing her travel vouchers, she advised that she and11>xs><1>x7xc> shared a hotel room on several 
occasions while on official business and they both filed a voucher claiming lodging expense. 

l~»'6>·1b>11> stated that she is willjng to repay the money and she did not intentionally submit 
fraudulent vouchers. (Attachment 3) 

b)(6) (bX7)(Cl (bX6J (b)(7J . . . . 
On 11108/06, stated that on 8/20/06, he and1q his former girlfriend and now wife, 
stayed in the samellotelroom while in El Salvador on official business. They made two . (bX6)(bX7XC) . . . 
reservations at the otel but decided to stay in the same room. He 1s not sure who 
cancelled the second room. On_S.122106 they changed from thJ11>X's><1>x7xq• otel to the bXS><bX c 

(bX6)(bX7XC) ' , 
Hotel because the room at th~ Hotel was substandard. They stayed m the same hotel 
room at thd,l~~s>i1>x7> because there was only one rj m available. He thinks that he made the . .__ b 6 b 7 (b)(6) (b)(7XC) . b 6 b 7 
reservation at Ui :d: > 1 x , Hotel an~ made the reservation at the lc\1 ).(~ Hotel. 

(b)(S) (b)(7) 'd £'. th t th f(b)(G).(b)(7XC) Anr.>ot 1 nd fi 'd r. th at th J(b)(G) (b)(7) H t l Tb 1c> pat .LOr e room a e J~~.e a e pa1 ior e room <c> o e . ey 
both cl imed lodging expenses on their voucher even though they shared bOt rooms. When he 

(bXS) (bX7> l d eth ffi . I b . th l d . h H kn an <C) trave e tog er on o c1a usmess, ey a ways staye m t e same room. e ows 
that 1f e claimed an item on his travel voucher then be should have incurred the cost. He did not 
think about filing a travel voucher for only his portion of the lodging expenses. <t>xs> <1>x7xc> stated 
that he is willing to repay the money and he did not intention~Uy submit fraudulent vouchers. 
(Attachment 4) · 



ucJ (bX6l (bX7XCJ 

Period: 10/17/06to 10/27/06 

On llLU_L06JGX6f<bXl><CJ stated that she was in charge of making hotel reservations fo~<bxsi <bX?><CJ ] 
;b)(6) (b)(7)(C) l . . . 

and on all of their official tnps to El Salvador and they aJways requested one room. She 
made reservations fo <bXG><bXlxc> aml~~~»<b> 'ror their 08/20/06, official visit to El Salvador. She 
made reservations at th l~61 (bX?> Hotel for one room because she talked to <bxs> (bXlXCJ and (bxsi (bX?XCJ 
and th requested reservations for one room. On 08/22/06 lm» <b> told her that the rooms at the · (b)(6)(bX7XC) (bX6l (b)(7) (b)(6) (b)(7) 

otel were substandard and that she wanted to change to the(CJ Hotel <C> only . (b)(6J (bX7XCJ 
asked her to make reservations at the otel for one room, so she only checked 
availability for one room. l 1l~~~i'b1 had asked her for two rooms at th~<bXl> otel, she would (b)(6).(b) . 
have requested two r~ms She call <7><CJ and told her that they had one room available. She 
made reservations fo~~~>(b~and (b)(s).(b)(lXCJ for an official trip to El Salvador on 09/18/05, and she 

nl ed t th 
(bxsi (b)(7)(CJ beca r(b)(6)(b)(7) I d (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

1 
sted 

o y reserv one room a u (CJ -.Jan on y reque one room. 
(Attachment S) 

Def endaots/Suspects: 

(b)(6) (b)(7XC> 
(b)(6) (b)(7)fcj 

~-----~aD~(b)(6J(bX7)(CJ 

SAID/Mexico 

Undeveloped Leads: 
None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence, seized contraband or held personal property associated with this 
investigation. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

The information contained in this report will be provided to USAID/Meicico for whatever action 
they deem necessary. 

Attachments: 

1. 10127106, (bX6J(bX7XCJ 
~--

MOI 
2. 10/27 /06, cument.R.eview 
3. 11/08/06, (b)(S)(bXl)(C) 

4. 11/08/06, 
5 • l 1/} J/06, (b)(6J.(b)(7XC) 

MOI 
MOI 

MOI 
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U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL . 

INVESTIGATIO~S 

· REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Tide: 
l(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 

C N b 
(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

ase um er: .__ __ __. 

Status: Closed· 
Period oflnvestigatio~: OS/09/2007 to 08/02/2007 OIG/I Office: Washington 

On Ma 9, 2007, an anonymous complainant stated that ... l<b_xs_><_b><_1><_c1 
__________ _. 

. <bxs>.<b>(7><C> OSAID/Office of the Administrator, is using her USAID position to advance her friends 
and herself both personally and financially. 

. (b)(6).(b)t7XC) · 
Per the complamant, USAID/ Assistant Administrator for 
Management (AA/M), who re.P.Qrts directly to 1~~s><b><1> nominated~gs><b><1> for a substantial cash 
award that was approved by <bxs> <bX1><C> former (b)(s)(bX1><C> however the award 

. . d'd hr . gh h ' ed OPM A d C . L (b)(s).(b)(1> · d nommatton 1 not go t ou t e requrr war s ommtttee. ater <C> nominate 
<b><s>.<b><7XC) for a substantial cash award that was disapproved by the USAID Awar s ommittee; 
however, ~~~6> <b><1> brought ~ressure to the compiittee to approve the award. . Furthermore, the 
Complainant a eged that (bXS),(b)(J)(C) a}SO Cfeated hi h level fOffiOt)Ona) OSitiOflS Within 
US AID/ AA/M for her friends (b)(s> <b><1><c 
and <bxs>.<b><7><C> J ith no opportunity for others lo 
compete. Accordin I these promotions were never reviewed by the Agency. The com lainant 
aJso alleged tha ~g<s><bX?> created a Senior Executive Service (SES) position for <b)(S)(b><1><c> in the 
management, policy and bQdget office with a work force full of high level General and Foreign 
S . .. d h flbXS)(b)(J) ·1· db . l f; 11 fh I h" h eiv1ce positions an t a~>_ utt 1ze usmess c ass . or a o . er overseas trave , w 1c cost 
up to $3,000, instead of uttrizing ayovers. 

Th . . . d'd . "d h (b)(G),(b)(7) d h . . d h e mvest1gat1on 1 not uncover any ev1 ence t at (c> use er pos1t1on to a varu;_e __ le.r 
friends and herself both personally and financially; nor aiif it_u_ncover any evidence tha (b)(s).(b)(JXCJ 

·1· ed b . I c. 11 f h I d(ii'XG).(b)(JXC) . . SES . . . h ut1 1z usmess c ass ior a o er overseas trave an 1...... rece1vmg an position m t e 
management, policy and budget office; however, the investigation did uncover that (b><5><b><7><C> 
failed to submit the appropriate Office of Persom:1eJ Management (OPM) nomination documents 

. (bX6) (b)(7) . . h d h . h d . . pnQLt <C> rece1vmg a cas awar ; owever, smce l e a mm1strator approved the award and 
(b)(6) (bK7) . ed c: • d" I ed <c> rece1v the lUnds, the issue was 1ss~ v . 

Details of Investigation: 

REPORT MADE BY: N .... e: (bX6).(b)(7)(C) 

Sip 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: NllllK: 
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p ~. 
( 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Period: OS/09/2007 to 08/02/2007 

A review o~cbxsi.<bX7l<C> ]Official Personnel File (OPF) reflected that the last individual cash award 
received, based on performance, was 09/04/05, under the Latin America and the Caribbean 
Bureau. There were no other awards tiled in (b)(G).(b)(?XCJ OPF, specifically, submitted and 

ed b (bX6).(b)(7)(C) 
approv Y._ _ _, 

A rev1ew of the Automated Directives System (ADS) - Chapter 418, reveals that this chapter. 
ensures compliance with applicable regulations to provide the Agency with the best-qualified 
candidates to fill competitive service positions. This chapter denotes that there are exceptions to 
competitive requirements due to the 'issuance of new classification standards or a promotion 
resulting from an employee's position being classified at a higher grade level because of 
additional duties and responsibiJities. 

e G),(b)(?XC) I office of General Counsel, was interviewed and stated 
that he served on the SES mmittee to determine if SES positions were created 

.fi It I:'. (b)(6),(bX7)(C) d (bX6),(b)(7XC) (bX6)(bX7) t ted th t th SES •t• ti' d . th spec1 ica y 1or an <C> s a a e QQSI ions ou me m e 
complaint still remam vacant er <bXGl<,..bx_7x_CJ _________________ _ _ -' 
Bureau for Management (M). :~~5l<bX1l advised that various employees throughout the M Bureau 

c. h SES P Offi . . h itb)(G)(b>(?)(C) . . be . . . ed t re1er to l e rogram teer posltlon as t e position cause It ts expect t lat 
she will get the jo)?. Peters believed that the init1a announcement for the SES Program Officer 
position was re-advertised to ensure that Cbl<5HbX7l<C> name appeared on the list of potential SES 

' "d (b)(6) (bX7) : . . l(b)(6).(b)(7XC) I . £'. 
cand1 ates. tC> perceived that this re-advertisement would ensure tha~ was hired ior 
the position. 

j<b)(G) (bX?XCJ ) was interviewed and stated that the Executive Review Board agreed there was 
• c. 1 d h. d. h (b)(G) (bX?) ed h M B h . 1mper1ect ea ers tp regar mg t e way <c> mana t e .. ureau~ owever, the biggest 
issue was dis~ntentment arµong Agency ea ership. (blt5>.tb><7xCJ also stated that he had no 
reason to believe that something inappropriate occurred during the posting of the SES vacancy 
announcements and to date, the positions are still vacant. · 

i(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) I . . . . 
was mterv1ewed and stated that she provided 

assistanc;e in posting and advertising the three SES positions government wide for poten~ial SES 
candidates. She stated that after the Bureau selects the most qualified candidate for the position, 
the ERB has to dear off on the selection. She stated that all three positions were pulled back 
because they were not cleared through the ERB. To her knowledge, the ERB was disbanded 
after the announ.cements were. pulled back and operated in an advisory role only, as needed. 
To date, the SES .position for DDHR has been filled; however, she does not know if the other 
positions were filled. 
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Pa e3 
(bX6),(bX7)(C) 

Period: 05/09/2007 to 08/02/2007 

• (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) • • 

A review of travel authonzat1ons and vouchers from January 2006 to present 
determined that she only traveled three times and business class was authorized and utilized on 
one occasion. 

{' 
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Pa e4 
(bX6) (bX7XC> 

Period: 05/09/2007 to 08/02/2007 

DefendantJ/Suspects: 

Name: 
(bX6) (bX7XC) 

SSN: 
DOB: 
Title: 

Undeveloped Leads: 

There are no other investigative issues remaining. 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

None. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

None. 

Attachments: 

• ( )(6)(bX7XCJ • • 

I. Records Revtew o Official Personnel File 
2. Records Review of Automated Directives Systems - Chapter 418 
3. Memorandum of Interview _ll<bxs> (b>!7xc> 

4. Memorandum oflnterview 
·~~~~~~~~~~~.....J 

5. Records Review o (b)(S)(b)(?)(C) fravel_Authoriza ions and Vouchers 
6. Memorandum oflnterview (b)(SJ.(bX?XC) 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOP.M.ENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: 
Case Number: 
Status: Closed 
Period oflnvestigation: 07111/07 to 10/31/07 OIG/I Office: San Salvador 

Synopsis: 

On Jul ~ 2001r xs>tb\PxCl IUSAID El Salvador reported to Special 
Agent~x5> <bXff"(sA) that<bX5> <bX7xc> USArn<bxs> <bX7XC) 1• n Honduras, had abused his 
authority and ssibly submitted fraudulent TraYeLVouchers (TV)s. SpecificaHy, over the last (bX6)(bX7XC> . (b)(6)(bX7XC) . . 
mon had taken at least five tnps to -Iondw-as, where his famlly members 
have been vacationing. She further - ed tha <bXSHbX7XCl ad his subordinates approve the travel 
requests and whep he returned fro (bXS><bX7>~he su m1tted TVs stating that the trips were for 
official purposes. In additio ~b><5>·<b><7xc> aa 6een using his government owned vehicle (GOV) 
and driver for personal use. 

The potential violations include the Standards of Ethical Conducl for Employees of lhe Executive 
Branch§ 2635.101, Basic Obligation of Public Service; Title 18 United States Code (USC) 1001, 
False Stalements; Tille 18 USC 287, False, Fictitious or Fraudulenl Claims; Federal Travel 
Regulations (FTR), Section 301-1I5; and American Embassy!Hondurm Motor Vehicle Policy 
(MVP), the Foreign Affairs Manual (FAM) and USAID regulations. 

Th . . . bs . ed tha (bXS)(bX7XC) k fi ffi "al . . h" th "od e mvesu ation su tantJat too 1ve o 1c1 tnps wit in a two-mon ~n , 
(bXS><bXJXC> where bis daughter was mterrung<bXS><DX7xc> scheduled two additional trips to <~s)(bX7> 

ic~6><bX 7> however, the Travel Authorization Requests (TARs} were initially not approved pending 
additional information. The TAR.s were_later withdrawn or a portion of the travel denied. Three (b)(6).(b)(7XC) . f(bX6l (bX7)(C) . 
out of five o tn s to :were taken over the wu{eekend._Accordmg to USA ID (bX6).(bX7XCl . . (b)(6) (b)(7XC) 
management, the work tha conducted while be was ___.could have been 
completed in one or two visits o t e area 

The investigation substantiated tha CbXSHbX7)(C> submitted fraudulent TVs. Specifically,_!'b_x6_><b_x7_xc_> ___, 
claimed on three separate TVs that he incurred a total of $430 in lodging costs; when in fact he 
had not incurred lodging costs because he stayed with his_daughter, free of charge, for five of the 
nights in question. On one of the aforementioned TV st xs> (bX7><C> } !aimed lodging costs for three 
nights when he did not incur any lodging cost. On two other TVs he claimed lodging costs for 

REPORT MADE BY: Name: lbXSl<bX7lCC> 
Slgnatu 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: Name: 
Slgnaw 

..___ ___ ____,J I I 



Period: 07 /1 1107 to l 0/31/07 

• • • (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
one night each, when he had not incurred any lodgmg costs. subsequently reimbursed 
USAID $430 for lodging expenses. 

The investigation substantiated the allegations that Bimholz used his GOV for personal 
p _ ses. Specifically, between May 2007 and July 2007, Mission Voucher Logs (VL) reflected 
tha (bl(

5
l<bX

7
l(C) J

1
his family membe ....andlrie ds used his official GOV on 46 occasions for 

(b)(6) {b)(7)(C) • • • 
personal purposes. As a result o mtsuse of the GOV, approx1mat~S2_86 m 
additional labor costs and $172 in vehicle costs were incurred. Examples o (bXs).<bX

7
><CJ most 

egregious uses of the GOV for personal purposes are as follows: 

1 D ' ' (b)(S).(b)(?)(C) ' d th d ' ·A•• hi d h ' h . unng a tn~ t tnstructe e r vcr to UUl.e s aug ter m t e 
GOV to thJbil6l<bX

7
><c> Night Club on a Saturday night {b)(s).(bl(

7
)(c) M'as not in the vehicle. 

2. During Temporary D_y_ty_(J'DY) travel t J<bX
6
l<bX

7
xcl Ion a Friday a night between 7:55 

d 11 29 (bX6>(bXlXCJ d' . h GOV cd 'gh . ak' . p.m. an : p.m., a 1rectlon, t c · was us e1 ' t times m mg tnps 
to pick up and/or drop offi<bX

5
><bl(

7
XCl dau liter his dau bter's friend and a Mission 

lrb)(6) (b)(7)(C) d . 
cmplo_yee between the1· " ompoun , residence, hotel and 
th (b)(6)(1>)(7~C) 1R st d B . (1>)(6){b)(7)(C) (b)(6) {b){7)(C) t . th hil th e aurant an ar 11' as no m e car w e ey 
were being picked up and dropped off. 

3 Du 
. th (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) ov .. , {bX6){bX )(C) l:_ . 

. rmg ano er one o _w _ p 1structed the driver to 
take his wife to the bus station · <t>X

6
l<t>X

7
xc> A 1>XSH1>><

7
xc> ]wife's direction, the 

driver then took her to the mall. Afier spending approximately one hour at the mall, the 
driver took her back to the bus station where she caught the bus. 

f (1>)(6) (b){7)(C) J . . . 
On October 31, 2007 Assistant Umted States Attome " Umted States 
Attorney's Office for the District of Columbia, declined to prosecute the <bXGHbX

7
xc> ,case. Since 

the matter was declined for criminal prosecution, the results of the investigation will be 
f<t>X6) {b)(7XC) ~ • • • forwarded to Latm Amenca and the Canbbean Bureau. 

DETAILS Oil' THE INVESTIGATION 

On Jul 9 2007 (t>X
6

HbX
7

xCJ USAID/EI Salvador, reported that 

<bX
5

><1>x
7
xcl U SAID<1>><

5
l<t>X

7
XC) n on uras, had abused his authority and possibly 

submitted fraudulent TVs. Specifically, over the last month (bl<
5

> <t>X l(C> 1 as taken at least five trips 
t d (bXSHbX

7
xq 1Honduras, where his family members have been vacationin . (t>X

6
> <bx

7
xc> had his 

subordinates approve the travel requests. When he returned from~><5><bX7xc> he submitted TVs 
stating that the trips were for official purposes. ln addition <1>X

5
Ht>X

7
xq has n using his 

government vehicle and driver for personal use. (Attachment #1) 

0 Jul lo 2007 d ' ed ha (bXS)(t>)(l)(C) d'd . ffi . [ . . n y , , an anonymous source a vis t [tliCaj 1 not receive any o. . c1a mv1tes 
.. th USAID p . ha I ed . (bXS)(bX7XC) h c h . h to v1s1t e roJects t t are ocat 1 __ t ereiore, t ere 1s ~n w y 

{b)(6) (bX7XC) h uld ha tak fi ffi . I t . t {1>)(6) (1>)(7XC) (b)(6) (bX7XC) k {l>X6) (b)(7)(C) h o ve en 1vc o 1c1a nps o 111ew to owevcr, 



c3 
CbX6l (bX7XCJ 

Period: 07/11/07 to 10/31/07 

. . . (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) . . . 
he had a USAID dnver to dnve a ~AID 'ie 1cle t to meet him and to drive him and 
h. S'. ·1 be . d (b)(S)(b)(l)(C) Th . h th t• 1s iam1 y mem rs m an aroun e anonymous source estimates t at e cost or 
each trip varied between $1500 and $2000. (Attachment #2) 

On July 16, 2007 (bXSl<bX7XCJ 
USAID/Honduras, provided the following information: 

] 

(b)(6) (bX7)(C) , . . 
On June 18 and 19, 2007, he and v1s1ted the vanous FIHA and RED USA ID 

. . . . Th FJH d RED . l d. d jcbii6i.cblc1xc> j (b)(6J(bJ<7l(CJ project act1v1t1es. e A an projects are ocate man arounL nn .._ _ __ __, 
Honduras. They ve·sited the rojccts becausecbXS)(bX7lcc> wanted to visit projects in order to get to , (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . . f(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
know the projects told him that he would be m t weekend and to try to 
organize soQtethine_with tfie projects. On Tuesday, June 19, 2007, they visited two additional 

. . J<b)(6)(b)(7)(C> r .f4 .th th Aft . . . . . 'n_tru . h d 
cbxfi?b~;~>sttcs :w1h~ w

1 
as wi_ . cdmd.' . naler v1s~tmg ~roJecht.s1 1~cbx7x~> o~fimg, de an 

Loo ' a project ve 1c e to v1s1t a tho proJCCt sites w 1 e WJ e use (b)(6) (bX7XCJ . . . <---.(bX6) (bX7XCJ . 
__ _,..._ GOV to go to the bus station. fbere was no official reason fol wife to be on 

the trip with them. The meetings were essential and they completed all oftfie items on the 
agenda. It is standard not to claim lodging cost, if you do not stay in a hotel. (Attachment #3) 

On July 16, 2007 (bXS><bXlXCJ USAlD/Hon<luras, 
"--;~~-~~....-~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

provided the following information: 

He. noticed that while he_was_in Panama, one of the acting DMDs approved yet another 
trip for x5><bX7xc, to go to thJlbxs>.cbx

7
xc, area for around June 16th-I 9th. Totally, coincidentally, 

. . ~b)(6).(b)(7)(C) ~ . . 
and totally unsohc1ted1 1uSAID/Honduras, told htm thal he 
was checking travel logs fo <bXSl (bXlXCJ _Jtrips to (bX5> (bX7XCJ area. On June 28 2_007.1~~6> (bX7> old him 

• - . rit>xsl (bX7XCJ 
that when he returned from three weeks of annual an paterwty leave, the 

d (b)(6)(b) h" . h(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) th . d f h. I h' rcporte toc1xci is concerns wit . L__ unau onze use o government ve 1c es on 1s 
various trips tocoxs><bXlXCJ was espec1ally concerned over approving major se1Ulle0ts of 

. t. d . t:: d. ii . f d . d h" I (bXS).(b)(l) ld overtime, per <ttem, an ou1er expen itures or overtime use o nvers an ve 1c cscc> ro 
him that he reviewed driver logs, and then passed the logs ontol<bxs>cbXlXCJ ' or his review an 
requested him to indicate w '.c.h..tr~· were personal for whic rcgX5l<bX7><C> :would receive a bill for 

ll · 1-1 · d <bxsi.cbJ(l> th th ha h . h f fii . I co ection. . e menttone t <Cl at ey vc no aut onty to penmt t e use o o 1c1a 
vehicles for personal use except for when the employee's car is in the shop, medical tri s to 
dan erous parts of Tegucigalpa, and for newcomers. They had no basis to charge<bX5><bX7xci 

<bxs><bX?xci and other staff members discussed the Motor Vehicle Policy (MVP) several tim_e_s _w-ith-



Pait_e 4 
(bX6l (bX7)(C) 

Period: 07/11107 to 10/31/07 

. th . kl dm. . . . F . . A ·1 h (b)(6)(bX XC) m e1r wee y a 1mstrativc meetings. or mstance, m pn w e went on 
a personal trip to the U.S., they discussed the fact that he would be unable to use an official 
vehicle to take him and his wife to the a irport. As a result, he had to arrange private 
transportation for his departure and arrival. 

(bX6) (bX7)(C) • • 
Around July 9, 2007~ he learned tha had r uested that he amend his TVs with 

lhe Controllers' office staff tbX
5
> (bX

7
xcl also mentioned tha t the 

~haazesi1 r lodging would be taken out of a pending voucher. This raised questions related to 
(bXSHbX

7
xci lodging charges. This was done, after his July 3, 2007, conversation with~<bX5l<bXiXC> I 

regarding his potential conflict of interest with the trips. Travel Authorization Requests (TAR) 
th.e last two trips in ques~tion which he had been holding pending additional information from 

{b)(6) (b)(7)(C) "thd b (b)(6)(b)(7XC) Id ha . "t d aJI f th . t "t . (b)(6).(b) 7) _ _ _ were w1 rawn , ou ve v1s1 e o e proJec st es m_c..___. 
(~5><bX7> in one or two visit-; to the area. (Attachment #4) 

On July 16, 2007 (b)(s) (bX
7

xC> 

following informa 10n: 
USAID/Hondurast xs><bX7

xC> provided the 
~~~~~~~~~ 

llb)(6) (b)(7)(C)l 
On March 21 , 2007, he gave a copy of the new Mission Vehicle Policy (MVP). 

The main change to the new MVP was the limited use of the GOV for TOY personnel. 

• f(bX6) (bX7XC)l • • • 
On Apnl 27, 2007, he sen a Bill of Colkctlon (BOC) m the amount of$204.68 

for his personal use of the GOV wfilc~>(bX 7xc> subsequently paid. He knows that there is no 
mechanism in place to issue !bX

5
l.<bJ(

7
xcl a BOC:Out he did it anyway because he was trying to 

make the best of a bad situation. The correct use of the MVP was discussed at several 
admirustratjx.-e me_~tings and he sent out several memorandwns regarding the appropriate use of 

(bX6)(bX7XC) • 1(bX6) (bX7XCl k d" the GOV to ~s the and he new the rules regar mg the 
MVP. 



Pa eS (bX6) {bX7)(C) 

Period: 07111/07 to 10/31107 

0 , ... July 17, 2007 <bX6HbX7xc) Ori USAID!H d ·ded th ti 11 · ,. ver, on uras, prov1 e o owmg 
......_-~----' 

infonnation: 

. (b)(6) (bX7J(C) . . . . d{bX6l (b)(7XC) 
He is USAID official dnver. He only picks up and drops off wh 

tells him too. He only drives to wh {bXS).(b)(7xcl tells him to drive. He maintains a h~an-d-wn-.t-ten _ _, 
VL in his notebook. From time to time, he types the handwritten infonnation in his notebook 
into the computer. He gives the handwritten and typed VL tQJhe Motor Pool Supervisor (MPS). 
P . . . he d VL h MPS h . th i(bXS) (bX7XC) i'. his . f . nor t~ e1vmg_t type slot e , e gives em toL.....-. aor reYiew. ·rom time 

. (bXS)(bX7xcn ld hi th . 1 . nal d h ed h ~ . hi to time to m at a particu~tno_was perso an e not t at lact 10 s 
notebook. He has no way of knowing itC 6l(bX7xc, trips are personal unless bX5l(bX7XCl tells him. 

A 
l(bX6)(bX7XC)l d' . h (b)(6)(bX7XC) . i'. (bXS) (bX7XC) B s . . (bX6) (b)(7)(C) 
t _ 1recuon, e too w11e to us tat1on m 

Honduras. (bX6l<bX7xq wife went into the bus station and then returned to the vehicle (bXS)(bX7xc> 
~------' wife told rum to ta e er to the mall, so he took her to the mall. She went into the mall and he 

went to gel something to eat. Approximately one hour later, she returned to the car without any 
bags; he thinks that she was wasting time before she had to return to the bus station. He then 
took her back to the bus station and he drove back to Te ucigalpa~bXGl <bX7xc> routinely stayed al 
th 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(CJ •th hi d l t (b)(6) {bX7XCl e 1 s aug11 er._ _ _ ___ _ 

. (DX6)(bX7XCfl . . l<bX6)(b)(7XC) I 
On one occasion told him to dnve back to town from the nature rtbXSJ (bl . . . (b)(6) (bX7J<C) "--- . 

area, to o tq(1xq and pick up his wife, and to take her to where he was attendmg a 
meetin (b)(S)(bK7xc> ife was in the car by herself. 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . . . . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
~~==A;.;:c,;~ dtrcctton, several times he picked up and dropped o;.~-,..--~-----' 
<bX6Hbx7xq daughter' s friend from his house and various locations.'b)(S)(bX7xq was in the vehicle by 
himself, sometimes. 

(bX6) (b)(7)(C) . . . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . 
A d1rcchon, he p1cked up and dropped o l:iaughter at vanous 

locations. She o en rode in the vehicle by herself. On one occasion he took her from the 
<bXSHb>(7XC) Jlestaurant 1Ji'><5J(bK7XC) ] a neighborhood i (bX6l.(bX7XC) he dropped her off on the 

comer and waited approximate y 5 minutes. When she returned, she asked him what he was 
still doing there. He told her that since she did not tell him to leave and because it was nighttime, 
he waited for her. Then she told him to take her tq<bX5l<bXiXC) la local disco. He arrived back at 
his hotel around 11 :30 p.m .. 

, . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . . (bX6) (b)(7)(CJ . 
Several tunes, at d1rect1on, when he returned fro .,.had hun 

d ff hi I h. h H d k h f(b)(S)(b)(7XC) !.I 'd h' I rop o s uggage at 1s ouse. e oes not now w )i u1 not carry 1s uggage on 
the plane with him. (Attachment #K,) 

On July 18, 2001E <bX7KC) MIRA, a USAID/Honduras contractor, 
provided the following information: 



(bX6l (bX7XCl 

Period: 07 /1 l /07 to 10/31/07 

. . (bX6l (bX7XC) · 
He has had many meetings witli Some of the;neehn£s_took place on th.Coe~~-

. !{b)<6)(bX7XC) · · fbX6l (OX7XC) ki [<bX6J (OX7XC) weekends and others dunng the week.L_ daughter is m wor ng, so,_ ___ _ _ 
comes to town to meet with her and while he is there, the have co ee and talk about the 

On J 8 2007 h t 
·.u(D)(6l(bX7l(C) USAID (bX6l(bX7l(CJ t th r.;(b~X6~J.(~bJ(=1x=c~) 

programs. une , , e me WI~ . , an a e 
~~6> (bXll nature area He has had a lot of access td<bxsi <bx7xci and for MIRA that is excellent. 

(bXSJ(bXlxci does not use the project vehicles; he saves them for his staff because they need them 
more than he does. (Attachment #7) 

On July I 6, 2007~<bx7x_CJ __ ~-­
USAID/Honduras, provided the following infonnation: 

(b)(S)(b)(l)(C) Jd h th I.. d .. th . d th fi . h h to er at ue wante to v1s1t e projects an e trsl two t:Jmes t at t ey went 
to<bX5><bX7xc> the mutually agreed upon the travel dates. On the site visits from May 11 to May 

(bX6J (bX7XC) . · (bX6J (OX7XC) 13, 2007 daughter went with them. There was no oflictal reason~ 
da ght l . "t th . ts .jf(bX6) (bX7)(C) l d~bX6) (bX7XC) 0 M 1 2007 (b)(6) (bX7XC) h d h u er o VJ St e proJec w1 an , n l<~x,R' , a 1s 
driver take hi~ dauizhter from the bJ(S).(bl(7XCJ ]Restaurant to the~~~~/bl in addit~6)(bX7><c> had his 
driver to ~ic fbXSl<bXlKci Jhis dau hter's friCf;nd_from his home in (bK5HbX7l!Cl and to take 
h. t ti.. (bX6)(b)(7)(C) 1.1 ta l h (b)(6).(bJ(7)(C) d(bX6).(b)(7)(C) h . L......_d-.-
1m o u '"es uran w ere an iWere avmg inner. 

None of Ma 13. 2007 activities were official activities. ReJ?.ardioJLthe June 8 to June 11, 
. . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) Id h h h . be . l!b)(6)(bX7XC) th -...I --2007, v1s1t t'1 1to er t at e was going to m at weeke.IBLJlJJ' 

. • ,-..-! . . (b)(6)(b)(7)(C) 
he asked her 1f she haa anYffimg gomg on. At the tune, she had no plans to return to ____ _. 
that particular weekend but she recalled hearing about a meeting that was goin.11. to be 1!king 
place, so she confirmed that the mectinJUYas still going to take place. She and(bXSJ(bXll(Cl attended 

~w..-1..,,eeting. lbere was no reason whYi(bXSHbX7xci had to attend the aforemen · oned meeting. 
(b)(6)(bX7XCl ~ - . ,. . . (b)(6) (bX7XC) 

wue attended the Saturday, June 9, 2007, meetmgs with There was no 
official reason for his wife to attend the meetings. (Attachment #8) 

On July 19, 2001j<bXSJ.(b)(
7
xci ==1usAJD/Honduras, provided the following 

information: ,_ _____ ______ __, 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(6) (b) . . 
On Jul 5 2007 _yski (7XC> to send him a BOC for lodgmg costs that he had 

not incurredt xsHoX?XC> told him tfiat he stay with his daughter at her residence (bX5l!bX7XCl 
E bX7XC> prepared the vouchers without knowing that he had stayed with his 

d h (b)(SJ(bl<7xC> Id h" tha h d"d . h h h . . ed h h. h . aug ter to 1m t e 1 not review t e vouc ers; c JUSt Slgn t em. w 1<;;_ 1 . (bX6)(b)(7XC) 
lb_y he__w_anted to reverse the c_ for the lodgmg expenses. USAID/Honduras 

(b)(S) (b)(l)(C) t Id h. t h (b)(S) (b)(l)(C) . ·- ~ ~h k r. $430 th th (b)(S) (b)(7XC) t o un o ave 1~ ec 1or , e amount a as no 
• • l(b)(6) (b) l (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . . . 

entttled to receJ.Ye.41vr.1 subsequently told to wnte the M1ss1on a check for $430. On 
(b)(6) (b)(7XC) . 

July 16, 2007 gave him a $430 cticc made payable to USAID Honduras. 
(Attachment #9) 

r(i)X6) (b)(7)(C) I 
On July 19, 2007._ ___ _, USA ID/Honduras, provided the following infonnation: 



(bX6l (bX7)(C) 

Period: 07111/07 to 10/31/07 

. l<b)(6) (b)(7)(C) I . 
She 1s She prepares his Travel Requests (TR) and 

TVs. She includes what should be included on the TVs. She does not delete expenses unless 
(bXSJ<bX7XCl tells her to do so. She has no way of knowing if he did not incur lodging costs unless he 

tells her. It is his responsibility to tell her if he does not incur lodging costs: otherwise, she will 
include lodging costs on his TV. On July 3, 2001E:><1xc, 1sent her an email telling her not to 
include lodging costs on his current lV. This was the first time tha{bXSl<bx7xcl'told her not to 
include lodging costs oo his TV. On July 5, 2007, she preparcd<bXS><b){7J(CJ V for his June 28, 
2007 to July 1, 2007 trip to~, <bx7xci I Bimholz attached posted notes to his hotel receipts 
requesting to be reimbursed for internet services and official meals. Accordingly she requested 
reimbursement for the aforementioned items on his TV. (Attachment #10) 

l<bX6)(b}(7)(C)----~-------

0n July 20, 2007 
provided the following information: 

<bXS)(bX7XCJ driver<b><5><bX7XCJ gave him a stack of overtime sheets attached to VLs that ----dated back to June 05, 2007. He noticed that several of the trips appeared to be personal. He is 
not sure i )tj<sJ.(bl(?J had previously give (b)(S)(bX7><~atl of the VLs. 

On Tuesday, July 17 2007 (bXSJ(bX?xq told (bXS><bx?xc> that he had 
additional VLs to review <~xs>~old him that he had talked to<bX5><bX7xci and that he should get 

. l{b)(6)(bX7XC) (b)(6) (bX7> . <bX6l (b)(7)(C) 
together wit and go over the VLs <C> told him to make sure Iha marked 
all of his personal trips on the VLs. 

. f<b)(6) (bX7XCJ . 
He 1s sure that knew that he should not use the vehicle for personal pwposes 

because they had.discusse e Motor Vehicle Policy at several administrative meetings. He did (b)(6) (bX7)(CJ · · 
not want to send,_ a BOC for the personal use of the vehicle because according to the 
Motor Vehicle Policy there was no legal basis to charge personal trips )~6><bX7> told him to bill 

<bXSl<bX7xci anyway. (Attachment #11) 

On July 19, 2007,~b)(6) (b)(7)(C) j 
.__ __ _________ __.USAID/Honduras, provided the following 

information: 

His daughter is doing an internship i <bxs, <bX?XC) Honduras, at the <bXSHbX7xci 
~(b=X6~J(b-)(7~XC)- - • --.----- · · 

He needed to learn more about the USAID projects and he saw thts as a way to v1s1t 
as many projects as possible and to see his daughter. He was_willin to give up his weekends 

d h · ed h . . .1..JlbX6) (bX7)(C) b th an e was motivat to concentrate on t e proJects m uKL- area now ecause e 
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Page8 
~bX6J.(blm<Vl] 

Period: 07 /11/07 to I 0/31/07 

• (bX6).(b)(7XC) 

area is 
the 

May 11, 2007 to May ~ 2007, the second ttme that he r ent t he 
stayed one night at the1

bX
5
> <bX

7
><CJ Hotel and one night a~l~ll;: w1~hi_s dat.rn.hter, 

fi f harg Th d · th (bX6J<bX7XCJ d '(bX6)(bX7XC) k (bX6)(bX7XC) ree o c e. e secon tnp · at an too was to 
visit the project sitcs.lhat thev did no see during their first visit. ll was a joint 

, , <bX6l lbX7XCT' • • • • 
dec1s1on to return td or a second v1s1t. Hts daughter amved the same 
weekend and the op rtunity presented itself to visit the project sites, so he went 
back t (bX6) (bX7)(C) 

(bX6) (b)(7XC) 
June 8, 2007 to June 11, 2007, the third time that he went to he stayed 
with his daughter at~~;~~(b> He did not want to incur any lodging cost, so he stayed 

'tlLhis daughter a i~:~~ 101 
for free. The third trip that he took to10

xsHbXlXCJ was with 
(bX6J (bX7XCl Tb b' bo . . . ere was a once a year, 1g ard meeting on mnovahve pro s that 

he attended. He does not recall whose idea it was to attend the meeting (bXS>. bX
7

XC> 

might have suggested that he attend the meeting. He does not recall if he had 
plans to go t cfbXSJ<bXlXC> prior lo learning about the meeting. 

(bX6l (bX7XC) 
June 17, 2007 to June 19, 2007, the fourth time that he went he-~,__~ 
stayed one night with his daughter free ol._char e and one night in a hotel in <oxs> 

(bX6)(bX7) I"" ~ .... \. •tr' th th l kl (bX6)(bX7XC) 'th USAJD I (bX6)(bX7XC) ci ue_.LOurn1..: 1 a e oo o was wt em ..... ~o'""=e~e,,,_, ..----
(bl<S> (bX7)(C) • • • ~ 6 

anted him to sec some of the projects m the<bl< ><
0
x

1
><CJ area, 

so he went. 

June 28, 2007 to July I, 2007, the fifth t ime that he went t <oxs> <ox,xCJ he is not 
sure who suggested the trio_Ihe triojiad been planned for a while. He only 
I . d I d . . ~bX6)(bX7XC) 

c a1me o glllg cost t ----------

l 00 1 
. . (b)(6) (b)(7J(C) 

Ju y 11, 2 7 lo Ju y 16, 2007, the sixth time that he went t as with 
the Senate foreign Relations Committee. 

, • • (bX6l (bX7XC) 
He had two addit:Ional tnps planned ld which he did not take. --------
Th ti . th h fcbXS) (bXJXC)- h d 'th h dri Th dd' . l . e ust time at e went to e rove wt t e ver. ea ttlona tunes 

that he went t <bX
5

><bX
7

><C> e flew and had his driver meet him there. 



(bX6> (b)(7XC) 

Period: 07/11/07 to 10/31/07 

1(b)(6)Jb)(1xc1 - l d h. TV fi h. H i<bl<6l (b)(7)(c) 
i__ __J prepare is or am. · e gave,L-. -~~__, 

his plane_jicket receipt and hotel bill, which she used to prepare his TV. He thinks that maybe he (bX6) (b)(7)(C) . . 
told ot to charge lodging expenses pnor to July 3, 2007. On July 3, 2007, he sent 

<bX5l<bX7xc, an e-email telling her not to claim lodging cost on the TV that she was processing. He is 
not sure_w_hy, but he decided to take a closer look at the TV that he was preparing from a recent 
uio to bXS><bX7~q when he realized that he had been claiming lodging costs, when he had stayed at 

(bXS)(b) fr f bar H ad th . " . h TV h . . d th H' . <1xcl ee o c . ge. e never re e miormahon on t e · e JUSt s1gne em. is review 
f h. TV d b h' . . ,f(bXS)(b)(7)(C) d' th f o 1s s was not pro~te ts conversauon wit~ regar mg e appearance o 

talcing so many trips to<bXSl <bx7xc> ------
Once he realized that he had been reimbursed for lodging costs that he had not incurred, 

he sent an e-mail to the Comptroller's Office explaining that he had made a mistake and that he 
wanted them to issue him a BOC in the amount of$430, the amount that he had been overpaid. 
On July 16, 2007, he wrote a check made payable to USAID/Honduras for $430. 

<bXo><bX7XCl provided the foJlowing explanations for his personal use of the GOV: 

A college student was staying with him at his residence. The college student 
needed a ride from the bus station so he asked his driver to go pick him up from 
the bus station and to take him to his residence. He did not th.ink that it was a 
problem because he was going to reimburse the Mission for the use of the vehicle. 

He sent his driver to run errands for him while he was in meetings. He was not 
always in the car while the driver was ruMing his errands. He did not think that it 
was a problem because he was going to reimburse the Mission for the use of the 
vehicle. 

While he was on TDY i <bXS><bX
7

l<Cl he had the driver take his daughter to a club 
because it was late and he was worried for her safety. He thought that he had the 
discretion to use the driver as long as he declared the trip as personal and he 
reimbursed the Mission for the use of the GOV. 

While on TOY, he had his wife dropped oIT at the bus station. He thought that it 
was OK because he was going to be billed for the use of the vehicle. 

While on TOY, he had the driver pick him YP- frorl~~~~\<b> f and drop him off at 
various restaurants. He did not realize tha i~~~l w~n walking distance to various 
restaurants. 

He thought that if he marked "P" next to his personal trips on the VLs it was OK to use 
the GOV for personal business. He thought that it was OK because he was going to reimburse 
the Mission for his personal use of the GOV. He thought that theil~~5><bX7> l had discretion on how 



Period: 07/11107 to 10/31/07 

to use the GOV. He thought that if he declared his personal trips and he paid for them it was OK 
to use the GOV for personal business. He misunderstood the MVP and that complicated the 
situation. USAID was in negotiations with the Embassy regarding the policy changes. He 
misunderstood that he was not allowed to use the GOV for personal business or to go to the 
airport. 

r xSJ(bX
7

XC) ~ Id h. th hi rth Gov · nfl' to 1m at . s usage o e was not m co 1ct 
with the MVP. He bad received one BOC for his personal use of the GOV; therefore, he thought 
that it was okay to use the GOV for personal business. He had used the GOV at other posts for 
personal business so he thought that it was alright to use the GOV in Honduras for personal 
business. (Attachment #12) 

On Jul~ 26 2007. the SA 's review o CbXS><bX
7

XCJ Vs revealed thaf b><S><bX
7
xCJ took five official 

trip 10.1b>
15

><b><
1
>
1
CJ londuras within a two-month period. On three out of the five aforementioned 

• CbXS><bX
7
xc> I . d h' TV tha h . d I f$430. lod . (5 'gh @ trip c a1me on 1s s l e mcurre a tota o . m gmg costs m ts 

$86 per night), when in fact he had not incurred lodging costs because he stayed free of charge 
with his daughter for some of the nights in question. (Attachments #12 and #14) 

On July 26, 2001Jhe A's review of 13 e-mails and memorandums from various sources 
l d h ICb)(S).(bX7XCJ • I . 1 d . . th E~ b han . f revea e t afi was active y mvo vc m trying to get e m assy to c ge portions o 

the new Motor efocle Policy (MVP), including th,e prohibitions on personal travel to the 
airpgrt. Th les and regulations regarding the MVP were discussed at several staff meetings 

1<bX6) (bX7XC) • • • • • 

ano had his staff send e-mails to the Embassy deta1lmg the portions of the new MVP 
that he did not agree with. (Attachment #15) 

On July 26, 2007, the SA' s review of the USAID/Honduras MVP, the Foreign Affairs Manual 
(FAM) and USAID regulations revealed that it is a violation of the MVP, 14 FAM 418.2 and 
USAID/General Notice, "POLICY-REMINDER,OC/EA 09/06/2005" to use a GOV for personal 
use. (Attachment #16) 

On July 26, 2007, the SA' s review o b 
5
> !bX

7
xCJ Ls revealed that from March 21 , 2007, when 

the new MVP was issued, to July 20, 2007'bxs><bx
7
xCJ 

1 
is family members and his friends used 

his GOV approximately 46 times fo~rsonal brposes, including trips in which Cbxs>.<bXIXCJ \vas 
• • • (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) • , 

not m the vehicle. The first time tha · viewed the VLs he did not mark some of the 



l!att-11 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Period: 07/11/07 to 10/31107 

trips as personalr x5
> (bX

7xcn personal use of the GOV resulted in S 172.0 I in extra mileage cost 
and an additional 70 labor hours at a cost of$286.67. (Attachment #17) 

On July 17, 2007, the SA identified and took photographs of the most egregious locations where 
(bX

5
l (bX

7xc;land his family members took his GOV for personal purposes. The site visits revealed 
tha (bl!

5
llbX xcl\ised his GOV for personal purposes that include but are not limited to, talcing his 

daughter tq'bX5><bX7XC> jNight Club and his wife to thJ bX5><bX7xci Bus Station. (Attachment 

#18) 

On October 31, 2001rmb)( 7XC> ]Assistant United States Attomc United States 
Attorney's Office for the District of Columbia, declined to prosecute the<bX

5
l<bX

7XC> case. 
(Attachment #19) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

E <bx
1

x_c_i ----- -~-__,jUSAID/Honduras 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence, seized contraband or held personal property associated with this 
investigation. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

Th ul f h 010/1 . t' . 'dee! f!bX6) (b)(7KC) l A . Ad . . . e res ts o t e mves 1gat1on were prov1 tq ss1stant trumstrator 
to the LAC Bureau for whatever action, if any, he deems necessary and appropriate. On October 
31, 2001t 116

>.(bl!
7

XCl ]Assistant United States ~ttomey_, United States Attorney's Office 
for the District of Columbia, declined to prosecute the<bX

5
HbX

7
>
1C> case. 

Attachments: 

1) 07/06/2007 
2) 07/l 0/2007 
3) 07/16/2006 
4) 07/16/2007 
5) 07/1612007 
6) 07/17/2007 
7) 07/18/2007 
8) 07/16/2007 
9) 07/1912007 

MOT J b)(6)(bX7)(C) ~ :::=:J 
MOJ - Anon ous Source 
MOI - (b)(6)(bX7XC) 

MOI-
MOI-
MOl-
MOI-
MOI-
MOI-



10) 07/19/2007 
11) 07/ 1912007 
12) 07/20/2007 
13) 07/23/2007 
14) 07/26/2007 
15) 07/26/2007 
16) 07126/2007 
17) 07/26/2007 
18) 07/17/2007 
19) 10/31/2007 

I 

MOI - (bX6).(bX7XC) 

MOI-
MOI-

-_,_~ 

RR - Denied/withdrawn travel request 
RR - TVs 
RR- E-mai ls 
RR- MVP 
RR - VLs 
RR - ehotos~~--..... MOTC- (bX6)(bX7XC) 

Pa~e ll 
~6)CbX7XW""J 

Period: 07/ 11/07 to 10/31/07 



 



• • 

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: . l<bxs>.<bX?xc> Case Numbed~<b>_<6>_.<b_><7_xc_> ----~ 
Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 10/07/2010 to 03/0512011 OIG/I Office: Kabul 

OIG/lnvesti ations received an all~ation that i<bXG).<b><?XC> J 
for USAID, submitted a travel 

.__vo_u_ch_ e_r -th~a_t_i_n-cl_u_d-ed_s_o_m_e_ir-reg_u_ta-n~.ti-e-s.-O~n__,or about April 6, 201 o, (b)(S)(b)(?)(C) 

requested payment for her travel and received $10,000. She signed a travel 
voucher for the $10,000. l~»cs).(b)(?> ubsequentty resubmitted her travel voucher on 
~ust 23, 2010 for $13,854.1 0 for her Permanent Change of Station (PCS) from 
~?>cc> lto Kabul, Afghanistan from February 21 through 
April 4, 2010. The voucher also included time spent in Washington, DC for 
training prior to going out to Afghanistan. The original travel vouche;_did not 
include any supporting documentation. In addition, it was alleged tha l~~s><bX?> may 
have stayed with a friend in Washington, DC, instead of a hotel and that she 
would not have documentation to support her hotel stay which would be the 
largest expense on her travel voucher. 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . . (b)(6).(b)(7) 
S followed up on the hotel 1nvo1ce {The m Washt ton DC._<C> __ 

(b)(S).(b)(?)(C) by calling the hotel to verify dates stayed. The(b)(S).(b)(?)(C) was able to 
verify her length of stay which corresponded to her invoices that sb_e_ey_e tually 
submitted. However, while reviewing the rest of the voucher, SAl<bxs>(b)(?)(C) found (b)(6).(b)(7) . '---. 
that one of the charges that (C) submitted for excess b a e was m the form 
of a Federal Express package to Kabul for $190.69. s~(bXS)(b)(7)(C) found that this 
charge was not for sending a package to Kabul but for sending a package to her 
home in South Carolina. 

0 0 t b 27 2010 SA (b)(6).(b)(7XC) . t . d i(b)(6)(b)(7)(C) ]t d t . n c o er , , 1n erv1ewe o e ermine 
whether or not she had sub~· ed alse claim in order to be reimbursed for the 
h D 

. h . . (bX6),(bi('i) ed 
c arge. unng t e mtennew <C> stat that she sent two packages to Kabul 
via USPS and the claim regar mg a UPS package must have been a typo and 
that it was really another box sent to Kabul via USPS. Regarding a $390 PayPal 
charge on her voucher, she stated that she had a suitcase that broke just as she 
was getting ready to fly from Washington to Kabul. She left the contents in the 
hotel storage room for a friend to ick up a few days later and send to South 
Carolina, instead of directly tdf~~s)(bX?> in Kabul, because she knew she would be 

REPORT MADE BY: N1me: (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 
Slgaatu~rt""'": ---~ 

D1tt Sicntd: 11122/10 

'CbX6)(b)(7)(C) I 
APPROVING OFFICIAL: N1me:[ Dlte Siped; 2../ull/ 

Si&aatu (bX6).(bX7XC) l 
Thil clOC11DtDt .. tbt property or the Omce or I ..... ~.v·-....~-... .-mnu· .... ™ - --...1"-.... ~ .. up .... ~ t•out written 
permissio11. Disclosure to uotutboriud JlfftOll is prohibited. Public .vailabilicy i1 determined .ader TIUe S U.S.C.fSS2. 
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returning to South Carolina in May and she could pick the items up then. She did 
concede that several of the items that were FedEx'd to South Carolina were not 
brought to Kabul. Regarding the $191 FedEx charge, she stated that of the 
items she left in storage at the hotel, the hotel lost some but then found them 
again in May and she had them FedEx'd to her South Carolina home. 

• (b)(6),(b)(7) , (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Approximately one week later cc> came back to speak with S She 
stated that after reviewing her receipts and credit card statements, she 
remembered that the UPS charge really was UPS and was for faxing and 
photocopying various items. She could not explain why she marked the UPS 
charges as ''In lieu of UAB~ instead of "Business Center" or "Internet/Fax" as she 
had for her other business expenses on her travel voucher. (bX

6
).(b)(

7
xc) hen asked 

why, with the billions of dollars going into Afghanistan and the level of corruption 
· the_coun USAID/lnvestigations would pursue a matter such as hers. SA 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6).(b)(1n • • • • 

asked <Cl to bnng m those receipts and credit card statements that she 
~u-sed-t~o jog her memory. To date ll~~6>(b)(7> has failed to do so. 

Based on the findinQ_s_ot_the investigation, USAID General Counsel advised that 
USAID/Kabul gav ~~»<6).(b)(7) a verbal reprimand. There are no other issues that 
need to be further investigated. This case is closed. 

• • • (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Details of Investigation: On October 7, 2010, SI{ performed a record 
review of the travel voucher, dated 8123/2010, an accompanvin supporting 
documents. The travel voucher was for $13,854.10. (b)(

6
).(bX

1
i<ci attached a 

spreadsheet that detailed out all of her expenses. 

On the attached spreadsheet, i~~s)(b)<1> listed the following excess baggage 
charges: 

2121/10- USAirways Excess Baggage in lieu of UAB $160.00 
3/31/10- UPS charges in lieu of UAB $ 63.29 
3/31/10- USPS charges in lieu of UAB $ 66.88 
4/03/10- Emirates: Excess Baggage in lieu of UAB $ 84.14 
5/24/10 - Emirates: Excess Baggage in lieu of UAB $109.47 
5126/10- FedEx: Excess Baggage in lieu of UAB $190.69 
7126/10- Paypal transfer (see attached report)'* $390.00 

(b)(6)(b)(7KC) • 

*The attached report was a printout of a ra_nsact1on dated 
7126/2010 listing a Paypal instant transfer as a description. (C) 

6
).(b.:J handwrote a 

note on the printout stating that the payment was made to a e who was 
storing some of her items and that she shipped those items td~~~6)(b)(7) via Federal 
Express. She stated that those items were the final items of her excess baggage 
in lieu of UAB. 
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There was no supporting documentation for the UPS or USPS charges. The 
supporting documentation for the $109 and $190 charges was a printout of a 
credit card statement. There were two handwritten notes on the credit card 
statement stating that the Emirates charge was for excess baggage in lieu of 
UAB and the FedEx charge was for shipping of excess baggage in lieu of UAB. 
The $109 charge didn't include any specifics on the credit card statement - just 
that it was dated 5/24/10 and was a charge made by Emirates. The $190 charge 
included a tracking number from Fed Ex. 

The su orting documentaf on package also included an email from cc~6).(b)(l) to 
<bXG).(b)(l)(C) previousll~~~/bl in Kabul, dated February 12, 2010. She asked "Is 

ere an excess baggage a wance so that I can bring t~mmediate items I will · · (bX6) .(b)(7)(C~ need with me to Washington and then on to Kabul?" responded that 
although not normally (\utbo_dzed, the Controller would a low c rges for excess 
baggage in lieu of UABf x

6
:

1
:.Ja1so suggested sending things via APO to Kabul. 

(Attachment 1, RecorcfReview Travel Voucher, dated 10/7/10) 

On October 17, 2010, the Reporting Agent (RA) went to the USAID 
Communications and Records (C&R) office to review their master list of 
packages received, whether through APO or from Federal Express. The list was 
maintained in an Excel spreadsheet by date. RA reviewed all package ·v 
b USAID employees from April 1, 2010 until September 30, 2010. <oXG><bXl)(C) 

(bXG).(bXl)(C) name was not on the list as having received a package during that time 
frame. (Attachment 2, Record Review USAID C&R, dated 10/17/10) 

On October 20, 2010, the Reporting Agent (RA) went to the Department of State 
mailroom to review their master list of packages received, whether through APO 
or from Federal Express or other mail delivery company. The RA reviewed all 
the lists of packages received from APO, Federal Express, and OHL for the 
months o ril May, June, July, and August 2010. According to all of the lists 
reviewed, i~~G)(b)(l) received one package via APO in April 2010. She did not 
receive any pac ages via Federal Express, OHL, or UPS. (Attachment 3, 
Record Review DOS Mailroom, dated 10/20/10) 

On October 2...7 2010, SA (b)(G).(b)(l)(C) interviewed i(b)(S)(bXl)(C) I During the 
interviewr xs>(b)(l)(C) lated that she sent two packages to Kabul via USPS. The 
charge regarding UPS must've been a typo and that it was really another box 
sent to Kabul via USPS. Regarding the $390 PayPal charge, she stated that she 
had a suitcase that broke just as she was getting ready to fly from Washington to 
Kabul. She left the contents in the hotel storage for a friend.Jo pick up a few days 
later and send to South Carolina, instead of directly tdf~~G)(bXl) in Kabul, because 
she knew she would be returning to South Carolina in May and she coukJ pick 
the items up then. She did state that several of the items that were FedEx'd to 
South Carolina were not brought to Kabul. Regarding the $191 FedEx charge, 
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she stated that of the items she left in storage at the hotel, the hotel lost some 
but then found them again in May and she had them FedEx'd to her South 
Carolina home. 

• (b)(6) (b)(7) • (b)(6J.(bX7)(C) 
Approximately one week later <CJ · came back to speak with S She 
stated that after reviewing er receipts and credit card statements, she 
remembered that the UPS charge really was UPS and was for faxing and 
photocopying various items. She could not explain why she marked the UPS 
charges as "In lieu of UAB" instead of MBusiness Center' or "Internet/ ax" as she 
had for her other business expenses on her travel voucher. i~s).(b)(

1

) , hen asked 
why, with the billions of dollars going into Afghanistan and the level of corruption 
in the count~U_SAID/lnvestigations would pursue a matter such as hers. SA 

(b)(
6
).(b)(

1
xc, asked:~> s).(b)(

1
J to bring inJbo.s.e.JJ ceipts and credit card statements that she 

• ft.l(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) • 

used to Jog her memory. S~ .... .. . . has not received those. (Attachment 4, 
Memorandum of Interview f(bJ<GHbx

1
i<cJ dated 10/27/10) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

There are no items in evidence or seized contraband. 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

Verbal reprimand 

Attachments: 

1. Record Review Travel Voucher, dated 10rt/10 
2. Record Review USAID C&R, dated 10/17/10 
3. Record Review DOS Mailroom._dated 10/20/10 
4. Memorandum oflnterview (b)(

6
).(b)(?)(C) dated 10/27/10 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVEWPMENT 
omCE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case Title: (b)(6).(bX7XCJ 

Status: Closed 
Period of Investigation: 11/15/08 - 5/4/09 

Synopsis: 

C N b 
f(bX6J (b)(7)(C) 

ase um er:, 
'---~~~~~~~-' 

OIG/I Office: Manila 

This serves as a follow-on ROl. Subsequent to the first ROI, dated 11/14/08 (b)(G)(bX?><C> credit 
card statements were received. A subsequent final tally detennined that (b)(S).(bX?Xc> claimed 
$2,536.25 he was not entitled to on lodging and was paid $1,677 of that amount. 

Three offices within the Department of Justice declined this case criminally. 

(bXS).(bJ(?XCJ was proposed for debarment by the Office of Acquisition and Assistance pursuant to a 
referral from OIG/I to OAA. 

Details of Investigation: 

After • • all d lated this • ludin (bXS).(b)(
7
XC) credi card reviewing ocuments re to case, me . __ t statements, a 

new tally of hann to the government was determined. (bJ(SJ.<b><
7

><CJ received $1,677 he was not 
entitled to. 

Th .th P bli In . T 'al A Yi(bJ<G>.<b><
7

>(C> j· W hi DC . e case agent met wi u c tegnty n ttome 111 as ngton, on 
3/23/09.J<bi<6><bX~advised that the low dollar loss would prevent his office from proceeding, 
especially as the subject was now residing on the west coast. The case agent then contacted two 
other prosecutors, but neither was interested in the case criminally. (Attachment l) 

Defendants/Suspects: 

l(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: 

None 

REPORT MADE BV: Na.e: D1teSJeHd: 

Slpatvr: 514109 

APP.ROVING omCIA.L: N111r. Date 
(bX6) (b)(7) 

Sip1t1rc: (C) 
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Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: 

NIA 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

Matter referred for consideration of debannent to USAID/OAA Washington, 3117/09. 

Attachments: 
1. Declination memo 

I 
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Case Title: 
Status: 

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTICATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Afghanistan Travel Voucher Proactive Case Nnmber: rx
6

><bX
7

><c> 

Closed '-------i 
Period of Investigation: 2/12/09-5/11109 OIG/I Office: Manila 

---· - - ·---- -·---·------------

Synopsis: 

In the course of OIG/I investigatio (bXs>.<bX
7
xc> infonnation was developed that USAID/ 

Afghanistan employees may have been inflating their travel vouchers by claiming hotel stays in 
Dubai while .in transit to or from Kabul, when in fact no such expenses were incurred. 
Specifically, a US Direct Hire (USDH), now former, admitted that he had done this on multiple 
occasions and that he was not the only Mission employee to do so. That individual, however, 
refused to identify others who participated in this activity and later recanted the statement. 

Under thls proactive, travel vouchers of,.Jl..S,6.l_D_nersoJ)llel QQsted in Kabul were reviewed and 
leads received were followed. A USD <b><S>(b)(l><C> re aid $671 ursuant lo 
inaccurate lodginj claims on three tn1vel vouchers. A ._<b_><

5
_><_b><_

7
><_c> _________ -1 

E_x5
><bX7XCl was suspended for one week pursuant to falsely claiming eight days lodging 

.----D b- . (b)(G).(b) c;..i • cd l ad f S4 'l00 h. b . h b . . f' m u ai. <7XC> ww rece1v a trave vance o ,.., ; is su sequent vouc er su m1ss1on o 
$2,350.50 was isallowed and he repaid the Mission $546. Other leads on this proactive did not 
merit administrative action. 

Pursuant to this proactive, USAID/Afgbanistan employees received travel voucher training and 
the reimbursement policy was changed to lodging-plus pursuant to an issued Mission Order. 

Details of Investigation: 

On 1/22109. (bXSHbXl><Cl a USAID/ Afghanistan'.<bJ(&)(bX7><C> lwas 
interviewed. <bxs>.<bX

7
><Cl ouchcr in question was received by the Office of Financial 

Management on 112~.10_8 (bm<b> included receipts for the first five allowable nights in Dubai but 
th H k (bX6).(b) • three & • b th . . Jd be no o ers. e as <7><C> e receipts or 1our times ecause e mvo1ce wou not 

processed without them ~~~~~ <b> who had also been asking for payment, said be would email the 
hotel and ask for receipts. (Attachment l) 

REPORT MADE BY: Name: 

51¥ut11rc: 

(bX6J.(bX7XCl 

(b)(6) (bX7)(C) 
~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~---: 

J\PPJlOVJNG-OFFlCIAL: Name: [!b)(6).(b)(7)(~ 
Sigaatattl~ 

Diiie Signed: 

8/7/(}9 
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On 2/22/09f 61.cbl<
7

>cc> lusAID/Afghanistan't>cs>.cb)(
7

>cC> lsince 8/07, was 

interviewed. He confumed that he received an advance of$4,300 for two week training in Dubai in 
1109 and that he signed and submitted his corresponding voucher. He claimed that he moved to a 
Dubai guesthouse at the suggestion of a former schoolmate because it was cheaper than his hotel. 
He conflnned that he paid Dhs 200 a night at the hotel and said that the guesthouse charged Dbs 
100, however he lost his guesthouse receipt He confumed that he sent an emm1 to the guesthouse 
asking for another copy of his lost receipl When asked to provide the email. he accessed his 
personal account and printed the following missive which he sent to[<bXS>.<blC

7
XCl :J 

on 2/21109: 
i(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 

Dean._ ______ ___, 
During my trip from Dubai to Kabul, I have missed my invoice of my stay at your guesthouse. 
Could you please send me the invoice again. As you know I have stayed at your guest hou.~e from 
January 09,2009 Jo January 16,2009. 

i~~~>i<bl · ater admitted that the guesthouse did not, in fact, charge him and that he never received a 
receipt, thus never lost it. He acknowledged that he worded the email deceptively to make it 
appear that he bad received, then lost, the invoice l~~~><b> advised that the guesthouse refused to 
accept his money. He said he offered Dhs 1500 when e moved in but was rebuffed. He said 
that when he left, he gave his schoolmate Dhs 800 which was to be forwarded to the guesthouse. 
He acknowledged that he had no way to confirm the money had been delivered. (Attachment 2) 

(b){6)(b) • • , , d . eel b (bX6).(b)(7XCl d . . tha On 2!25/09,<11cc> provided the Mission with a ocument sign y a vismg t 
<~ic~tl stayed at "our gn""ct hnrn:i•-'' ~uarv 9 until January 16. el:iiiiiC wntten note was on a 
()( ~" I •• •• 

piece of.oa~r headed fThe footer md1cated an address similar to 
the ootjl~~~t> ~described and identified a flat numbt:r on the third floor of a building in Dubai. 
(Attachment 3) 

l~mcb> prot the ~on, claiming he had stayed at a guesthouse but lost the receipt. On 
5712/09, SA!<bxs>cbJC

7
XCl visited and hotographed the pUipOrted guestbouse. From the outside, 

he observ fbX5> <bX7l<C> to be an office, not a gucsthousc. A local guard adyi~ 
d ood . ffi 0n 5/15/09 ail c U th Mi . [fb)(G),(blf7Xci-l that he un erst 1t was an o ice. . , an em 10 ow up was sent to c si.10ILI I 

suspension remained in effect. (Attachment 5) 
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them. His secretary later confinned this. The findings were referred to the Mission on 4/14/09. 
(Attachment 6) 

(b)(6).(b)(7XC) 
On 4/1 6/09 repaid the Mission $671. (Attachment 7) 

On 3/12/09, it was confumed that USAID/Afghanistan employees received relevant training. 
(Attachment 8) 

On 4/26/09, Mission Notice 2009-30 was issued which changed travel reimbursement policy to 
lodging-plus. Hotel receipts were now required before expenses, up to allowance, would be 
reimbursed. (Attachment 9) 

Subjects: 

Undeveloped Leads: 

Additional allegations have surfaced and will be addressed by the resident agent in Kabul. 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: N/ A 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

• One week suspension, $546 bill for collection issued and aid and disallowance/savings 
of$2,350.50 from travel voucher submitted b FSN <bX5Hbx7xc> 

• $671 bill for collection jssued to USDH<bX6><bx7xc, and paid in full 

Attachments: 

1. MOiibX5><byxc> 1/22/09 
2. MOill~~~~<b> 122/09 
3. Receipt from<bX6l <b><7><C> 2/25/09 
4. i~~~~<b> suspension etter, 3Ttf/(J9 
5. RIG/I email response t9i~6><bX7> protest, 5/13/09 
6. Referral to USA ID/ Afgliamstari Deputy Director, 4114/09 
7. Bill for collection and general receipt, dated 4/1 S/09 and 4/19/09 respectively 
8. Email confinnation of Mission training received, 3/13/09 
9. USAID/Afgbanistan Mission Notice, 4/26/09 



 



U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Case TitJe: (bXS> (bX7XC> --- C N b 
i{bX6)(b)(7XC> ase um er: ______ __. 

Status: Closed 
Period oflnvestigation: 10/31/07 - 01/16/09 OIG/I Office: San Salvador 

Synopsis: 

l(bX5><bX7><C> J USAID Colombia advised that the Agriculture Cooperative 
Development Investment/Volunteer Overseas Cooperative Association ACDl/VOCA (ACDI) 
Colombia, a U.S. contractor, has a Cooperative Agreement with USAID Colombia (#CA-514-
A-00-02-00227-00 for $9,870,000) to help provide specialized training in growing, harvesting, 
and the post-harvest handling of coffee crops to create superior-quality beans. 

~~5HbX7> advised tha <bXSHbX7xci ACDI bas allegedly: I) been involved 
in a conflict of interest by awarding small contracts to his family members; 2) submitted false 
travel vouchers and received reimbursement for vacations and other unofficial travel by claiming 
the travel was for official purposes; 3) made numerous long distance personal calls to family 
members in the U.S. then received reimbursement from the program by claiming the telephone 
calls were for official business and 4) authorized several cash advances for expenses not 
associated with the program. 

(bX6J(bX7l 
The investigation substantiated cci violated 22CFR 226.42, Codes of Conduct and 22 
CFR 226.43 Com tition by awardin small contracts and purchase orders to his stepso~<bXSJ<bX7XC>] 

(bX6) (oX7XC) d hi : l". {bX6) Th • • • Id nfi th an to s wuei_ e mvestigat1on cou not co nn e 
allegation regarding personal long distance telephone calls because there was insufficient 
information in the file. However, the investigation did reveal several discrepancies regarding 

[<~X5><b>!7XC> ' ]travel vouchers and cash advances that he approved. 

As a result of the investigation :~is>.<bX7> was terminated and a complete audit of the program was 
initiated. 

Details of Investigation: 

On December 09, 2008 CbXSHbXlxci ACDJ provided the 
l". 11 • • l". t' (bX6)(bX7XC) . (bX6)(bX7XC) {bX6)(bl(7) dec1'ded to hire (bX6){bX7XC) io owmg m1orma ion: 1 stepson.<C> 
without getting three quotes <~xsi <bX7> · d not consult with her reg~ing fiiring :~~5> (bX7> There was 

. . d' th din f b CbXSJ{bX7> Th . d hr no compet.ttlon regar mg e awar g o t e cci contract. ey receive t ee quotes when 
it came to obtaining different services; however, with the contracting Wif the computer repair 
services they did not get three quotes, because:~~6> <bX > told them to us <bxs> {bJ(7Xc> They did not 

REPORT MADE BY: Date Stgned: 01/16/09 

APPROVING OFFICIAL: 
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comply with ~:_o ment regulations and they hired iws)(bX?> based on (b)(s).(b)(?XC> 
da · (b)(s).(b)(?> mad all fth d . . ' th Sh d'd 1-- -,-.----,------' recommen tion <C> e o e ec1s1ons wi respect to e 1 not ow at 

<oxs>.<bX?xc> is the owner o (b)(s).(b)(JXC> She did not do anJtbml! with~She did not see the 
(b)(6)(b)(7) did . the . b b h . l!b)(6).(b)(7)(C) (b)(6).(bX7)(C),_---, h b 

co~tract. (c> not receive JO ecause e 1sL-...- st~~on. bad t e est 
pnce. -e- empl yees at ACDI do the best that they can witlilJie limited resources they have. 
They never intended to do anything wrong. (Attachment 1) 

be 
l(b)(6),(b)(7)(C) I 'd fi . . ~ . 

On Decem r 9, 2008, USAID provt ed the ollowmg m1onnatton: 
ACDI has achieved alJ of their goals. ACDI has used basically the same employees to work on 
two different USAID projects. All of the financial document'> should be in the ACDl office. He 
kn thatl(b)(S).(b)(?XC) I 'di lated . ACDI d lha . ewstepson was prov1 n com uter re services to an t 1t was 
causing a lot of problems. He talked to :~:sJ.(bX7> about his daughter working on the ro· ect. 
According to USAID regulations, all contracts must be competed; he is not s\ll'e howfbi!6>.!b>! 7XC> 
stepson son was selected. (Attachment 2) 

On December t l, 2008, roxs>.<bX?XC> ) ACDI provided the following 
infonnation: liquor, gifts, an w _ are ineligible cost; he received training regarding 
ineligible cost. In order to travel 1~~s)(b)(?) would send an e-mail to USAID...reauesting approval to .......__ . . l<b)(6).(bJ(7)(CJ (b)(6~).(cb-~)(~1~xc=)-
travel. There were a couple of le who repaired the computers nor to such ru 

:_.c . (b)(6) (b)(7) . (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) ~---

(no further m1ormation). <C) approved the contract WJth as the current 
contract to provide computer repair services. <~><5><0x1> approved and signed the contract with 

(bJ(S).(bJC?XC) ey did not receive thr _q_uotes prior to contracting l~xs><bX?> He does not know how 
<0X5><i>x7><C) started working for ACDI !~<s> (b)(?> had already a roved the contract wiili1~~s>.<bX7> before 

they received the contract fro <bXs><bX?XC> ey knew th l~~s>.<bX7> was going to get e contrdc so 
th filled t th f..,. •t . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) !-~ t' (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) d . . hir (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

e ou e _ .u.Q.C .. .L s uuorma ion. was ec1s1on to e 
<0X5> <bX7xc> company (b>cs> <0X1l!C> approv e contract with b)(sJ.(b>! 7~c> . but they did not fol; .... o-w~t'h'_e_ 

procurement regulations. He thought that it was OK to contrac l~~6, <0X1> because he worked with 
ACDI in the past. While developing the budget, they obtain~ quotes for computer repair 
services. (Attachment .f} 

On December 13, 20os; ACDI provided the 
~(b)(6) (b){7)(C) ] . 

following information: They did not have a contract with a company to repair the computers. 
After three years, when the computers started to fail, they initially hired a person to fix them but 
they had s9me oroblems with that person. She can not I tha person's name. After that, (b)(6) (b)(7) . (b)(6),(b)(7) . (b)(6).(b)(7) . 

<C> · saidt_> wouJd ftx the computers. The nces tha <C> char ed were not ex ens1ve 
and in ine witlil e market rate. She talked to (bX5

><
0

><
1><C> 
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On December 14, 2008, (b)(G)(bl<7>!C> . ACDl 
provided the follo~· !Linfonnation: <1>X6l CbX7xcJ wife traveled with him to the 

(b)(6)(b)(7) ---.-------annual conferences,ccl 1was not an official ACDJ volunteer and her prese.nce at the annual 
conference was not ~e.s . She attendfd ACDI's April 2003 conference in Boston. and after 
the conference, she, :~~sic1>x7l m~l~~6).(bJ!7> Jwent to New York to meet ~(b)(S).(b><7>!C> !National 
Federation of Coffee rowers, Grey Point Alliance, and the Government of Colombia's New 
York Coffee Alliance office. They finished the meetings in two days. Th CbX&l.<bl!7XCl did not tell 
her that they bad additional meetings, after their second day, in New York. She thinks after the 
Seattle conferenceffi6> <1>X7> j~ent to Denver, CO to meet with Allegro Coffee, a potential client. 

(bXGlCbX7xc> should have oeen in Denver, a maximum of two days. She attended the April 06 ACDJ 
conference in Charleston, NC, and after the conference, she retwned to Bogota She is not sure 
wh :~>csJc1>X7> ent back to New York, since based on their first trip to New York; they knew no 
addition a iances would be made. (Attachment 6) 

On December 15, 20 8.<1>xsi.c1>xrxci ACDI provided the 
fi 11 · ·-c. · (b)(G)(b)(7) Id h ha . lud hi l h h o owmg 1mormat10n (C) to er w t expenses to me e on s trave vouc ers, sue as, . . flb)(6),(b)(7) 
transportatlon and faxes. She only listed the expenses(q old her on the vouchers. After she (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . ~. . 
fills ou iVOuchers, she gives them to the accountmg deparbnent. She knows the project 
should not pay for liquor. She do · noLhaYJ the authority to approve vouchers. It is her fault that 
I. . l d d (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) h bee h 'bl &". • 1quor expenses were inc u e o vouc ers, ·ause s e was respons1 e lOr prepanng 
the vouchers. (Attachment 7) 

On December 15, 20osticsJ.(b)(?)(C> ]ACDI provided the following information: ACDI 
follows USAID rocurement regulation. They look for providers of service then get three quotes. 

(b)(S).(bJ!7XC> is his wife's son and his stepson. Whe 1i~~sicbxr> 1was a kid he lived with 
<1>x6fc1>x7xcl- is part of his family ~~~6) CbX7l approved the contract with <1>~s) <1>x7xc) e made the 
d . . .th hi fi 'al H . I ed. th (b><5><1>><7l d eclSlon Wl s manc1 team. e was mvo v m e process to contract.cc> )He approve 
both contracts wit Cb><&HblC7>!C> and various payments to (bXS> <1>><7l<CJ for computer repair related 
services. They compete t e computer repair services, an l~~6).(bJ!7> ad the best price and value. 
Under the old contract, he was not required to obtain approval to travel from USAID if the trip 
was part of the work plan; if a trip was not part of the work plan, he had to request approval to 
travel from USAID. via e-mail. Under the new contract, all of his travel must be approved by 
USAID. (Attachment 8) 

On December 16, 2oos,j'bxsic1>x1icc> ] ACDI provided the following 
information; Regarding voucher number 0255, one of the administrative staff asked him what to 
list on the voucher as the reason for a payment to(b)(SJ CbX7><CJ · e. i~~s) <1>X7> was 
catering the ACDI Christmas party. He told the administrative staff not to pay :~><5>.(bX7> because it 

,__l'.J.._~t allowed. Each ACDI employee donated money to help CO'leL th cost of the party. 
h d be h h Id th adm

• . . ff" f(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) bee h h 
a to t e person w o to . e 1mstrative sta to P8Yi ause e was t e 

,_ __ 
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onl ' erson who had the authori~ to authorize the payment of expenses. Cblcsi6<Jb)(1x'1<c> 
(b)(6) {b){7)(C) (b)(6) (b)(7) i . . . (b)( (b ) ----

- _ _ ~n,. ~~ co cted b (c) _ o r v1de com ut r repair services <c> ordered 
b)(s)(bx1xci mi~I's <bX6J.(bJ(7XCJ - to use<bJ(6).(bJ(7){c) to repair the 

computers (b)(6).(bl<7
XC> told ~~><sJ.(bX7> he was in charge of repairing the computers, and to call him 

whenever he had a computer-related problem. There was no competition or a formaJ contract for 
these services. (Attacliment 9) 

On December 16, 2008,(b)(s)(bX7><c> _ _ _ USAID Colombia provided the 
(ollgwi_ng infonnation: He never gave l~~6' <bX7l written or verbal approval to contract his stepson. 

<bX5l.<bX7XCl 1was required to follow ACDI and USAID's contracting procedures. ~~~s)(bX7l should not 
have been involved in the approval process regarding the contract that ACDI gave to his stepson. 
(Attaclrmenl 10) 

On December 19, 2008r xsl<bx7xc> bf ACDI, provided the following infonnation: He 
has no knowledge ofT~<5>.<bl<7> giving contracts to his family members, that type of allegation 
would not have made it to ACDI Headquarters. They are not allowed to give contracts to famil 

be J-1 
• . (b)(6).(b)(7) . d . . din nfli f . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

mem rs. e lS not sure 1 (c) receive tram.mg regar g co cts o mterest. 
----~-sh o u 1 d have known not to aoon ve contracts with family members. He has no knowledge of (b)(6),(b)(7)(C) . . (b)(6) (bX7l(C) . 

susmg funds . . WJfe attended some of the annual conferences but her expenses 
were paid for by (b)(s).(b)(?J(C) wife worked as a volunteer, but there is no reason why she 
would have been paid. (Attachment 11) 

On Decemb~l9 2008, i<bxs><bJ(?){c) lor ACDI, provided the followin 
"nfi . l<bXG)(b)(l) . ed eth' . . gardin th Whi l bJ Pr . A (b)(s).(b)(?)(C) 1 onnation cc> receiv 1cs trammg re g e st e ower otect1011 ct. 
received copies of ethics training materials and the general dos and don'ts for contracti'-n-g.-='e _ _, 
contracting rules are very clear; they are not allowed to approve contracts with family members. 
He tells his employees to get multiple bids. He had no knowledge o ~GHbX7l approving a 
contract with his stepson. (Attachment 12) 

From December 9, 2008, until January 9, 2009, the case agent reviewed numerous ACDI 
Colombia purchase orders and contracts fou aru1us services dated from 2003 until 2008. . (b)(6).{b){7) 
A review of these records revealed that <cl approved 21 purchase orders and two contracts 
('. hi l(b)(6).{b)(7)(C) ' I ('. I d . Th . uffi . ior s stepson, 1or computer re ate services. ere was ms 1c1ent 
information in the files to show that the purchase orders and contracts were competed. 
(Attachment 13) 

From December 9, 2008, Wltil January 9, 2009, the case agent reviewed numerous ACDI 
Colombia purchMc orders and contracts for various services dated from 2003 until 2008. ~~~~ 

v · ew of these records revealed th lm6).(b)(?> approved 2 purchase orders for his wifer xs, <bx7xc' 
=(b.,.,!)(S!,")(~bX~7l(c:.C)=;fi · 1 d ' T ' f'l: ' · r ' ' th fil or catenng re ate services. ere was msu 11c1ent m1orrnation m e 1 es to show that 
'---..,...----! 

the purchase orders were competed. (Attachment 14) 

From December 9, 2008, until January 9, 2009, the case agent reviewed nwnerous ACDJ 
Colombia travel related records/ fi:onL20 3 until 2008. A review of these records revealed , , . (b)(6).(b)(7)(C) . , 
numerous discrepancies regardm mtemational travel. (Attachment 15) 
Defendants/Suspects: 



l(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

Undeveloped Leads: None 

Disposition of Evidence, Contraband or Personal Property: None 

Judicial and Administrative Actions: 

On January 9, 2009 ~~~sJ(b)(?l was tenninated by ACDI. (Attachment 16) 

Attachments: 

1. 12/09/08 MOl (b)(S).(bXl)(C) 

2. 12/09/08 MOlj 
3. 12/l 0/08 M011 
4. 12/11/08 MOI 
5. 12/13/08 MOI 
6: 12/14/08 MOI 
7. 12115/08 MOI 
8. 12115/08 MOI 
9: 12116/08 MOI 

10. 12116/08 MOI 
11. 12/19/08 MOI 
12. 12/19/08 MOI,_ _____ __ 
13. 01/09/09 RR: Contracts 
14. 01/09/09 RR: Purchase Orders 
15. 01/09/09 RR: Travel 
16. 01109109 E-mail regarding removal o (b)(s) <b><

7xcJ 

(b)(6).(b)(7)(C) 

10/31/08 - 01/16/09 
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